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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Review of Results

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$277.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year”), compared to
a revenue of approximately HK$243.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2021. It was mainly attributable to the commission
income from provision of Debt Capital Market (“DCM”) services
of approximately HK$165.3 million. The net loss before tax for the
Year was approximately HK$102.7 million as compared to the net
loss before tax of approximately HK$369.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021. The loss was mainly attributable to the
recognition of unrealised fair value loss on equity, fund and debt
investments at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
HK$49.4 million and (ii) equity-settled share option arrangements
of approximately HK$18.0 million.

The net loss after income tax for the Year was approximately
HK$105.4 million as compared to the net loss after income tax of
approximately HK$371.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2021. Basic loss per share attributable to owners of the Company
for the Year was approximately HKO0.67 cents (31 December 2021:
basis loss of approximately HK2.32 cents).

Economy Review

In 2022, COVID-19 illness was less severe and less deadly
compared to 2020 and 2021. Contributing factors to these positive
developments are unprecedented advances in vaccine technology
that allow for rapid updates to protect against new strains, growing
population immunity to the virus and a more effective treatment
and vaccines, oral antivirals, and home test kits.

For 2022 as a whole, Hong Kong's economy contracted by 3.5%
and the unemployment rate fell to approximately 3.5% in the fourth
quarter. On a year-on-year basis, total exports of goods recorded
accelerated growth in the fourth quarter due to the further revival of
import demand in many major markets, especially China. However,
exports of services plunged further as inbound tourism remained
at standstill. Exports and imports trade were adversely affected
by the weaker performance of the global economy and various
external factors. Under the threat of COVID-19 and austere labor
market conditions, domestic demand also decreased and private
consumption expenditure stayed subdued, reflecting pessimistic
local economic and consumer sentiment.

In line with real economy, the local stock market dropped
significant as investor sentiment getting worse. In the first half
year, the Hang Seng Index opened at 23,510 points and closed at
21,859 points at the end the first half. In the second half year, Hang
Seng Index start to drop by 2,078 points to 19,781 points at the
end of 2022. The Federal Reserve raised the fed funds rate during
its monetary policy meetings in 2022, pushing borrowing costs to
the highest level since 2007, and in line with market expectations.
Hong Kong’s property market remains resilient, but uncertainty
persists.
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

2022 was a year of ups and downs for Chinese offshore bond
market. Global inflation is high. The Federal Reserve and the
European Central Bank have entered the path raising interest rates.
In the context of increasingly constrained issuance of US dollars
and euros, China offshore Renminbi bonds have price advantages
and can avoid interest rate risks. The urban investment sectors
has risen against the trend and has become the backbones of the
issuance, and the China offshore bond market has ushered in a
new batch of urban investment companies. During the year, the
local governments continue to explore offshore bond issuance. The
Guangdong Provincial Government, the Hainan Provincial have
issued a total of RMB12 billion in offshore bonds. This is the first
time for a Chinese local government to issue the blue bonds and
sustainable development bonds in the international capital market.

Business Review

Brokerage & margin financing

The business are carried on through Instant Achieve Limited (“IAL"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, which in turn owned
100% equity interest in Central Wealth Securities Investment
Limited (“CWSI”) and Central Wealth Futures Limited (“CWF”).
CWSI and CWF are incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability
and are carrying on business in type 1 (dealing in securities), type
2 (dealing in futures contracts), type 4 (advising on securities) and
type 5 (advising on futures contracts) regulated activities under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance.

During the Year, the commission income from securities and futures
dealing was approximately HK$8.5 million (31 December 2021:
HK$11.2 million) and the interest income from the securities margin
financing was approximately HK$13.1 million (31 December
2021: HK$12.7 million). The Group will maintain its prudent credit
policy and risk management approach with a view to achieve a
sustainable business environment.

Debt capital market business

The business are carried on through IAL, which in turn owned
100% equity interest in CWSI. CWSI is incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability and is carrying on business in type 1 (dealing
in securities) and type 4 (advising on securities) regulated activities
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

In recognition of the robust potential in the China’s US dollar
bonds market, the Group have established a foothold and teamed
up to participate as a major player in this growing market in 2017.
The market is principally classified into, by industry four business
segments, namely industrial, property development, financial and
urban construction investment (“Chengtou”).
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis
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During the Year, the Group has so far participated in 45 debt
issues with roles of joint global coordinator, joint book-runner,
joint lead manager or placing agent with an aggregate issue size
of approximately US$42.3 billion as at 31 December 2022. The
debts are issued through either private or public offerings with
coupon rates ranging from 1.9% to 9.3% per annum. According
to the information published on Bloomberg 2022, CWSI ranked as
the 31st the manager in the issuance of offshore China bonds for
the Year based on the issuance volume credited to each involved
party. During the Year, the provision of debt capital market services
has recorded a commission income from placing of approximately
HK$165.3 million. The Group will continue to strengthen our
services in the coming period and broaden our service range with
an aim to provide one stop service to our customers.

Asset management

The business are carried on through IAL, which in turn owned
100% equity interest in Central Wealth Asset Management
Limited (“CWAM”). CWAM is incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability and is carrying on business in type 4 (advising on
securities) and type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

During the Year, the Group engages in the provision of investment
management services on diversified and comprehensive investment
products including private funds and discretionary accounts to
individual, corporate and institutional clients. Currently, our
investment fund, namely the Central Wealth Investment Fund SPC
(“CWIF”), mainly focus on the China’s bond market as it is the
second largest bond market in the world and offers attractive yield
opportunities. It is expected that the market will continue to grow
and transform with the global economy. The Group believes it will
become more capital market oriented and open to foreign investors.
Besides, CWAM also served as an investment advisor for clients
providing advice on equity fund, fixed income funds and other
investment products.

About Central Wealth Investment Fund SPC

CWIF is a segregated portfolio company incorporated in Cayman
Islands with limited liabilities in June 2018. CWIF has 8 segregated
portfolios as at 31 December 2022. The investment objectives
of CWIF are to achieve a high rate of return through capital
appreciation and seek fixed income returns with a high degree of
security.

Investment strategies

The investment manager seeks to achieve the investment objectives
by investing in fixed income financial tools, fixed income
instruments traded in the bond market, bond funds, money market
funds, bond initial offerings, structured products and derivatives.
The portfolios now mainly invest in offshore US dollar denominated
bonds issued by Chinese institutions. The investment manager will
seek to diversify the investment portfolios when opportunities arise.

6 Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited FiZEEZERER A 7

RAEAFEE REBEZSABEZRBAAN  BE
BREETE A B r‘gaﬁmﬁ/\ﬁm%ﬁﬁ%f‘%}
BASTHER BT R E-—_F+-A=+—H
E’J/ﬁ%é’*ﬁ%ﬁ&%ﬁtmzﬂ ETL R SERNEBRB
A RHEBEEET BEENTEF1.9% 2
93%  MBEZBEEANR _ZE__FHENEH
BRI ASL2EINETE PEFHFR
ZKEFE%F%%E;—EPIﬁ%’»méfi/\qﬂﬁﬁu“
Zt U -RAFE REEKEEAT SRS
CY= iHﬂZ)\%’J165,300,000/§TE AEER
—HAM BB SRR RIBEARGEHE 5 F
ABEPRE—WMARS-

EEERE

BRARBEBAEET ERFPERETR
BERAB ([MEEEEE )2 RE - EE
EEERRBBEMALZAERAR  AIETTE
HFREEGHIETE4E (REFEHRERL) LF
R (RHEEEE)RREEI2EB-

RAFE AEERBAA CEREBEBERTFIR
HEZET2EREER (BELEES R
ZARPINKREEERBK - B BMANKE
% (Bl Central Wealth Investment Fund SPC
([CWIF]) ) ZE2ZENTFRESMS JIEF
BEFMBAMARE-_KESFMS TRESH
BRER o Hgk - BN S BEELR REZERIK
sl o REEBEMSEBBRERAMIZTE
WHBRTFEIMEEE - WIN FEBEEEERETH
TREEMN ARPARELAS BATkaEES:
MHEMSEERRERHEER -

@ 7 Central Wealth Investment Fund SPC

CWIFA—BRZ-E-—N\GFARAEHREHSET
MR 2B EREER AR CWIFRZF

T+ A=t+—BEE/EABIIEELESE -
cwa&ﬁEhH%ﬁ§$ﬁﬁiﬁ%@ﬁ$
ERASERENET WL -

REXRMK
REZLEYNEEREBATRESH TR RE
Zm E'i“ffZlmHﬁZ I,ﬂ\ BEEL %™
LES BFREAAEE GREERMITATA
Eﬁﬁ&%ﬁE%O&%ﬁ,%ﬂé\fﬁix&é{ﬁf\qﬂéﬁﬁﬁ
BITHNBFEX T EESF ERBLRE KE
REREREZ TIEREAS -



Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

Fund growth

As at 31 December 2022, the assets under management have
reached approximately US$277.1 million (31 December 2021:
US$787.1 million). The management and performance fee income
is approximately HK$34.6 million during the Year.

Financial Investments and Services

Financial investments and trading

During the Year, the Hang Seng Index starts at 23,510 points and
closed at 19,781 points. The local stock market performs badly,
the Group recorded unrealized losses on equity, fund and debt
investments at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
HK$49.4 million and realised gains on disposal of equity, fund and
debt investments at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
HK$5.4 million. The interest income from debt investments
amounted to approximately HK$6.3 million.

Money lending business

The Group’s Money lending business is conducted through an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, namely Top
Billion Finance Limited (“Top Billion”), which is a company
incorporated in Hong Kong and holds a valid Money Lender
License under the Money Lenders Ordinance (Cap. 163 of the law
of Hong Kong).

Top Billion is principally engaged in carrying out money lending
business by providing secured and unsecured loans to its
customers. Through the business and social networks of the senior
management of the Company, Top Billion would identity and be
referred potential customers which would corporate and individual
customers with personal wealth. Top Billion would then assess the
credit and risk of such potential customers based on its credit policy
and procedure.

Top Billion is operated and managed by members of its senior
management and under the supervision of the executive directors
of the Company, who have years of experience in accounting,
corporate development and/or financial management and have
overseen the business operations of Top Billion.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 14 outstanding loans
to individual customers with an aggregate principal amount of
approximately HK$421,611,400 and interest rates ranging from
5% to 7% and 3 outstanding loans to corporate customers with an
aggregate principal amount of approximately HK$70,500,000 and
interest rates of 7% (collectively, the “Outstanding Loans”). The
Company has complied with the relevant requirements set out in
Chapter 14 and Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with regard to the
grant and renewal of the Outstanding Loans. The Company does not
have any agreement, arrangement, understanding or undertaking
(whether formal or informal and whether express or implied) with a
connected person of the Company with respect to the grant of the
Outstanding Loans.
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis

FEwE MEE B kT

Further details of the Outstanding Loans are set out below:

RERER ZE—FFHBHIWMT

Principal
amount  Interest rate Tenure  Security
Borrower fBERA rEEH kS HR R
(Note 1) (HK$'000)  (per annum) (months)
(&) (FET) (8%) (A)
(Note 2)
(P aE2)
Individual customers AP
A A 10,000 7% 60  Residential and commercial property in Hong Kong
7,000 7% 60 BEANEEREEME
5,000 7% 60
50,000 7% 60
B B 19,700 7% 24 Residential property in Hong Kong
BRENEEME
C C 15,000 7% 24 Residential property in PRC
RESEEYE
D D 16,000 7% 24 Listed securities in Hong Kong
BENMLTMES
E E 75,000 7% 36 Commercial property in PRC
REIMNEENE
F F 75,000 7% 36 Residential and commercial property in PRC
hENEEREEDE
G G 75,000 7% 36 Equity interests in unlisted PRC entities
FEMREEBNRAES
H H 8,000 7% 24 Listed securities in Hong Kong
BENLWES
I [ 65,000 7% 36 Residential and commercial property in Hong Kong
BAENEERBARYE
J J 623.7 5% 12 -
K K 287.7 5% 12 -
Corporate customers NCIE S
L L 50,000 7% 24 -
M M 12,500 7% 24 Listed securities in Hong Kong
BEH EWES
N N 8,000 7% 24 Residential property in Hong Kong
BENETME
Total et
17 17 492,111.4
Notes: i
1. The borrowers are independent of the Company and its connected ERABB IR ARBLEBEAL-
persons.
2. The principal and interest of the loans are repayable upon the ZEEFNAe KA SBNREEAERE -

maturity date.
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

The majority of the existing customers were referred by executive
Directors of the Company. The executive Directors have good
business and social networks and would refer potential customers
to Top Billon Finance Limited (“Top Billion”) from time to time.
However, Top Billion does not rule out walk-in customers so long
as they can fulfil the due diligence and relevant credit assessment
requirements.

Benchmarks for Customers
Top Billion has the following benchmarks for its customers:

Corporate customers

No specific requirement that the prospective borrower should
be from a particular industry.

The prospective borrower can have its principal business
operation in Hong Kong, China or overseas.

No minimum amount of revenue/profit required to be
generated by the prospective borrower in the last 12 months.

The prospective borrower should normally have an sufficient
amount of assets enough to cover the loan principal when
they make the loan application. The assets can be in the form
of property, securities, or equity interest in an entity.

The prospective borrower should have a minimum operation
history of three years.

No litigation or winding up records.

Individual customers

The prospective borrower should be over the age of 18.

No requirement on the prospective borrower’s occupation or
minimum monthly income.

The prospective borrower should normally have an sufficient
amount of assets enough to cover the loan principal when
they make the loan application. The assets can be in the form
of property, securities, or equity interest in an entity.

No criminal or bankruptcy records.
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis

FEwE MEE B kT

Credit Policy and Procedures

Top Billon has set up a credit committee (the “Credit Committee”)
which comprises two executive Directors of the Company to
monitor the credit policy and procedures of the money lending
business.

The executive Directors who are members of the Credit Committee
are responsible for overseeing the money lending business. The
financial controller of the Company is responsible for working out
the preliminary terms of the proposed loan and is engaged in the
post-loan monitoring.

Pre-approval due diligence

Top Billion will take reasonable steps to establish the potential
customer’s true and full identity, financial situation and borrowing
objectives. The potential customer will be required to provide
further details of its personal and/or corporate background, proof
of repayment capabilities, proposed loan amount and repayment
method, proof of property ownership (if applicable) and bank
account and/or financial portfolio statements. Preliminary
verification of background information (bankruptcy check and
litigation check) of the potential customers will be performed.

Assessment and loan approval

For material lending transactions which constitute 5% or more
of the total assets of the Group, credit review procedures will be
conducted in accordance with the standard commercial practices
for the purpose of determining the ability of applicants in meeting
their financial obligations. Applications must in the first place,
satisfy certain credit requirements before being further processed
and reviewed by the senior management of Top Billion. Applicants
will be required to submit all information necessary for conducting
the reviews as requested by Top Billion, which includes but is not
limited to updated financial statements, assets and investment
portfolios of the customer.

The Credit Committee will review the due diligence results and the
loan proposal, together with the supporting documents, and then
finalise the loan amount and terms. Loan applications are assessed
and approved on a case-by-case basis in accordance with: (i)
the background of the applicant and whether the applicant has a
satisfactory record or any litigation record; (ii) whether the applicant
is a professional or has goodwill in his/her respective business or
social circles; (iii) whether the applicant has a good loan repayment
or credit record; and (iv) whether the applicant is a repeated
customer. If the outcome of the aforesaid background and financial
assessment is to the satisfaction of the Credit Committee, a meeting
will be arranged between the potential customer, a member of
the Credit Committee and/or the financial controller. During the
meeting, the financial controller will work out the preliminary terms
of the proposed loan.
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

Apart from the provision of collateral, various other factors such
as whether the borrowers are repeated customers, their credibility,
the amount of the loan, the tenure of the loan, etc. will also
be taken into consideration when assessing the credit risk and
determining the loan terms (including interest rates). The lending
rate should commensurate with the level of credit risk. The
stronger the financial position that the borrower exhibits and/or
the better the market conditions, the lower the applicable lending
rate. Other factors such as the cost of funds, interest rate charged
by competitors, the repayment history and length of business
relationship will also be considered. Interest rates are determined
with reference to risk factors, tenure of loan, borrowing record and
interest rates offered by competitors.

Risk control

In order to safeguard the repayment of loans and minimise default
risks, all of the existing customers are either business contacts
or referrals from the executive Directors which have either good
standings or long-term business relationships with the Group. In
this way, the Group can limit its risk exposure.

Loan documentation

If a loan application has been approved, the financial controller
will then issue a standard loan agreement with the terms agreed by
both parties for the applicant to sign. The applicant should provide
his/her identity documentation and address proof to the financial
controller for him to prepare the loan agreement.

Loan disbursement

The financial controller will not disburse any funds to the customer
until Top Billion is in receipt of the drawdown notice attached
to the loan agreement signed by the customer. Funds are usually
disbursed by crossed or personal cheques deposited to the
customers’ designated bank accounts as per his/her drawdown
notice. Loan disbursement in cash is not allowed, which not only
minimises fraud or theft but also protects the Group from being
inadvertently involved in money laundering activities.

Post-loan monitoring

Interim and annual review(s) will be performed by Top Billion.
Updated background and financial information of the borrower
will be obtained and assessed by the Credit Committee. This helps
Top Billion to promptly discover potential problems that may be
detrimental to timely repayment and allows Top Billion to adjust
collection strategies.

Loan renewal

When considering whether to renew a loan, the Group will
take into consideration (i) the repayment or credit record of the
borrower; and (ii) the borrower’s up-to-date financial strength and
background. If the above factors are not satisfactory and/or the
Directors are of the view that the risks and benefits are not properly
balanced, such loan would not be renewed upon maturity.
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis
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Early repayment

Early repayment of the loan is possible if the customer provides not
less than one business day’s prior written notice. On the date upon
which such early repayment is to be made, the customer shall repay
the outstanding loan and all other monies outstanding (including
accrued interests) thereunder.

Repayment overdue monitoring

The accounts staff will check if each loan repayment is made on
schedule. If any repayment is overdue for more than two days, the
accounts staff will bring the issue to the attention of the financial
controller, and he will make verbal reminders to the relevant
customer. In the event repayment is overdue for more than seven
days after the verbal reminders, the financial controller will then
issue an overdue notice to the customer on record. If repayment
remains overdue for more than 14 days, the financial controller
may issue further reminders to the customer and/or consider other
actions.

Loan collection

The Group monitors the repayment of all loans based on each of
the respective repayment dates of each of the individual loans.
The Group reserves the right to require the customer to repay the
loan and other monies outstanding (including accrued interests)
on demand at any time during the term of the loan by giving the
customer not less than one business day’s prior written notice. On
the date upon which such repayment is to be made, the customer
shall pay to the Group the outstanding loan and all other monies
outstanding (including accrued interests) thereunder.

If the loan could not be collected within a reasonable time
thereafter, depending on the specific circumstances of the customer,
the Credit Committee will decide on instigating legal action(s)
to enforce the Group’s rights under the loan. Mediation may
also be considered to reach an agreement with the customer on
repayment. If the customer fails to perform their obligations under
the mediation agreement, the Credit Committee may decide on
applying to the court for mandatory enforcement.

In case where all potential means of recovery have been exhausted,
the Credit Committee will determine whether to write off the
problem loan as a bad loan. All loan write-offs must be approved
by the Board of the Company.
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2022, the annual interest rate of loan ranged
from 5% to 7% (31 December 2021: 5% to 7%) and the term
ranged from 1 to 3 years (31 December 2021: 1 to 3 years). The
total gross loan receivable amounted to approximately HK$433.4
million (31 December 2021: HK$517.2 million). The Group’s five
largest gross loan receivables amounted to approximately HK$332.2
million or 76.6 % (31 December 2021: HK$361.9 million or
70.0%) of the Group’s total gross loan receivables. During the
Year, the interest income from the money lending business was
approximately HK31.9 million. The Group will continue to maintain
its prudent credit policy and risk management approach with a
view to achieve a sound financial management and sustainable
business environment.

During the Year, the Group assessed and estimated credit loss
allowances (“ECLs”) for the loan receivables according to the
requirements of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard (“HKFRS”)
9 issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The Group had recognized ECLs on loan receivables from the
money lending business amounting to approximately HK$13.2
million (31 December 2021: HK$22.9 million. The models and
assumptions adopted by the management in estimating ECLs are
related to the future macroeconomic conditions and borrowers’
creditworthiness (e.g. The likelihood of default by customers.)
Such assessment has taken regard of quantitative and qualitative
historical information and also, the forward looking analysis.
Related disclosures on loan from the money lending business are
included in Notes 11 to the consolidated financial statement.

The Chinese medicine clinics business

In light of the pessimistic atmosphere in the global stock market
and the challenging environment in the Chinese bond market,
the Group has diversified its investment in the Chinese medical
clinic sector in order to complement the existing businesses.
On 21 February 2022, the Group acquired 51% of the equity
interests in Youbeiqgin (Guangdong) Medical Technology Co., Ltd.*
(“Guangdong Youbeiqin”)
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis
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Subsequent to the Group’s acquisition of 51% equity interests of
Guangdong Youbeiqin in February 2022, Guangdong Youbeiqin and
its partners (the “Partners”) entered into cooperation agreements
to form new companies kicking off the operation of the Chinese
medicine clinics in the PRC. According to the cooperation
agreements, Guangdong Youbeigin holds 51% of the equity interest
of each such companies and the Partners are responsible for the
operation and the provision of finance of such companies. During
the Year, Guangdong Youbeiqin has not injected capital and has
not appointed any directors to the clinics. Guangdong Youbeiqin
is solely engaged in the trading of sales of products with the
Partners for the sales income. In view of that, on the advice of the
independent PRC lawyer legal opinion, supplemental confirmations
are signed by the Partners to confirm that Guangdong Youbeiqin
would not be entitled to the profits of the clinics and would not
be liable for liabilities of them for the Year. As such, Guangdong
Youbeqin is considered not to have control nor influence over
the clinics as described under HKFRS 10 ‘Consolidated Financial
Statements” and the results of such clinics are not consolidated with
the financial results of the Group for he Year in accordance with the
applicable accounting standards.

The livestreaming e-commerce business

As parts of diversification strategy, the Group also started to invest
and participate in the new rapid growing livestreaming e-commerce
business in the PRC.

On 19 December 2022, the Company (purchaser) and Il Z (>
¥4 E R A (Shenzhen Central Wealth Enterprises Consultancy
Co., Ltd*), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company entered into
a sale and purchase agreement with Z 28 (Li Minjun*) and # &
7 (Luo Yanfang*) (vendors). Pursuant to which the purchaser agreed
to purchase 51% of equity interests in M ZHEXCEEFRA
A] (Hangzhou Yiyou Culture Media Co., Ltd.*) (targeted company)
for a total consideration of RMB145,600,000, which shall be settled
by cash and/or allotment and issue of the consideration shares. The
targeted company is a company established in the PRC with limited
liability and is principally engaged in internet live broadcasting,
KOL incubation and marketing and sales business in the PRC. The
targeted company has exclusive e-commerce contract with Sister
Sihuo “PUAZAMHRHL”, a reputable artiste, celebrity and live
broadcaster in the PRC. The details of which were disclosed in the
announcements of the Company dated 19 December 2022 and 20
December 2022.
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

On 28 December 2022, the Group entered into a cooperation
framework agreement with F BUE R B R 2 7] (Zhonggi Media
Technology Co., Ltd.*) (“Zhongqi Media Technology”), pursuant
to which the joint venture company named HIERIEE QR
(Central Wealth Zhongqi Joint Venture Co., Ltd*) (the “JV”) will
be established in Shenzhen City, the PRC. The JV will be owned
beneficially as to 60% by the Group and as to the balance of 40%
by Zhongqi Media Technology. The JV will be engaged principally
in the celebrity branding, that is to help Chinese artists and Internet
celebrities to develop customised clothing brands, in order to
establish our position as a business benchmark in the live streaming
industry and develop online and offline businesses.

In January 2023, the JV was incorporated in the PRC and finally in
name as ER XXt ORI BR A A].

On 2 January 2023, the Group entered into a strategic cooperation
framework agreement (the “Cooperation Framework Agreement”)
with Guangzhou Jiafan F-commerce Co., Ltd.* (EMZLE TR
%8 R A 7)) (“Guangzhou Jiafan”) for the joint investment in the
establishment of a limited liability company (the “Controlled Joint
Venture Company”). Guangzhou Jiafan, a company established in
the PRC, is a member of the GIALEN Business Group and has the
ability to rely on its parent company to carry out the research and
development, production, channel sales and other work of beauty
products under the joint venture company. On 16 January 2023,
the Controlled Joint Venture Company was incorporated in the PRC
and will be engaged principally in the celebrity branding, that is
to customize beauty and skin care brands for Internet celebrities
and artists, in order to establish the Group’s position as a business
benchmark in the live streaming industry and develop online and
offline businesses, and immediately realize brand incubation from
zero to one.

Prospects

In 2023, the global economy is in a better shape at the start of the
second half of 2022, thanks to a combination of mass vaccinations
and the flexible fiscal policies from major economies. The
government and business units have made continuous adaptation
of economic activity to subdued mobility. Economic is more likely
to pick up in the coming year. China and Hong Kong are expected
to benefit further from reopening, strong corporate earnings and
performance.
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Chinese bond market is expected to continue facing rising cost of
US interest, defaults especially in the stressed property sector. The
Directors will continue to actively seek opportunities to expand
the business scope of the Group. During the Year, the Group has
diversified its business into Chinese medicine clinic business.
According to the documents issued by the state since the outbreak
of the COVID-19 pandemic, the current policies for the medical
sector encourage the vigorous development of traditional Chinese
medicine (TCM) service institutions and clinics, and their chain
operations. TCM was seen to reduce the risk of mild or moderate
disease progressing to severe disease, and may shorten the time
for viral clearance, resolution of clinical symptoms and length of
hospital stay. With a unique advantage and role in the fight against
COVID-19, it is expected that TCM will gain more recognition and
trust from the public in future.

The Group has also diversified its business into livestreaming
e-commerce business. Local living service is the rapidest growth
business in the live streaming industry after live streaming
e-commerce. In the future, Shenzhen Central Wealth will base itself
in Shenzhen to develop related live streaming e commerce business
especially in, building up customized clothing, beauty and skin
care brands for Internet celebrities and artists.

Besides, we shall not overlook the downside risks due to the
expectation of US interest hike and the threat of geopolitical tension
which continue to cloud the global economic recovery. Also the
Group will evaluate the economic impact of a weaker yuan as
China may use it as the countermeasure to US tariffs.

In light of these macroeconomic challenges, the Group will
continue to stay alert, but positive, to pursue its prudent investment
strategy in developing its existing and new businesses.

Financial Review

The Group for the Year recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$277.8 million as compared to the revenue of approximately
HK$243.8 million last year. The Group’s revenue principally
comprised the interest income from money lending business of
approximately HK$31.9 million, commission income from placing
of approximately HK$165.3 million, commission income from
securities and futures dealing of approximately HK$8.5 million,
interest income from securities margin financing of approximately
HK$13.1 million and management fee and performance fee income
from asset management business of approximately HK$34.6 million.

The Group recorded other comprehensive income of approximately
HK$60.8 million for the Year (31 December 2021: other
comprehensive income of HK$204.5 million). It was mainly
attributable to an increase in fair value of approximately
HK$65.6 million on equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income (31 December 2021: an increase
in fair value of HK$201.8 million). As at 31 December 2022, the
Group's net asset value was approximately HK$1,105.7 million (31
December 2021: HK$1,122.4 million).
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

Major Customers

During the Year, the Group’s largest customer and five largest
customers accounted for approximately 8.13% and 28.35%
respectively of the Group’s total revenue. As far as the Directors
are aware, none of Directors, their associates or any shareholders
who owned more than 5% of the Company’s share capital had any
interest in the five largest customers of the Group.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the Year, the Group generally financed its operation
with internally generated cash flow, overdrafts, bank and other
borrowings and other fund-raising activities. The Group’s cash
and bank balances as at 31 December 2022 were approximately
HK$62.4 million (31 December 2021: HK$116.4 million).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had any bank overdrafts of
approximately HK$21.6 million (31 December 2021: HK$ Nil),
notes payable of HK$42.4 million (31 December 2021: HK$50
million), interest-bearing bank borrowings of approximately
HK$39.5 million (31 December 2021: HK$71.7 million) and
interest-bearing other borrowings of approximately HK$123.1
million (31 December 2021: HK$268.1 million).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s current ratio was
approximately 1.50 times (31 December 2021: 1.32 times)
based on current assets of approximately HK$1,416.3 million
(31 December 2021: HK$924.6 million) and current liabilities of
approximately HK$945.2 million (31 December 2021: HK$699.3
million). No capital commitments outstanding at 31 December
2022 not provided for in the Group’s financial statements (31
December 2021: HK$ Nil). The Group also had no other contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil).

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s gearing ratio was
approximately 20.5% (31 December 2021: 34.7%). Gearing ratio
equals total borrowings divided by net asset value as at the end
of the reporting period. The total borrowings of approximately
HK$226.6 million includes bank and other borrowings, bank
overdraft and notes payable.

The Group’s bank balance, borrowings and interest payment are
mainly denominated in Hong Kong and US dollars. Most of the
Group's revenue are made in Hong Kong dollars and US dollars.
Therefore, the exchange risks that the Group is exposed to are
insignificant.

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy
liquidity position throughout the Year. The Group strives to reduce
exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit assessments
and evaluations of the financial status of its customers. To manage
liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the Group’s liquidity
position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group's assets,
liabilities and other commitments can meet its funding requirements
from time to time.
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis

TEmE N ERE R wm MO

Significant Investments

As at 31 December 2022, the Group maintained a portfolio of
investments including equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, equity and fund investments at fair value
through profit or loss and debt investments at fair value through
profit or loss with total carrying amount of approximately HK$457.3
million. The Directors consider that equity investments, debt
investments and fund investments with a market value that account
for more than 5% of the Group’s net assets at the reporting date as
significant investments. The details of the equity investments, debt
investments and fund investments which accounted for more than
5% of the Group’s net assets as at 31 December 2022 is set out
below:

BEARE

RZEBE-_—_F+-_A=+—H AEEFHEEE
B{E#4)457,300,0008 T2 I EHE (BIEE B
HE2mBEZEAFEYERZRAIEE - BiRE
m& FEIIEZEARESKEUARIBIRIE
HEAFEIEZEBEE) EEHEMERAK
WEAHROAEEEEFEBA%WRAKE -
BREREREGHRERABEARE - FER_ZF
T oFt A=+ B AREBEE FEBBE5%
MBRAEE BHRRELESRENFBHY W
T

Significant Investments EXRE
Percentage of
shareholding in Percentage of the Fair value gains/
investments held by investments to total Fair value of Carrying value of (losses) of ~ Realised gain/(losses)
Stock the Group as at  assets of the Group as investments as at ts as at tsasat  for the period ended
Code  Name of the investees 31 December 2022  at 31 December 2022 31 December 2022 31 December 2022 31 December 2022 31 December 2022
R-B--f R-B-—f R-B-—f BE-®-CF
TZR=1-H tZR=1-A R-Bzzf R-Bzzf tZR=1-A tZR=1-H
FREAREZ REMEASRE tZA=t-H t=B=t-A REDTE LEEzBER
RGRE REUGER REEAL EEAEZEAL REZNTE REZEEE Wi/ (F8) Wi/ (E8)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TR TET
Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
FRAMEARERA AR RARE
412 Shandong Hi-Speed Holdings Group Limited (formerly known 1.09% 18.20% 373,839 99,943 273,896 49,980
as China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited)
12 LIEREREEERAR
(METPELREREREERRAR)
Others 0.74% 0.89% 18,234 88,515 (70,281) (578)
2ty
Total 392,073 188,458 203,615 49,402
&
Equity and fund investments at fair value through profit or loss #
BRRRRATEIRZRAREERE"
Total N/A 1.73% 35,508 65,115 (29,607) (1,126)
@zt TER
Debt investments at fair value through profit or loss *
FRRRRATEIIR ERRE:
Total N/A 1.44% 29,677 49,473 (19,796) -
@zt TER
Grand total 457,258 303,046 154,212 48,276
agat
: None of the equity and fund investments account for more than 5% ¢ RIEAEERARELREG A EEHZ &
of the Group’s net assets at the reporting date. EFEES% A E o
* None of the debt investments account for more than 5% of the * R & AR E R B AL E 2 B EFES%

Group’s net assets at the reporting date.
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

Performance and prospects of the investees

1.

Shandong Hi-Speed Holdings Group Limited (formerly known
as China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited)
(“Shandong Hi-Speed”)

Shandong Hi-Speed together with its subsidiaries (the
“Shandong Hi-Speed Group”) are principally engaged in the
trading business of financial leasing, leasing assets as well as
other related leasing properties, and provision of spot trading
platform and marketing and consulting services related to the
above businesses.

As mentioned in its interim report for the six months ended
30 June 2022, the Shandong Hi-Speed Group recorded a
total revenue and other income of approximately HK$1,245.4
million for the six months ended 30 June 2022. The Shandong
Hi-Speed Group has reported a profit of approximately
HK$75.9 million attributable to owners of Shandong Hi-
Speed. The basic and diluted earnings per share were
both HK$1.26 cents. As at 30 June 2022, the unaudited
consolidated net asset of the Shandong Hi-Speed Group
was approximately HK$17,220.4 million. Shandong Hi-
Speed Group has not declared an interim dividend for the six
months ended 30 June 2022.

Shandong Hi-Speed Group actively developed in line with
the China’s industrial policies, explored different high-quality
investment opportunities in the countries along the “Belt
and Road” Initiative and the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area. As disclosed in its interim report, it has
reached a strategic cooperation agreement with Shandong
Hi-Speed Hubei Development Co., Ltd. The two parties also
made use of their respective advantages and resources to
achieve mutual benefit and common development, carried
out cooperation based on market-oriented operation methods.

The Company has confidence that Shandong Hi-Speed Group
can further improve its asset-liability structure and the stability
of profitability. The management of the Group considers the
investment in Shandong Hi-Speed is for long term purpose.
However, the Group would not rule out the possibility of
realising the investments from time to time where to do so
is to be in the best interests of the Group or where the terms
on which such realisation to be particularly favorable to the
Group.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group held 67,818,000
shares of Shandong Hi-Speed. Shandong Hi-Speed closed at
HK$5.72.

TR E MEE BT

REHR2REARAR

1.

W =R BB IR 22 7] (BT A 1L R &
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FEHREHE HEAERHEMAREE
EMENEERR RHREXZFE MU
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T —FXNAZFTBHIEANEARSNRE
48 5E K E b Ug A 491,245,400,0007%8 JT °
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75,900,000 7T Bl E A R EE RN
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis

FEwE MEE B kT

Material acquisitions and disposals

(i)

(i)

20

On 6 October 2022, Morley Way Limited (purchaser), a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company entered into the
conditional sales and purchase agreement with Lin Zherui,
(vendor A). Pursuant to which the vendor A agreed to sell
and the purchaser agreed to acquire 25% of the total issued
capital of Senworth Limited (targeted company) for a total
consideration of HK$84.0 million, of which HK$30.0 million
shall be settled in cash and the remaining balance of HK$54
million by issuing promissory note. The targeted company
holds 90% equity interests in Tianshun property, a company
established in the PRC with limited liability. Tianshun property
in turn holds 50% equity interests in Guangda property,
a company established in the PRC with limited liability.
Guangda property holds the land use rights of the property.
In view of the possibility of future long-term appreciation in
value of the property, the Directors believe that the investment
in the sales shares would be beneficial to the Group. The
details of which were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 6 October 2022.

Subsequent to the Group acquisition of 25% equity interests
of the targeted company in October 2022, the purchaser
entered into the conditional sales and purchase agreement
with Chen Yihao (vendor B) on 4 November 2022. Pursuant
to which the vendor B agreed to sell and the purchaser agreed
to acquire 24% of the total issued capital of the targeted
company for a total consideration of HK$80.6 million, of
which HK$30.0 million shall be settled in cash and the
remaining balance of HK$50.6 million by issuing promissory
note. After the completion of this transaction, the Group
will hold 49% of equity interests in aggregate in the targeted
company accordingly.

On 4 November 2022, the Central Wealth infrastructure
Investment Limited (vendor), a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company entered into the conditional sales and
purchase agreement with each of the purchasers respectively,
namely Lau Wei Suen, Jenny, Tan Qiyuan and Luo Zhenli
(purchasers). Pursuant to which, the vendor agreed to sell and
the purchasers agreed to acquire an aggregate of 65,356,000
ordinary shares of Shandong Hi-Speed Holdings Group
Limited for a total consideration of HK$169.3 million. The
Company intends to use as to approximately HK$89.1 million
of the net proceeds towards repayment of indebtedness of
the Group and as to the remaining balance of approximately
HK$79.9 million of the net proceeds towards general working
capital of the Group. The details of which were disclosed in
the announcements of the Company dated 4 November 2022
and 15 February 2023 and circular of the Company dated 20
January 2023.
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

(i) On 19 December 2022, the Company (purchaser) and &I
FRERE A B MR QA (Shenzhen Central Wealth Enterprises
Consultancy Co., Ltd*), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
Z 28 (Li Minjun*) and Z Y75 (Luo Yanfang*) (vendors).
Pursuant to which the purchaser agreed to purchase 51% of
equity interests in M HEXMELEHREFR 2 (Hangzhou
Yiyou Culture Media Co., Ltd.*) (targeted company) for a total
consideration of RMB145,600,000, which shall be settled by
cash and/or allotment and issue of the consideration shares.
The targeted company is a company established in the PRC
with limited liability and is principally engaged in internet
live broadcasting, KOL incubation and marketing and sales
business in the PRC. The targeted company has exclusive
e-commerce contract with Sister Sihuo “ P9 N fHIHIRMIK”,
a reputable artiste, celebrity and live broadcaster in the PRC.
The details of which were disclosed in the announcements
of the Company dated 19 December 2022 and 20 December
2022.

Details of Charges on Assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had pledged certain listed
equity investments of approximately HK$18.2 million (31
December 2021: HK$40.4 million) to secure the other borrowings.

Employment, Training and Development

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 130 employees.
The Group is committed to staff training and development and
structured training programs for all employees. Remuneration
packages are maintained at a competitive level and reviewed on a
periodic basis. Bonuses and share options are awarded to certain
employees according to individual performance and industry
practice.

TR E MEE BT

iy RZEBE-_—F+_A+NAB AxRA(EH)
RARRBIz2EWBRRIFINRELER
HERRFEETRBENBEWS (BH)FIN
EEmE B BEHAEREBEWEMRMNS
BXLBEERRAE (BERATE)M51% K
@K BAEARE145,600,0007T  #5 LA
We K SR ETRERDEN-B
EARA—BRABRKINERAA £
DRAPENEEEERE BABLEARE
HNMHEES - BIZARHEPBEMEZEA -
BAEREREEAHESE P A HEE KB
KT EBREFEH -BEFBERENRE
AR AZE-_—_F+_At+hBEZ
T _F+-_A-FTHZRA%-

EEEAFSE

R-EBE-_—F+_-_A=+—8B AE£EEDEHE
T R AIZ B #918,200,0008 70 (Z T~ —4F
+ = A=+— 8 :40,400,0007 7T ) LA #& (& H 1th
BEE-

BE- - FIRER

R —F+-_A=+—H AEBEHEF130
FZREE-AREERHIRELIEIEEE T AR
BEEREFIGS AEEEFZARFHZH
BF BT BETRF - AEBREENETZ
TERRRENIEGGL T A TIRETCL KIERRHE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 £33 21



Report of the Directors

i%é

The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries during the year consisted of
securities and futures dealing business, trading of debts and equity
investments and money lending business.

Business Review

A review of the Group’s business during the year, which includes
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the
Group, particulars of important events affecting the Group that
have occurred since the end of the year ended 31 December
2022, an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business, an analysis of the Group’s performance using financial
key performance indicators and discussion on the Company’s
environmental policies and performances and the relationships with
its key stakeholders, are included in the “Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate Governance
Report” and “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this
annual report. The review forms part of this directors’ report.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 and
the financial position of the Group at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 89 to 232.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year.

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited
financial statements, is set out below. This summary does not form
part of the audited financial statements.
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Results

Revenue

WA

(Loss)/profit before income tax
Income tax expense

BEGHA (BR) /&5
R

(Loss)/profit for the year AER(BR) /&M
Assets and liabilities

Total assets BEAE

Total liabilities Elck

Net assets EEFE

2022

:g: -
HK$'000
TR
277,840
(102,652)
2,738)

(105,390)

2022
“E-C
HK$'000
TR
2,053,900
948,160

1,105,740

Report of the Directors

=+ A
BEEeWE
E
Year ended 31 December
B2+t-A=1+-HLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018
“E--F ZEBE-EF ZEBE-hE ZEBE-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TR TR
243,841 669,850 947,744 174,454
(369,459) 35,385 248,519 (58,875)
(1,807) (7,627) (40,132) (8,186)
(371,266) 27,758 208,387 (67,061)
EEHEE
As at 31 December
R+=ZA=+-H
2021 2020 2019 2018
“E--% CZE-Bf CZE-Nf CZE-N\E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERT TER TER
1,828,312 2,552,480 2,427,162 2,890,899
705,903 1,275,206 1,211,815 1,042,077
1,122,409 1,277,274 1,215,347 1,848,822
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Report of the Directors
EXgWmE

Share Capital
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital are set out in
note 35 to the financial statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed

Securities of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2022, the Company had no reserves available
for cash distribution and distribution in specie. In addition, the
Company’s share premium account and capital reserve, with an
aggregate balance of approximately HK$4,772,894,000 may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The aggregate revenue during the year attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers was 28.35% of the Group’s total revenue, of
which 8.13% was made to the largest customer.

There was no single supplier that contributed to 10% or more of the
Group’s total purchase during the year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their close
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
had any beneficial interest in the above customer or supplier.
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Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report are as follows:

Executive directors:

Mr. Chen Xiaodong

Mr. Li Jing (appointed on 9 December 2022)
Ms. Chen Jingxian

Mr. Wang Jun (resigned on 6 June 2022)

Mr. Yu Qingrui

Ms. Song Caini

Mr. Chen Hongjin

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong

Mr. Wu Ming

Ms. Li Meifeng (appointed on 8 March 2023)

Mr. Liu Hongwei (resigned on 22 December 2022)

Mr. Lin Guoyan (appointed on 22 December 2022 and
resigned on 8 March 2023)

Pursuant to the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws, Mr. Chen
Xiaodong, Ms. Chen Jingxian, Mr. Wu Ming and Ms. Li Meifeng
shall retire at the 2023 annual general meeting (the “2023 AGM”)
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the said
meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from each of the independent non-executive directors of the
Company and the Company still considers them to be independent
as at the date of this report pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

Directors’ Biographies
Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on
pages 62 to 64 of the annual report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of Mr. Chen Xiaodong, Mr. Li Jing, Ms. Chen Jingxian, Mr. Yu
Qingrui, Ms. Song Caini and Mr. Chen Hongjin has a service
contract with the Company without any fixed term.

Each of Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong, Mr. Wu Ming and Ms. Li Meifeng has
been appointed for a fixed term of one year.

Report of the Directors
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All directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the annual general meeting in accordance with the bye-laws of the
Company.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment, other than statutory compensation.

Indemnity of Directors

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of the
Company is currently in force and was in force throughout the year.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

Directors” Remuneration

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s
board of directors with reference to directors” duties, responsibilities
and performance and the results of the Group.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,

Arrangements or Contracts

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”,
no director nor a connected entity of a director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.

Equity-linked Agreements

Other than the share option schemes of the Company as disclosed
under the paragraph headed “Share Option Schemes” in this
directors’ report and note 38 to the financial statements, no equity-
linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements
that will or may result in the Company issuing shares were entered
into by the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the
year.
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Share Option Schemes

The Company currently operates share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
(including but not limited to the directors and employees of the
Group) who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Details of the Company’s share option schemes are set out in note
38 to the financial statements.

After the expiry of the old share option scheme on 27 August 2013,
the Company adopted a new share option scheme on 27 September
2013 in order to provide incentives and rewards to the eligible
participants.

At the 2022 annual general meeting of the Company, the scheme
mandate limit was refreshed and approved by the then shareholders
such that the total number of shares which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of all share options to be granted under the share
option scheme and any other share option scheme(s) as may
from time to time be adopted by the Company must not exceed
1,596,965,046 shares. As at the date of this report, the total number
of shares available for issue under the share option scheme of the
Company was 2,709,655,046 shares, representing approximately
16.63% of the issued share capital of the Company.

The number of options available for grant under the mandate of
the share option scheme as at 1 January 2022 and 31 December
2022 were 160,075,046 and 155,565,046 respectively. There is no
service provider sublimit under the share option scheme.
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A summary of the movements of the share option schemes of the RZARFER AN F 2 ERET SIS BBMOT
Company during the year is set out as follows:

Weighted average closing
Number of share price of the Company's
Number of share ~ Number of share ~ Number of share ~ Number of share ~options outstanding Exercise price of  shares immediately before
Narme or category options outstanding at options granted ~~ options exercised  options cancelled at Date of grant of Exercise period of share options the exercise dates
of participant 1 January 2022 during the Year® during the Year during the Year®™ 31 December 2022 share options share options (HKS per share) (HKS per share)
i S 3
it b 2 tA=t-8 BEAEAMAALE
-B-REAfE  WAFEREH REEEGRN REEEZEN HAfTEZ BRETRE  ROONETHRTE
SRERANEN ZBREHE BREHE® BhRRE BREEAY BREHE RIERERA BREGRAR (8hk#Ex) (SRER)
Director
i3
Chen Xiaodong 159,600,000 - - - 159,600,000 05/05/2021 05/05/2021 - 04/05/2023 00172 -
RER “3--FRfER ZF--FRARAZ
“2-ZERARA
- 159,600,000 - - 159,600,000 20/6/2022 20/06/2022 - 19/06/2024 0024 -
CECCERACTE CECIFRACTRE
ZRRERATAR
159,600,000 159,600,000 - - 319,200,000
Yu Qingrui 159,600,000 - - - 159,600,000 05/05/2021 05/05/2021 - 04/05/2023 00172 -
REH CEC-5RFEE ZZC-FRARAE
“2-ZERAMA
- 159,600,000 - - 159,600,000 20/6/2022 20/06/2022 - 19/06/2024 0.024 -
ZECZERAZTE CECIFRAZTEE
“RRERATAA
159,600,000 159,600,000 - - 319,200,000
Wu Ming 15,890,000 - - - 15,890,000 05/05/2021 05/05/2021 - 04/05/2023 00172 -
2% Z3--FEfEE ZF--FEARAZ
“R-ZERARA
15,890,000 - - - 15,890,000
Chen Jingxian - 159,600,000 - - 159,600,000 20/6/2022 20/06/2022 - 19/06/2024 0024 -
RER CECCERACTR CECCERACTEE
“RMERATAR
- 159,600,000 - - 159,600,000
Song Caini - 159,600,000 - - 159,600,000 20/6/2022 20/06/2022 - 19/06/2024 0024 -
RRE CECCERACTE CESIFRACTRE
ZRoMERATAR
- 159,600,000 - - 159,600,000
Other employee
AfeER
In aggregate 159,600,000 - - - 159,600,000 05/05/2021 05/05/2021 - 04/05/2023 0.0172 -
ait “3--FRfER ZFC-FRARAZ
“RCCFRAMA
- 803,000,000 (324,200,000 - 478,600,000 20/6/2022 20/06/2022 - 19/06/2024 0024 0.091
CECZERACTE CRCCERACTRE
ZRIRERATAR
159,600,000 803,000,000 (324,200,000 - 638,400,000
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Weighted average closing
Number of share price of the Company's
Number of share Number of share Number of share Number of share  options outstanding Exercise price of  shares immediately before
Narme or category options outstanding at options granted ~ options exercised  options cancelled at  Date of grant of Exercise period of share options the exercise dates
of participant 1 January 2022 during the Year® during the Year during the Year®™ 31 December 2022 share options share options” (HKS$ per share) (HKS per share)
i i
ks 2 t=R=t-R EEAEAMAALT
-B-REAGE REEERIH REEEGRN REFEZEN HAfTEZ BREGRE  ROOIETSRTE
SRERAAEN ZBREHE BRERRY BREHE BRERAC BRERE RABREEA BREGRAE (SR#R) (BRER)
Service providers
RBAES
In aggregate 623,000,000 - - - 623,000,000 05/05/2021 05/05/2021 - 04/05/2023 0.0172 -
A3 I-FRAER ZTC-FEARAE
—2-ZERARA
623,000,000 - - - 623,000,000
Consultants
Ef
In aggregate 319,200,000 - - - 319,200,000 05/05/2021 05/05/2021 - 04/05/2023 00172 -
A% “3C-FRAREA ZEC-FRARRE
“2-ZERARA
- 155,560,000 - (155,560,000) - 200062022 2010612022 - 19/06/2024 - -
ZECCERRCTRE CEIIFAACTEE
ZECRERATAR
319,200,000 155,560,000 - (155,560,000) 319,200,000
Total 1,436,890,000 1,596,960,000 (324,200,000 (155,560,000) 2,554,090,000
&3t
Notes: i

(1) The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until (1) BREZEBHARLABEEZTFEHFAR
the commencement of the exercise period. Rk

(2)  The closing price of the Company’s Shares immediately before the (2) Z—ZT-—&F XA-+B REERHBREDS

date of grant of share options on 20 June 2022 was HK$0.024. AR Bl B9 W T & 50,0248 7T ©

(3)  On 2 August 2022, 155,560,000 share options granted to 1 consultant ~ (3) ZZE_ZFN\AZH RERQFIEREEHN
of the Group have been cancelled in accordance with the terms of GERIEFAEE—ZEMA55,560,00017 8 I
the share option scheme of the Company. For further details, please BEFdH E—THBEFL2EARAR-_Z ==
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 2 August 2022. FNAZBzZRA%-

(4)  The number of Shares that may be issued in respect of options granted ~ (4) BEZ_T_Z_F+_A=+—HIEFE HEE

under the Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December BB R HE AT B BB AR I = Al B 31T 2 IR
2022 divided by the weighted average number of Shares in issue for BEBRUEBE T -_—_F+=_A=+—HLFE
the year ended 31 December 2022 was 0.1. BT Z T #R0.1 -
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Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2022, the interests of the directors of the
Company in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)), as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

(1) Long position in ordinary shares of the Company

EFRAQAARDRABRE 28
fm

R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H ARA=EFNA
ARBEHRBERG (& RLEHFLKBE KD
([BHELBEEN]DEXVB) R EEBAELR
RRRIRBESFLKBHEKROIEISHEATUNET
2ERMzED SREEMBTAERENTE
FRXPEZESTR| ([ZESFE])AENE ARQF
MBS pT R T

1 RELXFEBRZHR

Percentage* of

Number of the Company’s

ordinary shares issued share

Name of director Capacity interested capital

BEEZEN (LHEAQFSBRT

EEsR 8% EBERHE RAE D+

Chen Xiaodong Beneficial owner 108,886,246 0.67%

PREE R ERBEBA

* The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares * BOLEEA SN S BREE RUARA

interested divided by the number of the Company’s issued
shares as at 31 December 2022.

30  Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited FES£ @R HR A A

AN E-_—F+_A=+—HEZHTEK
MEE -



(2) Long position in underlying shares of the Company -
physically settled unlisted equity derivatives

Report of the Directors
EEgWE

2 RAELFEBEROZHFRE —BUEEHXL
TRATETR

Percentage* of
the underlying
shares over
the Company’s
issued share

Number of
underlying shares
in respect of the
share options

Name of director Capacity granted capital
iRt BRE B BR A0
Fir% 1 AE BA RATE BT

BEEnA g R E BRAET DL *

Chen Xiaodong Beneficial owner 319,200,000 2.00%

PR B2 3R EREAA

Chen Jingxian Beneficial owner 159,600,000 1.00%

ek &5 168 EmlEA A

Yu Qingrui Beneficial owner 319,200,000 2.00%

RE E=EA A

Song Caini Beneficial owner 159,600,000 1.00%

KK EmlEA A

Wu Ming Beneficial owner 15,890,000 0.10%

R4 E=EA A

Details of the share options granted by the Company are set
out under the section “Share Option Schemes” in this report.

* The percentage represents the number of underlying shares
interested divided by the number of the Company’s issued
shares as at 31 December 2022.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he/she was deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or which were required to be entered into the register kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

BRAARARME L BEREZFBEHIR AR
& [RERHERT &) —#he

* BB EENEBERME B BRIAA
NARZBE-_—F+-_A=+—HBEE1T
&R -

Br EXXRTIEETEE N R _E::¢+—H_+—
B ARAIZEEREBITRABMERARD
iEﬂﬁwi@(E%ﬁﬁ%&%f%%%ﬂh@
2R HEAROCXESFTHEETNREES X
%fﬂﬂﬂ%XVﬂ%7&%8“*ﬁEﬂ@ﬂi A&
BTz R IA R (BIEREES RBPE G
Z&?ﬁm&ﬁ%&*ﬁ%ﬁZ% SEKE)
HBHARR B IRIEEH M H &G 5E35206M
FEZEEMPBEBEEZESTAREAEMNS A
NI NPT 2 BEZR SR B o
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures
Save as disclosed under the headings “Directors’ Interests in
Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company” and “Share Option
Schemes” above and in the share option scheme disclosures in
note 38 to the financial statements, at no time during the year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company granted to any of the directors or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2022 the following parties had interests of
5% or more in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO, or as the Company is aware:

EERERODEES ZER

bt [EERARA R RAABRD 2 xS

K [EEIRER & BT AR HRERM 38R
BREFIRBEEMMBEEN RAFEAR
BEATMEFIAREZTALBRBIRARFTL
REAEBEARRRBROHESFME AN S
Z PR R F BT E AT R F AR o LS

AREHEAEFE QAW ET L EM R B
FEFANTMEMEABEEAZSERN-

TERRASD RS RAABR G
2

RZEBEZ—F+_A=+—H BEARQRARE
HFREEERANEIEREFE 2 ELMATH -
FBEARTHE TS FRARA 25
BRI AR HE A 5% s A £ 2 R

Long position in ordinary shares of the Company REQAREBRZHR
Percentage* of
Number of the Company’s
Name of substantial ordinary shares issued share
shareholder Capacity Note interested capital
BEREEZ MWBERRSHT
TERRER 514 B EE ZERHE RAE 7+
Xu Ke Beneficial owner 1,125,701,571 6.91%
Gl ERERA
Interests held by a controlled (1) 2,000,000,000 12.27%
corporation
BBIEFRRRE 2R
3,125,701,571 19.18%
Dragon Regal Holdings Limited Beneficial owner (1) 2,000,000,000 12.27%
EREEGRAF ERERA
Golden Horse Hong Kong Beneficial owner ) 881,971,316 5.41%
Investment Limited
EHEBREFGRAR BEEEAA
Future World Holdings Limited Interests held by a controlled (2) 881,971,316 5.41%

RFM RIZERBR A F
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Notes:

(1) These shares were held by Dragon Regal Holdings Limited (“Dragon
Regal”) which was controlled by Xu Ke. Accordingly, Xu Ke was
deemed to be interested in these 2,000,000,000 shares held by
Dragon Regal under Part XV of the SFO.

(2)  The issued share capital of Golden Horse Hong Kong Investment
Limited was wholly owned by Future World Holdings Limited.
Accordingly, Future World Holdings Limited was deemed to be
interested in these shares of the Company which was deemed to be
interested by Golden Horse Hong Kong Investment Limited pursuant
to part XV of the SFO.

* The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares interested
divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at
31 December 2022.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, no person, other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in
the section headed “Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company” above, had an interest or a short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this report, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float.

Directors’ Interests in a Competing Business

During the year and up to the date of this report, no director is
considered to have interests in a business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses
of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

As far as the directors are aware, during the year and up to the date
of this report, the Group has complied in material respects with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on its
business and operations.

Corporate Governance

Details of the corporate governance practices of the Company are
set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in
this annual report.
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Auditors

Ernst & Young has resigned as the auditor of the Company with
effect from 15 November 2019 as Ernst & Young and the Company
could not reach a consensus on the audit service fee regarding the
annual audit for the financial year ended 31 December 2019. The
Board, with the recommendation from the Audit Committee, has
resolved to appoint Moore Stephens CPA Limited (“Moore”) as the
new auditor of the Company with effect from 15 November 2019 to
fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of Ernst & Young.

Moore will hold office until the conclusion of the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting. Moore will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for reappointment. A resolution for the reappointment
of Moore as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other change of the
Company’s auditors in any of the preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board
Chen Xiaodong
Chairman

Hong Kong
29 March 2023
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Corporate Governance Re

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board recognizes the importance of good corporate governance
to the Company’s healthy growth and has devoted considerable
efforts to formulating and implementing corporate governance
practices appropriate to the Company’s needs.

Throughout the year under review, the Company has complied
with the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. Key
corporate governance principles and practices of the Company are
summarized below.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board

Direction and control of Company business are vested in the
Board. The Board establishes policies, strategies and plans for the
development of Company business, and provides leadership in the
creation of value for shareholders. All directors have carried out
their duties in good faith, in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, taking decisions objectively and acting in the interests
of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the Company,
including approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, risk management and internal control
systems, material transactions (particularly those involving conflict
of interests), financial information, appointment of directors and
other significant financial and operational matters.

All directors have timely access to all relevant information as well
as the advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior
management of the Company, with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures and all applicable laws and regulations are followed.
Any director may request independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expenses, upon
reasonable request made to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are led by the Executive Committee and senior
management of the Company. The Board has delegated a schedule
of responsibilities to these officers for implementing Board
decisions. The Board reviews the delegated functions and work
tasks regularly. The aforesaid officers have to obtain Board approval
prior to entering any significant transactions.
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Board Composition
The composition of the Board and the Board Committees as at the
date of this annual report is as follows:

Board of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman of the Board)

Mr. Li Jing (Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Chen Jingxian (Vice Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Yu Qingrui

Ms. Song Caini

Mr. Chen Hongjin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong

Mr. Wu Ming

Ms. Li Meifeng

Executive Committee

Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman)
Mr. Li Jing

Ms. Chen Jingxian

Mr. Yu Qingrui

Ms. Song Caini

Mr. Chen Hongjin

Audit Committee

Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong (Chairman)
Mr. Wu Ming

Ms. Li Meifeng

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Xiaodong

Ms. Li Meifeng

Nomination Committee

Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman)
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong

Ms. Li Meifeng

The biographical details of the directors and the relationships
among the members of the Board are disclosed in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
in this annual report.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board at all times
met the requirement of the Listing Rules of having a minimum of
three independent non-executive directors (representing at least
one-third of the Board) with one of them possessing appropriate
professional qualifications and accounting and related financial
management expertise.

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of
skills and experience appropriate for the business requirement
and objectives of the Group and for the exercise of independent
judgement.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all independent non-executive directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules.

The Company has implementable and effective mechanism to
ensure independent views and inputs are available to the Board,
with the following key features: (i) the Nomination Committee
is established with clear terms of reference to identify suitable
candidates, including independent non-executive directors, for
appointment as Directors; (ii) the Nomination Committee will
assess annually the independence of all independent non-executive
directors; and (iii) the Directors are entitled to seek, at the Group’s
expense, independent professional advice reasonably necessary
for discharging their duties as Directors. During the year ended 31
December 2022, the Board has reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the mechanism and considered it to be effective.

Chairman and Chief Executive

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. To achieve clear division of
responsibilities between the management of the Board and day-to-
day management of the business and hence to ensure balance of
power and authority, there is separation of duties for the Chairman
and Chief Executive of the Company.

Currently, the positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
are held by Mr. Chen Xiaodong and Mr. Li Jing respectively. The
Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning and leadership of the Board, whereas the Chief
Executive Officer focuses on the Company’s business development
and daily management and operations generally. The respective
responsibilities between the Chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer have been clearly established and set out in
writing. The separation of roles would ensure a balance of power
and authority, and strengthen the governance function and business
development of the Group.

Corporate Governance Refort
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The executive directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Chen
Xiaodong, Mr. Li Jing, Ms. Chen Jingxian, Mr. Yu Qingrui, Ms.
Song Caini and Mr. Chen Hongjin, have not been appointed for a
specific term but they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the Company’s annual general meeting in accordance
with the Company’s bye-laws. The Company has also issued a letter
of appointment to each of the independent non-executive directors
of the Company for a term of 1 year.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws, Mr.
Chen Xiaodong, Ms. Chen Jingxian, Mr. Wu Ming and Ms. Li
Meifeng shall retire at the 2023 AGM and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the 2023 AGM. The Board
recommended the re-election of the above retiring directors at the
2023 AGM.

Training and Continuing Development of Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company.

All directors of the Company receive a comprehensive induction
on his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of
the business and operations of the Group and full awareness of
director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant statutory requirements. Such induction is normally
supplemented with visits to the Group’s key plant sites and/or
meetings with the senior management of the Company.

The existing directors are continually updated with legal and
regulatory developments, business and market changes to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Continuing briefings and professional development for directors are
arranged whenever necessary. In addition, reading materials on new
or changes to salient laws and regulations applicable to the Group
are provided to the directors from time to time for their studying
and reference. All directors are encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, Mr. Chen Xiaodong, Mr.
Li Jing, Ms. Chen Jingxian, Mr. Wang Jun, Mr. Yu Qingrui, Ms. Song
Caini, Mr. Chen Hongjin, Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong, Mr. Wu Ming, Mr.
Liu Hongwei and Mr. Lin Guoyan received briefings conducted
by the Company Secretary on corporate governance and updates
on the Listing Rules amendments. In addition, the Company has
provided reading materials on regulatory updates to all the directors
for their reference and studying.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding
directors” dealings in the Company’s securities (the “Own Code”) on
terms no less exacting than the Model Code. Specific enquiry has
been made of all the Company’s directors and all have confirmed
that they have complied with the required standards set out in
the Model Code and the Own Code throughout the period from 1
January 2022 to the date of this report.

The Company has also established written guidelines on terms
no less exacting than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by relevant employees of the
Group who are considered to be likely to possess inside information
in relation to the Company or its securities. No incident of non-
compliance with the Employees Written Guidelines was noted by
the Company.

In case the Company is aware of any restricted period for dealings
in the Company’s securities, the Company will notify its directors
and relevant employees in advance.

Directors’ Attendance Records

The attendance records of each director at the regular Board
meetings, Board Committee meetings and the general meetings of
the Company held during the year ended 31 December 2022 is set
out below:
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Mr. Chen Xiaodong RERTL 7 - - 44 171 1/
Mr. Wang Jun (note 1) TERE () 317 - - - n n
Mr. Li Jing (note 2) TR (M) 117 - - - - -
Ms. Chen Jingxian (note 3) Rt (f3) 717 - - - 171 0/1
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Notes:

1. Mr. Wang Jun resigned as the chief executive officer and an executive
director of the Company with effect from 6 June 2022. During the
period from 1 January 2022 up to his resignation, 3 Board meetings,
1 Annual General Meeting and 1 Special General Meeting were held.

2. Mr Li Jing was appointed as the chief executive officer and an
executive director of the Company on 9 December 2022. During
the period from his appointment up to 31 December 2022, 1 Board
meeting were held.

3. Ms. Chen Jingxian was appointed as the vice chairman and an
executive director of the Company on 21 February 2022. During
the period from her appointment up to 31 December 2022, 7 Board
meetings were held.

4. Ms. Song Caini was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 21 February 2022. During the period from her
appointment up to 31 December 2022, 7 Board meetings were held.

5. Mr. Chen Hongjin was appointed as an executive director of
the Company on 21 February 2022. During the period from his
appointment up to 31 December 2022, 7 Board meetings were held.

6. Mr. Liu Hongwei resigned as an independent non-executive director
of the Company with effect from 22 December 2022. During the
period from 1 January 2022 up to his resignation, 6 Board meetings,
2 Audit Committee Meetings, 4 Remuneration Committee Meetings,
4 Nomination Committee Meetings, 1T Annual General Meeting and 1
Special General Meeting were held.

7. Mr. Lin Guoyan was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 22 December 2022. During the period
from his appointment up to 31 December 2022, no Board meeting
was held.

In addition, Mr. Chen Xiaodong, the chairman of the Board, held a

meeting with the independent non-executive directors without the
presence of executive directors during the year under review.
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BOARD COMMITTEES AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has established four Board committees, namely, the
Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees have been established with defined written terms
of reference, which are available on the Stock Exchange’s
website (www.hkexnews.hk) and on the Company’s website
(www.cwghl.com) (except for the written terms of reference of
the Executive Committee which is available to shareholders upon
request). All the Board committees should report to the Board on
their decisions or recommendations made.

Executive Committee

Currently, the Executive Committee comprises all the six executive
directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Chen Xiaodong, Ms. Chen
Jingxian, Mr. Li Jing, Mr. Yu Qingrui, Ms. Song Caini and Mr. Chen
Hongjin. The Chairman of the Board, Mr. Chen Xiaodong, also
acts as the Chairman of this committee. The Executive Committee
operates as a general management committee under the direct
authority of the Board to increase the efficiency for business
decision making. It monitors the execution of the Company’s
strategic plans and operations of all business units of the Group
and discusses and makes decisions on matters relating to the
management and day-to-day operations of the Group.

Audit Committee

Currently, the Audit Committee comprises of three members,
namely, Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong (Chairman), Mr. Wu Ming and Ms.
Li Meifeng, all of whom are independent non-executive directors.
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong possesses the appropriate accounting and
financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of
the Listing Rules. None of the members of the Audit Committee is a
former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to (i) review the
financial statements and reports and consider any significant or
unusual items raised by the financial officers of the Group or
external auditors before submission to the Board; (ii) review and
monitor the relationship with the external auditors by referencing
to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors; and
(iii) review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee
performed the following works:

- Reviewed and discussed the Company’s financial statements,
results announcements and reports for the year ended 31
December 2021 and for the six months ended 30 June 2022,
the financial reporting, the related accounting principles,
practices and compliance procedures of the Company;

- Discussed and recommended the re-appointment of external
auditors; and

- Reviewed the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group.

The external auditors were invited to attend the Audit Committee
meetings without the presence of executive directors to discuss with
the Audit Committee issues arising from the audit and financial
reporting matters. The Company’s annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2022 have also been reviewed by the Audit
Committee. There is no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee regarding the re-appointment of external auditors.

Remuneration Committee

Currently, the Remuneration Committee comprises of three
members, namely, Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong (Chairman), Mr. Chen
Xiaodong and Ms. Li Meifeng, majority of whom are independent
non-executive directors.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee are to (i) make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure and the remuneration packages of directors and
senior management (i.e. the model described in the code provision
E.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code is adopted); (ii) review and approve
performance-based remuneration by referencing to corporate goals
and objectives; (iii) establish a formal and transparent procedures
for developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure
that no director or any of his/her associates will participate in
deciding his/her own remuneration, the remuneration of which will
be determined with reference to the performance of the individual
and the Group as well as market practice and conditions; and (iv)
review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes under
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Remuneration
Committee has performed the following works:

- Reviewed and discussed the remuneration policy and
structure and the remuneration packages of the directors and
senior management of the Group;

- Discussed and recommended the grant of share options of the
Company;

- Discussed and recommended the remuneration regarding the
appointment of Mr. Li Jing as an executive director and chief
executive officer of the Company; and

- Discussed and recommended the remuneration regarding
the appointment of Mr. Lin Guoyan as an independent non-
executive director of the Company.

The senior management of the Company are the directors of the
Company. Details of the remuneration of each director of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note
8 to the financial statements contained in this annual report.

Nomination Committee

Currently, the Nomination Committee comprises three members,
namely, Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman), Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong and
Ms. Li Meifeng, majority of whom are independent non-executive
directors.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are to (i) review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and recommend
any changes to the Board; (ii) identify qualified and suitable
individuals to become Board members and select and make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; (iii) assess the independence of
independent non-executive directors of the Company, having
regard to the requirements under the Listing Rules; and (iv) make
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to
the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors in particular, the Chairman and the Chief
Executive of the Company.
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The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at Board level as
an essential element in maintaining the Company’s competitive
advantage. Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy has been adopted
by the Company, the Nomination Committee is responsible for
reviewing annually the structure, size and composition of the Board
and where appropriate, make recommendations on changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and
to ensure that the Board maintains a balanced diverse profile. In
relation to reviewing and assessing the Board composition, the
Nomination Committee is committed to diversity at all levels and
will consider a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and regional and industry
experience.

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives that are relevant to the Company’s business growth
and is also committed to ensuring that recruitment and selection
practices at all levels (from the Board downwards) are appropriately
structured so that a diverse range of candidates are considered. The
Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement the
Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to time
to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made
towards achieving those objectives.

As of the date of this annual report, 3 of 9 of the Company’s
Directors are female. As of 31 December 2022, the Group had a
total of 56 female staff out of 130 employees, representing 43%
of the employees of the Group. The Group will continue to take
opportunities to increase the proportion of female board members
and workforce over time as and when suitable candidates are
identified. Further details on the gender ratio of the Group together
with relevant data can be found in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report of the Company. The Board and the Nomination
Committee have reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of
the board diversity policy and considered it to be effective for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

The Company has also adopted the Director Nomination Policy
which sets out the criteria and process and the Board succession
planning considerations in relation to nomination and appointment
of directors of the Company, and aims to ensure that the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the Company and the continuity of the Board and
appropriate leadership at Board level.
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The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the
suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed
candidate, including but not limited to the following: character
and integrity; qualifications including professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy; diversity in all aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age (18 years or above), cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service; requirements of independent non-
executive directors on the Board and independence of the proposed
independent non-executive directors in accordance with the Listing
Rules; and commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
committee(s) of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Nomination
Committee performed the following works:

- Reviewed the Board Diversity Policy, the structure, size and
composition of the Board to ensure that it has a balance
of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the
requirements for the business of the Group;

- Considered and recommended the re-election of the retiring
directors standing for re-election at the 2022 annual general
meeting of the Company;

- Assessed the independence of independent non-executive
directors of the Company; and

—  Considered and recommended the appointments of (i) Ms.
Chen Jingxian as the vice chairman of the Board and an
executive director of the Company; (ii) Ms. Song Caini and
Mr. Chen Hongjin as executive directors of the Company;
(iii) Mr. Li Jing as the chief executive officer and an executive
director of the Company; and (iv) Mr. Lin Guoyan as an
independent non-executive director of the Company.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board has reviewed
the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of directors
and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance
of the Model Code and Employees Written Guidelines, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2022.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory requirements.
The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness on
an ongoing basis. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Board is fully responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take to achieve the
Company’s strategic objectives, and for establishing and maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the Group's
assets.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in overseeing the design
and implementation of the risk management and internal control
systems. The Company has developed and adopted different risk
management procedures and guidelines. Self-evaluation would be
conducted each year to confirm that the Company has properly
complied with the risk management and internal control policy.
All divisions would conduct internal control assessment to identify
risks factors with potential impact on the Group’s business. The
management would assess the likelihood of risk occurrence,
monitor the progress of risk management and report to the Board
and the Audit Committee on the findings and effectiveness of the
systems.
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The Group has developed its disclosure policy to provide a general
guide to the Company’s directors, officers, senior management and
relevant employees in handling confidential information, monitoring
information disclosure and responding to enquiries.

The Company’s internal audit staff has performed independent
review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems. Key issues such as accounting
practices and all material controls were examined. The relevant
findings and recommendations are provided to the Board and the
Audit Committee.

The Board, as assisted by the Audit Committee and the
management, has reviewed the report from the management and
the internal audit findings, and reviewed the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, including the financial,
operational and compliance controls for the year ended 31
December 2022. The annual review also covered areas on financial
reporting, internal audit function, staff qualification, experiences
and relevant resources. The Board considered that such systems
are adequate and effective and ongoing review of the same nature
would be conducted in subsequent years.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the Company’s financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report. During the
year ended 31 December 2022 the remuneration paid/payable to
the external auditors of the Company, Moore Stephens CPA Limited,
is set out below:
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Remuneration

(HK$)
Nature of Services REME M (BT
Audit services B 2,800,000
Non-audit services (Note) FEFET R (FI3E) 478,000
TOTAL: @t 3,278,000

Note: The non-audit services provided mainly included other assurance and
tax compliance services.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 December 2022, Mr. Szeto Pui Tong,
Patrick, the Company Secretary, has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional trainings to update his skills and knowledge.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which
will enable shareholders and investors to make the best investment
decisions.

The Company maintains a website at “www.cwghl.com” as a
communication platform with shareholders and investors, where
information and updates on the Group’s business operations,
developments and financial information are available for public
access. Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or
requests to the Company using the below contact details:

Address: Unit 1801-2, 18/F, Far East Finance Centre,
No. 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Department of
Investor Relations)

Fax: (852) 2865 4654

Email: info@cwghl.com

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee and, in their
absence, other members of the respective committees, will normally
attend the annual general meeting and other shareholders” meetings
to answer questions.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains regular dialogue with institutional investors and analysts
to keep them posted of the Company’s developments.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholder
meetings, including the election of individual directors. The
Company’s shareholders may convene a special general meeting or
put forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings as follows:

(M

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company at the date of deposit of the
requisition may request the Board to convene a special
general meeting pursuant to Clause 71 of the Company’s
bye-laws by sending a written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary at the Company’s head office in Hong
Kong. The objects of the meeting must be stated in the written
requisition.

Shareholder(s) representing not less than one-twentieth of
the total voting rights at the date of the requisition or not
less than 100 shareholders may put forward a proposal at a
shareholders” meeting, pursuant to the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda by sending a written requisition to the Board or
the Company Secretary at the Company’s head office in Hong
Kong. The proposal should be stated in the written requisition
and such written requisition should be submitted as early
as practicable to enable the Company to make necessary
arrangement (in case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution, not less than six weeks before the meeting; and in
case of any other requisition, not less than one week before
the meeting).

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a
retiring director for election as a director of the Company at
a general meeting, the shareholder (other than the person
to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
general meeting shall send a written notice, duly signed by
the shareholder, of his/her intention to propose such person
for election and also a notice signed by the person to be
proposed of his/her willingness to be elected. These notices
should be lodged at the Company’s head office in Hong Kong,
or the office of the Company’s branch share registrar. The
period for lodgement of such notices shall commence on the
day after the dispatch of the notice of such general meeting
and end 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting.

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders” information may be disclosed as required by

law.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has not
made any changes to its bye-laws. An up-to-date version of the
Company’s bye-laws is also available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.cwghl.com).

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange after each
shareholders” meeting.

POLICIES RELATING TO SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has in place a Shareholders” Communication Policy
to ensure that shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately
addressed. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Company has reviewed the Shareholders” Communication Policy
and considered that the policy was effectively implemented with the
measures as disclosed under paragraphs headed “Communications
with Shareholders and Investors” and “Shareholder Rights”.

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of
dividends. Depending on the financial conditions of the Company
and the Group and the conditions and factors as set out in the
Dividend Policy, dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the
Board during a financial year and any final dividend for a financial
year will be subject to the shareholders” approval.
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Environmental, Social and Governance ReE_o

Scope and Reporting Period

This is the sixth Environmental, Social, and Governance (“ESG”)
report of Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
and collectively with its subsidiaries referred as the “Group”),
highlighting ESG performance, with disclosure reference made to
the ESG Reporting Guide as described in Appendix 27 of the Listing
Rules and Guidance set out by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

The principal activities of the Group are engagement in financial
investments, trading and money lending business. This ESG report
covers the Group’s overall environmental and social performances
of its major business operations in its offices in Hong Kong,
Shenzhen, and Shanghai of the People’s Republic of China (with
a total floor area of 3,367.30 m?), from 1 January 2022 to 31
December 2022, unless otherwise stated. As compared to 2021,
the reporting scope has further included business operations at the
Group's Shenzhen office.

Reporting Principles

The Report is prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” set out in Appendix 27 to
the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange (the “Guide”). The contents
covered herein are in compliance with the provision of “Comply
of Explain” as well as four reporting principles of materiality,
quantitativeness, balance and consistency required in the Guide.

Materiality — Materiality assessments have been carried out to
identify material environmental and social issues that have major
impacts on investors and other stakeholders, the significant
stakeholders, procedures, and results of the engagement of
which are presented in the section “Stakeholder Engagement and
Materiality” in the Report.

Quantitativeness — Key performance indicators (“KPI”s) have been
established, and are measurable and applicable to make valid
comparisons under appropriate conditions; information on the
standards, methodologies, assumptions, and/or calculation tools
used, and sources of conversion factors used, have been disclosed
when applicable.

Balance — The Report presents the Group’s performance during
the Reporting Period in an impartial manner, avoiding choices,
omissions or presentation formats that may unduly influence
readers’ decisions or judgements.

Consistency — Consistent statistical methodologies and presentation
of KPIs have been used to allow meaningful comparisons of related
data over time.
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The Group’s Future Development and
Commitments

With rising emphases on developing sustainably, there comes with
opportunities and risks associated with the environmental and
social discourse. In face of such uncertainty, the Group will actively
adjust its development plans according to the market trends. It
hopes to better manage ESG-related risks in relation to future
business development and operate with high ethical standards.
With a long-term goal of expanding its operations, the Group will
make use of opportunities and avoid risky investments to achieve
an effective while stable business growth.

Sustainability Governance

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s sustainability
strategy and reporting. The sustainability plan of the Group is
developed based on results of ESG Reports and regular reports from
senior management of its subsidiaries, which is reviewed on an
annual basis and adjusted as needed to align with the long-term
business strategy of the Group. Additionally, the Board will also be
evaluating the Group’s progress in achieving the reduction targets
against the baseline year annually, and will be adjusting said targets
based on the situation.

The Chairman’s Statement

Over the past three years, businesses all over the world have been
greatly affected by the Covid-19 pandemic. As the pandemic
begins to subsize, we have learnt the lesson that to withstand
difficult macroeconomic situations, sustainability is the key to
success. At the same time, stakeholders are increasingly nudging
corporations to take sustainability factors into consideration when
doing businesses. As a corporate citizen, the Group recognises
this and continues to make sustainability its operational focus. We
are dedicated to improving our sustainability performance in our
operations. We understand that sustainability governance is the
foundation to a successful operation, these include minimising the
Group’s pollution emissions, promoting equal rights, and offering
more opportunities for all employees.

The Board is, therefore, responsible in setting our strategic direction,
ensuring that our ESG strategy reflects the Group’s values and core
businesses. In the future, the Board will review the progress made
against ESG-related goals to guide the Group in monitoring its ESG
performance.

To better understand the demands and expectations of our
stakeholders, we invite employees, service providers, and clients
to participate in a survey to maintain effective communication,
allowing us to better accommodate their needs.
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Through embedding sustainability in our business concept, we
create greater value for both our stakeholders and society. Without
the contribution of our employees, customers, business partners
and communities, it would not have been possible for us to have
achieved so much.

Looking ahead, to tackle future challenges, we will continue
to drive our sustainability performance and further incorporate
sustainability into our core strategy. We strive to maintain our
market position in offshore US bond business and to manage
upcoming business challenges. In line with upholding the business
sustainability of the Group, we will continue to maintain high
ethical standards, and formulate environmental, economic, and
social strategies to achieve stable and sustainable returns to our
stakeholders.

This report sets out our sustainability practices and approaches
throughout the past year. We hope this report will provide our
stakeholders an overview of our sustainability performance.

Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality

In order to identify the most significant aspects for the Group to
report on for this ESG report, the Group regularly collects views
and discusses ESG matters with stakeholders through a variety of
channels, such as engagement sessions including routine meetings
and annual general meetings. When issues have been identified,
they are discussed as an issue of the corporate culture. The Group
also emphasises on the importance of paying attention to issues and
giving appropriate response to the arising problems. Solutions to
relevant topics are regularly explored on such that relevant issues
can be addressed and resolved.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group has specifically engaged
board members, frontline employees, suppliers, and business
partners to gain further insights on ESG aspects they find material
and relevant challenges that they may induce. A materiality
assessment has then been produced according to the engagement
as follows.
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The Group aims to keep close communication with its stakeholders
for the identified aspects and continue to improve its ESG
performance. The Group also hopes to have better management
on ESG-related risks for future business development. In alignment
with the Group’s vision on sustainability, the business will continue
to operate with high ethical standards and provide sustainable
returns to stakeholders.

Stakeholders” Feedback

The Company welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on its
environmental, social and governance approach and performance.
Please give your suggestions or share your views with the Group via
email at info@cwghl.com.

A. Environmental
A1. Emissions

Due to the nature of the business, the Group’s operations
are office based and their related environmental impact
was very minimal. During the Reporting Period, the
Group has strictly followed all environmental-related
rules and guidance from local and national authorities.
In addition, the Group did not note any cases of
material non-compliance relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharge into water and land, and the
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste as
required by the applicable laws and regulations during
the Reporting Period. These include, but not limited to,
the Environmental Impact Assessment Ordinance and
the Waste Disposal Ordinance.

Al.1 Air Emissions
During the Reporting Period, there was 1 group-
owned passenger car, which contributed to the
emissions of sulphur oxides (“SOx”), nitrogen
oxides (“NOx”), and particulate matters (“PM”)
emission.

See below for the breakdown of 2022 air
emissions, as well as comparisons with last year.
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2022 Emission 2021 Emission

(in kg) (in kg)

B & —E-—F

Type of Air Emission BESRBE R E BERE (TR) HHE(TR)
SOx malty 0.06 0.07
NOx REt 43.59 50.85
PM AR 2.02 2.36

The intensity of air emissions by the Group was
0.02 g of SOx, 12.94 g of NOx, and 0.60 g of PM
per m? of total floor area of the Group’s business
operations.
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A1.2 Greenhouse Gas Emissions

During the Reporting Period, 51.77 tonnes of
carbon dioxide equivalent (tCO,e) greenhouse
gases (“GHG”, mainly carbon dioxide, methane
and nitrous oxide) were emitted from the Group’s
operations. This is a 95.85% decrease from last
year, which is mainly due to additional paper
consumption data collected from the Group’s
Hong Kong office during 2021. When compared
with 2020, the Group’s GHG emissions decreased
by 34.74%.

The intensity of GHG emissions by the Group was
0.02 tCO,e per m? of total office area.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s GHG
emissions were contributed by:

- Scope 1 — Direct Emissions from operations
that are owned by or controlled by the
Group;

—  Scope 2 - “Energy indirect” emissions
resulting from the generation of purchased
or acquired electricity, heating, cooling and
steam consumed within the Group; and

- Scope 3 — All other indirect emissions that
occur outside the Group, including both
upstream and downstream emissions.
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See below for the detail breakdown of 2022 GHG
contributions, as well as comparisons with last

year.

— T - R RBAURM
APBELEEFLEBE TR

— =

2022 Emission

2021 Emission

Scope of GHG Emission Sources (in tCO,e) (in tCO,e)
—E-= —E-—5F
BRE P E
BERBHFREER B RBUR (B_StHREE) (B_S{HEE)
Scope 1
g &N
Direct Emissions Combustion of petrol in 10.64 13.57
group-owned vehicles '
BB SEBERER TS
Scope 2
gE2
Energy Indirect Emission Purchased electricity 2° 31.20 44.32
BETR B BE DL BEEND
Scope 3
EE3
Other Indirect Emissions Paper waste disposal ! 4.15 1,183.95
H A R BERR BEARE
Electricity used for processing 0.04 0.06
fresh water and sewage by
third party handler *
£ =T RIER IR KK
BIKFTRE N
Business air travels ° 5.74 4.82
B M ZEIRTT
Total 51.77 1,246.72
et
Note 1: Emission factors were made reference to Mzt - K= AFHAN BEREF

Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules and their

Note 2:

referred documentation as set out by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, unless stated
otherwise.

According to The Ministry of Ecology and
Environment of People’s Republic of China
(2022): Emission factor of 0.5810 tCO,e/MWh
was used for purchased electricity from the
National Grid of the PRC in 2022; Emission
factor of 0.6101 tCO,e/MWh was used for
purchased electricity from the National Grid of
the PRC in 2021.
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Al.A4.

Environmental, Social and Governance Rejport

Note 3: According to CLP 2021 Sustainability Report
and CLP 2020 Sustainability Report: Emission
factor of 0.39 tCO,e/MWh was used for
purchased electricity from CLP in Hong Kong
in 2022, whereas emission factor of 0.37
tCO,e/MWh was used for purchased electricity
from CLP in Hong Kong in 2021.

Note 4: According to Water Supplies Department
Annual Report 2020/21 and 2019/20, and
Drainage Services Department Sustainability
Report 2020-21 and 2019-20: Emission factor
of 0.428 kgCO,e/m* was used for processed
fresh water in 2022, whereas emissions factor
of 0.21 kgCO,e/m’ was used for processed
sewage in 2022; Emission factor of 0.417
kgCO,e/m* was used for processed fresh water
in 2021, whereas emissions factor of 0.20
kgCO,e/m* was used for processed sewage in
2021.

Note 5: CO, emissions from the Group’s business air
travels were reported in accordance with the
International Civil Aviation Organisation (ICAO)
Carbon Emission Calculator.

Hazardous Waste

During the Reporting Period, 15.00 kg of hardware
waste from printers and electronic equipment
were generated from daily office operation, which
represents a 16.67% decrease from last year.

The intensity was 4.45 g of hazardous waste per
m? of total office area.

Non-hazardous Waste

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s
operations generated approximately 3.81 tonnes
of non-hazardous waste, which mainly included
food waste and packaging, newspaper, and
office wastepaper. Compared to last year, there
is a 15.56% decrease in non-hazardous waste
generation.
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HE M- EE
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See below for the detail breakdown of 2022
non-hazardous waste generation, as well as
comparisons with last year.

TR CFEAZEBERERY
BRIEFZHBAHAFBRET
*.

2022 Amount 2021 Amount

(in kg) (in kg)

—E-— B —F

Type of Non-Hazardous Waste ~ EEEZE Y EFI BE(Tx) BE(FTx)

Domestic/Office Waste EE /W ABERY 3,800.00 4,500.00

Other Types of Wastepaper H b $R 71| BE 4K 5.15 6.15

(Including newspaper, (BFEFRE

office wastepaper, etc.) MARERE)

Total MEt 3,805.15 4,506.15

The intensity was 1.13 kg of non-hazardous waste
per m? of total office area.

Al.5. Measures to Mitigate Emissions

The Group’s operations resulted in insignificant
emissions. The main source of emission was paper
waste from daily office operations, and details of
paper-saving measures will be presented in section
A1.6. In terms of vehicles, the Group prioritises
electric cars when it has to rent one, followed by
fuel efficient ones.

The Group had set the target of achieving a 10%
reduction in emissions intensity by 2031, using
2021 as the baseline year. The Group’s emission
intensity in 2021 was 0.67 tCO,e per m* of total
office area, which means the Group has achieved
a 96.88% reduction in emissions intensity from
the baseline year for this Reporting Period. Based
on these results, the Group may consider re-
evaluating its 10-year target for emissions intensity
reduction, if these decreased emissions figures are
sustained for the next Reporting Period.
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AT.6. Waste Reduction and Initiatives

The Group generated very minimal hazardous
waste from its office operations. They were
generated only when replacement was needed.
Waste lamps were collected by the Management
Office, and waste printing cartridges and other
hardware wastes were sent back to suppliers.
Non-hazardous waste from the Group is collected
and handled by the Management Office. Paper is
used for daily office operations such as documents
printing and deliverables packaging. Paper saving
initiatives are encouraged among employees, such
as adopting double-sided printing and printing
with single-sided used paper. The Group tries to
recycle paper used whenever possible in attempt
to reduce waste disposed of at landfills.

With the principles of “reduce, reuse and
recycle”, the Group centralised stationary supply
to utilise stationaries and avoid wastage. It
returns used cartridges to suppliers and purchases
remanufactured toner cartridges for its multi-
functional devices. Reusable dishes and tableware
instead of disposable ones are used in office.
Other wastes including unneeded computers
and furniture are donated to Caritas Hong Kong
whenever possible.

The Group had set the target of achieving a
10% reduction in hazardous waste and non-
hazardous waste intensity by 2031, using 2021 as
the baseline year. The Group’s hazardous waste
intensity in 2021 was 9.73 g of hazardous waste
per m? of total office area, which means the Group
has achieved a 54.23% reduction in hazardous
waste intensity from the baseline year for this
Reporting Period. Whereas the Group’s non-
hazardous waste intensity in 2021 was 2.44 kg of
non-hazardous waste per m? of total office area,
which means the Group has achieved a 53.62%
reduction in non-hazardous waste intensity from
the baseline year for this Reporting Period. Based
on these results, the Group may consider re-
evaluating its 10-year target for hazardous waste
and non-hazardous waste intensity reduction,
if these decreased hazardous waste and non-
hazardous waste figures are sustained for the next
Reporting Period.
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A2. Use of Resources
The Group has not established policies on the efficient
use of resources. Nevertheless, employees are reminded
of resource conservation practices in offices.

A2.1.

A2.2.

Energy Consumption

A total of 108,693.56 kWh of energy was
consumed by the Group for its operations during
the Reporting Period, which represents a 28.53%
decrease from last year. Electricity was the major
source of energy for the Group, which was used
to power its offices’ lighting, office equipment,
and other miscellaneous items necessary for
maintaining the offices’ daily operations. The rest
of the Group’s energy source was petrol used for
fuelling its passenger car.

See below for the detail breakdown of 2022

A2.

BREM

REE i AR B EBRERERZBER -
A EEEMAESEIRIES
REIR -

#fE

A2.1. BEF HFE

RIREA - AEEE B L ERE
BEJR108,693.56 T LB &L &£ 4F
B 28.53% B HEARNEER
FERERRR AR ANRAZTR
H MAERBREMEZEND

HEZEMROMEMRE X
E@ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁmiﬁﬁﬁ
158 FA Y ©

TR -_ZF__FRER

energy consumption, as well as comparisons with BFEBRAA A M B R F A8
last year.
2022 Direct 2022 Consumption 2021 Direct 2021 Consumption
Type of Energy Source Consumption (in kWh) Consumption (in kWh)
-8 —EB-CF —EB-—F —EB-—fF
gEREA EEERE HFE (T RE) BEEHEE B (T RE)
Electricity 73,245.00 kWh 73,245.00 106,879.00 kWh 106,879.00
=5 FRE T ELBF
Petrol 5,100 litres 35,448.56 4,000 litres 45,196.91
o # #
Total 108,693.56 152,075.91
@it

Note: Conversion factors were referred to IEA Energy
Statistics Manual and 2006 IPCC Guidelines for
National Greenhouse Gas Inventories.

Overall, the Group’s energy use intensity was
32.28 kWh per m? of total office area.

Water Consumption

The Shanghai office consumed 66.47 m* of water
during the Reporting Period, which represents
a 38.00% decrease from last year. The water
intensity for Shanghai office was 0.025 m*/m?
of office area. As water usage of the Hong Kong
office was managed by the office building, water
consumption data for the Hong Kong office was
not available for the Reporting Period.
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A2.4.

Environmental, Social and Governance Refort

Energy Use Efficiency Initiatives

To reduce electricity consumption, employees
are reminded to turn off office lights, computers,
printers, and air conditioners when leaving office.
Energy efficient office equipment are also used
when possible, and older electronic equipment
are to be gradually replaced by more efficient
ones. Air conditioners are defaulted to follow
temperatures as required by relevant regulations
by authorities to reduce energy use.

The Group had set the target of achieving a 10%
reduction in energy use intensity by 2031, using
2021 as the baseline year. The Group’s energy
use intensity in 2021 was 82.23 kWh per m? of
total office area, which means the Group has
achieved a 60.75% reduction in energy use
intensity from the baseline year for this Reporting
Period. Based on these results, the Group may
consider re-evaluating its 10-year target for energy
use intensity reduction, if these decreased energy
consumption figures are sustained for the next
Reporting Period.

Water Use Efficiency Initiatives

Water was supplied and managed by the building
management of all offices and there was no issue
in sourcing water that is fit for purpose. The Group
had set a target of achieving a 5% reduction in
water consumption at its Shanghai office by 2031,
using 2021 as the baseline year. To achieve the
target, flow controllers had been installed in the
office buildings” restrooms. The office has also
been promoting water conservation more actively
to achieve further results.

As mentioned above, the Group had consumed
38.00% less water at its Shanghai office during
the Reporting Period when compared to last year,
which is also the baseline year for comparison.
Based on these results, the Group may consider
re-evaluating its 10-year target for water use
reduction, if these decreased water consumption
figures are sustained for the next Reporting Period.
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A2.5. Packaging Materials
The Group’s operations did not involve any regular
use of packaging materials. When there is such
usage as deemed necessary, cardboard boxes
made by recycled materials are used.

A3. The Environment and Natural Resources
The Group is committed to conducting its business
responsibly, ensuring that its business does not
contribute to significant adverse impact on the
environment and society while bringing sustainable
growth and profit.

A3.1. Significant Impacts of Activities on the Environment
Although the Group’s business does not generate
significant adverse environmental impact as
compared with businesses in other sectors, the
Group is committed to reducing GHG emissions
and preserving natural resources. With electricity
consumption as its main source of GHG emission,
and printing practices as another source of
emission and waste, the Group frequently reminds
employees to practise energy and resources-saving
habits in offices.

Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited FiZ&BZREMRA A

A3.

A2.5. BLEEFTH
AEBEEWE L REMBE
MENTHER - BREERE
FREKVERKNERS -

BERBRER

AEBBNREBEEEMAREER
i (R L SE TG 1 7 RIS AR MG = KO AU Y
R TEHRENMEEEXNEIMNEX

TRIpE-

A31.REZOHRENEATE
BEARBEGHEEMBITER
BRETEHRTELEAT
Mg AEEHANEDRE
REFRRRESAER - AR
BENHERRABERBHERZE
EHRR - MITENSBE A B )
B — KR AEEKERER
ERMAEBRANERZE

&



A4.

Environmental, Social and Governance Rejport

Climate Change

Due to the nature of business as an office-based
company, climate change has not posed significant
impact on the Group’s business operation. As such, the
Group has not formulated any policy regarding climate
change. However, the Group has identified relevant
climate-related risks and assessed their potential
financial impacts. The climate risks identified, their
time horizon, trend, and the potential financial impacts
affecting the Group are shown below.

Climate Risks ~ Time horizon  Trend

RIEER BEEE 8%

IR B REARE

Ad. RIERE1L

HREKEEFEA XEBEARAE
LAUR/AS=] I (7 (i N2 P NS =
BEEENEATE AL A5E
& 7R il JE (L] 8 B RUR E L B BUR »
A AEEE H B RERERR I
FEEBEMBEE - HAEEER
TENDHANRERER  HEEEE -
BEURBEENETEN TR

Potential financial impact

BEMBTE

Physical Risks  Acute Short term Increase
ERRER =i sk il
Chronic Long term Increase
(54 31 Zm
Transition Risks ~ Technology Long term Increase
BERR Bify =H M
Policy and Short to Increase
Legal medium term
BRRAR  PRH Zm
Market Short term Increase
i 5 B
Reputation Short to Increase
medium term
BE PR B

Extreme weather events with increased severity during cyclones,
hurricanes, storm surges and floods can cause supply chain
interruption by bringing damage to local infrastructure,
potential damage to offices and disruption to human resources.

ERIE BE - BRHRAKER SRAREHOBRERE
TEEM AR SRR NERRE R AZERBERE
BRELANER M S SR a

Longer-term shifts in climate patterns can increase capital costs,
operating costs, costs of human resources and increased
insurance premium.

REREANRARCEBMERRA  BEKLK
ANEFRRELRBER -

During the transitional period, the Group expects increased
procurement expenditures to introduce new and alternative
technologies, and the additional cost of adopting/deploying
new practices and processes.

BIRHR - AR ETEEHE EREE R S OA S R R R B
BRI BB TR R FHRA

Implementation of tightened environmental laws, stringent
requirements on climate disclosures and carbon pricing
system increases operating costs.

EnBERNRRL BREXHRENEER
BIREERFNELKA

During the transitional period, the Group might face a decrease
in revenue due to higher environmental requirements of clients,
if no strategy has been set accordingly.

BEHE ARRPHRENEXER HWAKBRAHE
i S 3 DTl R NI

Stakeholders” concerns on climate-related issues of the Group
might dampen the investment sentiment of investors, impacting
the stock price and market capitalisation of the Group, and
hence increasing the liquidity risk.

MaRBEYAREREARRENEETRENREED
RERSE YEASENRERDE EMEMRDERR -
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A4.1. Significant Climate-Related Issues

The Group recognises that extreme weather events
caused by climate change may negatively impact
daily operations and has accordingly prepared
contingency plans for these situations. These
include, but not limited to, work-from-home plans
for employees and insurance against damages
from extreme weather events. However, the Group
has yet to identify any opportunities arising from
climate change.

B. Social
1. Employment and Labour Practices
B1. Employment
B1.1 Employment Figures
The Group continues to invest in capacity
building among local human resource,
adopting best practices, and following local
and national laws. These include, but not

B. &
1.

A4.1. EXRIRIGEFE
AEERHD  Bim KR EHA
EHARESELCEEFE I
HBELEGEYZEBRANE
25t -HABREERRRET
BRM{ QGBI RiRinXE BT
EREBRRER - AT AEE
im A B IR AT ] A |AR B LA R

R o
EEREIER
Bl. (Efg

B1.1 &% &U&

REBETERE AR AT
BRHOGENER KHK
EHE X -—BEEBES
R BEZRERE KB

limited to: BEARR :
Mainland China Hong Kong
PE A ik

J Labour Law Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57)
BENk RRE D (F57%)

J Labour Contract Law Inland Revenue Ordinance (Cap. 112)
BEERE MBI (£112F)

J Regulations on Paid Annual Leave for Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 480)
Employees TR AR 15 D) (£480F )

B T 3 SRR IR B

J Law on the Protection of Women'’s Rights
and Interests
IR L IR IRE

e Special Rules on the Labour Protection of
Female Employees

LR T BB RE R RIRE

The Group did not note any cases of material
non-compliance in relation to employment
during the Reporting Period.
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As of 31 December 2022, the Group had
a total of 130 employees in its Hong Kong,
Shenzhen, and Shanghai offices. See below
for the detail breakdown of the workforce.

Total Workforce as of 31 December

BET-A=T-HNEBH LAY

By Employment Type
Full-time
Part-time

By Gender
Female
Male

By Employee Category

Senior Management

Middle Management

Frontline and Other Employees

By Age Group
18-25

26-35

36-45

46-55

56 or above

By Geographical Location
Mainland China
Hong Kong

REEREES
2B

Eid

gk by
it

S

108 B ER 8D
BREEE
R BB
R H At B

RERARE S
18E255%
26E355%
362455%
46Z=555%
56553 A _E

REVEE D
T A
HB

RE e LERWmE

BHEz_f2-_—_+=A
=t+—HB AKERESR
EoRIE EBHREARE
HE130REE -4 HHA
MEFBRT -

2022

—E=-=

93.08%
6.92%

43.08%
56.92%

13.85%
10.00%
76.15%

12.31%
51.54%
26.92%
6.92%
2.31%

75.38%
24.62%
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B1.2 Turnover Figures

A total of 14 employees left the Group
during the Reporting Period, which
corresponds to a turnover rate of 10.77%.
The Group regularly reviews salary
remuneration and benefits to retain talents
and stay attractive and competitive in the
market. See below for the detail breakdown
of turnover rate by employee group.

Turnover Rate as of 31 December

BEt-A=1T-BRHBREE

By Employment Type RESELE S
Full-time i

Part-time i3

By Gender BB &5
Female g

Male B

By Employee Category RESERE S
Senior Management SRERE
Middle Management FRERRE
Frontline and Other Employees RIAR K E B B
By Age Group RERARNE D
18-25 18%250%

26-35 262355

36-45 362455

46-55 46ZE555%

56 or above 563K 30 A =

By Geographical Location RibENEE D
Mainland China B A

Hong Kong E
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B1.2 BEEEREHUIE
RBEBHRN - AEEHLS
14% E EBERE - BERR K
10.77% - A& B T B E M
TEHFMEEF Wik
BETRALTRETS %
S W REFEF T
KEVIERBERNE DK
BB o

2022
—E-—F

11.57%
0.00%

8.93%
12.16%

11.11%
153.85%
2.02%

37.50%
7.46%
8.57%
0.00%
0.00%

11.22%
9.38%
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B1.4

Environmental, Social and Governance Refort

Competitive Compensation and Benefits

The Group abides by all applicable
employment and labour related laws of
Hong Kong and Mainland China. Employees
are provided with attractive salary with
year-end double pay. Salary is reviewed
on a periodic basis with considerations
given to employees’ performance during
the year, market rate of the industry, profit
result, and the projected earning ability of
the Group. Individual salary adjustment in
respect of promotion, confirmation, transfer,
re-classification etc. are recommended by
the Department Head in consultation with
the Administration Department. For certain
job positions, the Group pays commission
and incentives in line with trade practices
and management policies. Various types
of leave, including annual leaves, sick
leaves, maternity leaves, paternity leaves
and jury services leave, are also provided.
Apart from the Mandatory Provident Fund
(“MPF”) scheme, employees are entitled to
medical benefits scheme and employees’
compensation insurance. The standard
working hours are 8.5 hours per day and 5
days per week.

There were no major changes in policies
relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunities, diversity
and anti-discrimination during the Reporting
Period.

Promotion, Transfer and Dismissal

The Group aims to provide channels of
promotion and promote employees based
on their performance, qualification, integrity
and ability. Promotion will be offered with
considerations of the Group’s operation,
competence, potential and interpersonal
skills of the employee and recommendations
given by the employee’s Department
Manager. The Group reserves the right to
transfer any employee to other locations
or opportunities to perform jobs of similar
nature if necessary.
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B1.5

B1.6

Employees who completed the probation
period and wish to resign must notify
in writing to the Department Manager
with at least one month’s notice. Specific
notification periods for different positions
are stipulated in the appointment letters. For
employees who fall under circumstances
including redundancy, termination with or
without prejudice, they shall be provided
with one month’s notice or one month’s
salary in lieu of notice if their employment is
to be terminated.

Equal Opportunity

The Group provides equal opportunities for
employees in respect of recruitment, training
and development, job advancement, and
compensation and benefits. Employees are
not discriminated against or deprived of
such opportunities based on gender, ethnic,
background, religion, colour, age, marital
status, family status, retirement, disability,
pregnancy or any other discrimination
prohibited by applicable laws of Hong Kong
and Mainland China.

Employee Communication

To enhance employees’ sense of belonging,
the Group regularly organises gatherings,
such as annual dinners and Christmas
parties for its employees. Due to the ongoing
COVID-19 pandemic, the Group had not
arranged any activities for its employees
outside of workplace. Once the pandemic
has improved, the Group shall resume
activities to help create a bond and team
spirit outside of workplace and raise their
sense of belonging.
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Employee Health and Safety

The Group has complied with relevant
occupational health related laws and regulations.
These include, but not limited to:

Mainland China

IR B REARE

B2. [ER@FHEZE
AEEDETARBERZER
@ REAERDEDI AR - B
BARRR

Hong Kong
&8

A
° Labour Law
LA
. Labour Contract Law
BEERE

. PRC Law on The Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases

hE AR AMBIBERY AE

As employees spend most of the time on working
with the computers, the Group has installed eye
protectors on monitors to reduce the chance of
eye damage that may be caused by computer
screens. Employees are also reminded to maintain
good posture and appropriate viewing distance
between eyes and computer screens, and conduct
stretching exercises during rest breaks. The Group
also arranges professionals to sterilise the working
environment, and place greenings in the office.
By these, the Group hopes that employees’ health
can be safeguarded in workplace. With regards
to precautious measures against fire hazards,
the Group has arranged fire drills for employees
to familiarise them with the office buildings’
escape routes and location of fire extinguishing
equipment.

There were no major changes in management
practice in relation to occupational health and
safety during the Reporting Period.

Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Cap.
282)

REmMERD (F2825)

Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance
(Cap. 509)

Bz REFEGRD (F509%)
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COVID-19 Measures

When the coronavirus disease broke out, the
Group was highly cautious of the most up-to-date
situations as employees’ health and safety is the
Group’s priority. A response team was established
to monitor the number of infection cases, follow
government guidelines, and take lead in setting
up preventive measures and arrangements for
employees, some practices include:

e Adopting work rotation, home officing, and
other distancing measures as appropriate

J Requesting for health condition and potential
virus-exposure information, and 14 days
contact history from employees and visitors

o Strengthening health surveillance measures,
such as, measuring body temperatures

o Sourcing and providing anti-virus supplies,
such as surgical masks, sanitisers

The Group remained vigilant and released
information promptly whenever any cases worthy
of concern was identified.

B2.1 Work-related fatalities and injury

Occupational Health and
Safety Data in 2022

Work related fatality

Fatality Rate

Work injury cases >3 days
Work injury cases <3 days
Lost days due to work injury

Occupational Health and
Safety Data in 2021

Work related fatality
Fatality Rate

Occupational Health and
Safety Data in 2020

Work related fatality
Fatality Rate
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During the Reporting Period, the Company
did not receive any complaints or lawsuits
regarding violations of health and safety-
related laws, and there was no work-related
death in the past three years.

Development and Training

The Group continuously monitors employees’ job
performance in order to identify training needs.
Employees are encouraged to participate in work-
related and personal development trainings
through on-the-job trainings and external trainings
to understand market trends and increase their
competence.

During the Reporting Period, 109 employees, or
83.85% of all employees, received training as
arranged by the Group, and the average training
hours that each employee received (inclusive
of those who did not receive training) was 8.38
hours. Training provided was mostly duty-related
courses or seminars delivered by external service
providers. The trainings covered topics such as
accounting standards, laws and regulations, and
anti-corruption.

The percentage and average training hours
per gender and employee category during the
Reporting Period are as follows:

By Gender BRI BE 5
Female g

Male St

By Employee Category RESENE S
Senior Management SRERE
Middle Management PARERRE
Frontline and Other Employees Al 4% S H At fE 8

B3.

IR B REARE

RmEHA - AR AE AL E
WEERBRERRER
2 RBAREREF MR
RBE=ZFTEZXLEAT
CTHAERE-

R KI5

AEEFBEERENTER
BIABBRIFIFE R A& E B
B B & BB R INEBE
SETERENLEAZEREI
UNTBRTSBEREREE -

NEMEEA - 109ZEE (2
R BER83.85% )X ANEE
ZHEWME MEBREEESTH
FHEIRR(BETEES
&) A8.381E /N EF o TR
R £ 3IK 2 EUA SN AR 75 L fE
IR 2 B AR AT
e - AMEIIRESERES
R EPIMOER AR R E)S

o

:H_g 113 hil

SIREHIA - IR B BRI
7 Z B0t R 5 I B 8

e 3¢

LNE
Average Training
Percentage of Hours per
Trained Employees Employee
ZIEE BHEESHN

B 19 5% 91 B 21

89.29% 8.93 hrs
B

79.73% 7.97 hrs
N

66.67% 6.67 hrs
N

100.00% 10.00 hrs
N

84.85% 8.48 hrs
N
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B4.

Labour Standards

Pursuant to the Employment Ordinance, Chapter
57 of the Laws of Hong Kong and Labour Law
of the PRC, there was no child nor forced labour
in the Group’s operation during the Reporting
Period. All resumes, original identification cards
and relevant certificates of job candidates are
first checked by the Group during interviews.
Candidates’ preceded employers may be
contacted for provision of references. If any case
of non-compliance is discovered, the Group will
immediately terminate employment and further
investigate to avoid recurrence.

2. Operating Practices

B5.

Supply Chain Management

Only suppliers related to technology and financial
tools were engaged during the Reporting Period.
Despite the relatively low environmental and
social risks involved in the Group’s supply
chain, the Group encourages best practices in
supply chain management. The Group prioritises
cooperation with suppliers it has worked with
before to ensure the quality of supplies. All
suppliers are expected to comply with all relevant
environmental and social laws, such as the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance in
their own operations. During the Reporting Period,
the Group had not engaged with any long-term
key suppliers.
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Product Responsibility

The

Group takes full responsibility for its

products and services, and follows all regulatory
requirements, industry guidelines and internal
procedures on safeguarding customer health
and safety, promoting responsible marketing and
ensuring privacy of information related to the
Group and its business partners. As such, the
following laws and guidelines are therefore strictly
followed by the Group:

Mainland China

IR B REARE

B6. EmEF
AEEHHEEMMREAELZS
HEE WEFREEEEXR.
THEESIMABET UGES
PRERERZE REBBEENT
HEHARERER REE
BEEBEHBBNESNTLE-
F REERBETIATER
&l

Hong Kong
&8

B6.1.

hE Rt
Criminal Law
illbz
Advertising Law
B
Cyber Security Law
WEL A

Provisions on Protecting the Personal
Information of Telecommunications and
Internet Users

EEMEBRBRAFPEAEERERE

Quality Assurance

It is the Group’s aim to provide products and
services that are satisfactory and provide
customer services that are professional. To
ensure that all employees are competent
with advising customers, employees are
required to prepare presentations regarding
the operations’ products regularly as a mean
for management to assess and determine
employees’ performance.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had
not received any product or service-related
complaints. In addition, there had been no
products sold or shipped subject to recalls
for safety and health reasons during the
Reporting Period.

Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap.
486)

BEAE# (AL &) (BB EDIF486F)
Office of the Privacy Commission for
Personal Data, Hong Kong
BEEAERLEEERE

Trade Marks Ordinance (Cap. 559)
FEBRIGH (F559%)

Patents Ordinance (Cap. 514)

SEHGEPI (F514%)

Copyright Ordinance (Cap. 528)

ARAE(RDI (£528%)
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B6.2 Confidential Information

As stated in the employment contract,
employees shall not at any time, during the
course of their employment, and after the
termination of the employment:

J use any confidential information for
his’/her own purpose or for any purpose
other than that of the Group;

e divulge or communicate to any person
any confidential information except
to those of the employees or officials
of the Group whose province it is to
know the same; or

J cause any unauthorized disclosure of
confidential information (including
without limitation), relating to the
dealings, organization, business,
finance, transactions or any other
affairs to the Group or its clients or
customers, through failure of exercising
due care and diligence.

All notes, memoranda, records and writings
made by the employees in relation to the
business or concerning any of its dealings or
affairs or the dealings or affairs of any clients
or customers of the Group shall be handed
over by him/her to the Group from time to
time on demand and in any event upon his
leaving the service of the Group and the
employees shall not retain any copy thereof.
A breach of the above provisions can be
subject to dismissal without notice and legal
claim for damages.

The Group complies with all applicable
laws regarding confidential information and
data protection of the laws of Hong Kong
and Mainland China. No substantiated
complaints concerning breaches of client
privacy, identified leaks, thefts, or losses of
customer information was received during
the Reporting Period.
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B6.3 Intellectual Property Rights

The Group attaches great importance to the
protection of intellectual property rights,
and complies with the relevant laws and
regulations. During the Reporting Period,
there had been no cases that violate
intellectual property rights.

Anti-corruption

The Group abides by the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance, Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong
and applicable laws in Mainland China in relation
to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
All other guidelines outlined by the Independent
Commission Against Corruption (“ICAC”) and
Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC”) are also
followed by the Group. The Group has a whistle-
blowing policy available for anyone to raise
any concern worthy of the Group’s awareness,
protecting the anonymity of any whistle-blower.
To ensure that directors and its employees familiar
with relevant topics, the Hong Kong office invites
ICAC to deliver training regarding anti-corruption.
There was no concluded legal case regarding
corrupt practices brought against the Group or its
employees during the Reporting Period.

In order to enhance the anti-corruption awareness
and level of employees, the directors and
employees of the Hong Kong office received
annual anti-corruption training as offered by the
ICAC during the Reporting Period, which covered
topics such as whistle-blowing, business ethics,
avoiding conflict-of-interest, and anti-bribery.

Community Investment

The Group understands that engaging the
community in which it operates is an essential
corporate responsibility, and thus has focused its
contributions on activities and organisations that
are beneficial to the local community. During
the Reporting Period, the Group has encouraged
employee participation of Dress Casual Day, and
has donated HK$3,000 to the Community Chest
for social welfare.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EEERE

Executive Directors

Chen Xiaodong

Chen Xiaodong, aged 41, is an executive director, the chairman
of the Board of the Company, the chairman of both the Executive
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company since 2
December 2016 and a member of the Remuneration Committee
of the Company since 8 March 2023. He holds a bachelor degree
of management from Royal Holloway, University of London. He
also holds a master of science degree in process technology and
business management from University of Warwick. He has more
than 12 years of experience in bank and securities marketing and
is familiar with the local market and has strong capabilities in
market exploration, customer appraisal and risk management. He
also has extensive experience of regulations and rules of financial
market in Hong Kong and Mainland China, as well as certain
corporate financial analysis skill. Mr. Chen has resigned as an
executive director and chief executive officer of Future World
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, stock code: 572) with effect from
24 December 2018.

Chen Jingxian

Chen Jingxian, aged 39, has been appointed as an executive
director and vice chairman of the Board since 21 February 2022.
She is the founder of Youbeiqin Group (& &% % @) and has
been the deputy general manager of Youbeigin (Shenzhen) Medical
Investment Co., Ltd. ORI EHEBEREBR A F) since June
2019. She has extensive experience in medical industry and
medical investment management.

Li Jing

Li Jing, aged 36, has been appointed as an executive director, chief
executive officer and a member of Executive Committee of the
Company since 9 December 2022. He is a serial entrepreneur and
partner of an institution with sales of ten billion-level live streaming
performance, is deeply engaged in channel development of brand
supply chains and cultivation of live streaming for top celebrities,
promoting annual sales of several brands exceeding one hundred
million. He has been the founder of Xingyao (2#), a company
engaged in short video live streaming with focusing on celebrities
and artists, since May 2020. He has 14 years of experience in
corporate operation and investment management, and has extensive
experience in media industry. He is an expert in providing a
complete package of solutions, including model innovation,
asset injection and capital operation, for the consumption-
oriented industry to rapidly promote industry upgrading, industry
transformation and investment mergers and acquisitions.
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Yu Qingrui

Yu Qingrui, aged 51, is an executive director and a member of
the Executive Committee of the Company since 22 June 2016.
Mr. Yu specializes in property investment and trading business in
the People’s Republic of China. After graduating from high-school
in 1989, Mr. Yu joined the shipping and trading business in the
PRC. He was the general manager of a shipping company before
he became a private investor in 2003. In 2011, Mr. Yu joined a
marketing and management firm in Shanghai and served as their
property investment manager. On 21 July 2014, Mr. Yu was engaged
to provide advisory and consultancy services relating to property
investments and trading to Future World Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, stock code: 572). Currently, Mr. Yu is an executive
director of Future World Holdings Limited.

Song Caini

Song Caini, aged 48, has been appointed as an executive director
of the Company. She is an investor of Youbeiqin Group (K& #i&
@) and has extensive experience in medical industry.

Chen Hongjin

Chen Hongjin, aged 53, has been appointed as an executive
director of the Company since 21 February 2022. He has been
the chairman of Yancheng Qingshang Agricultural Technology
Development Co., Ltd.* (B F g R ERHEREMR 2 F]) and
Yancheng Qingshang Trading Co., Ltd.* (BB S EER A H)
since November 2014. He was a standing committee member of
the Political Consultative Conference of Tinghu District of Yancheng
City, a member of Yancheng Municipal Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, the vice president of
Yancheng Junior Chamber of Commerce* (E# M & F A€ ) and
vice chairman of Yancheng Lifengxiang Foundation for Education*
(FREFEMEHFRESE) during 2009 to October 2021. Mr.
Chen has been appointed as a standing committee member of the
Political Consultative Conference of Tinghu District of Yancheng
City since January 2022.

*  For identification purpose only
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Biographical Details of Directors

EXERE

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Kwok Chi Kwong

Kwok Chi Kwong, aged 59, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company since January 2014, and the chairman
of both the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee, and
a member of the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr.
Kwok holds a master degree in business administration from
the University of Leicester. He is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practicing) registered with the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), an associate member of the
HKICPA and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Mr. Kwok has been a director of KTC Partners
CPA Limited. He has gained more than 23 years of experience in
auditing, accounting and finance area.

Wu Ming

Wu Ming, aged 50, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director and a member of the Audit Committee of the
Company since 2 October 2018. He holds a bachelor of science
with honours in business with marketing from The City University
London. Mr. Wu specializes in trading business in the People’s
Republic of China and Hong Kong and has extensive experience in
trading and management.

Li Meifeng

Li Meifeng, aged 31, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director, and a member of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company since 8 March 2023. She has extensive experience in
accounting and securities trading in Mainland China and Hong
Kong.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

K| MOORE

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of
Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 89 to 232, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPAs Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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B ZBEHRE S

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion

E L
RRETFREREBERMANERHE RRYX
HGEAVBRRCBEARAEEZFH - BLE
AREHEAVBBEREBETETALLAE
R2BEZTNETREN RATHELFEREHR
EFRER-RMY AT -—FHERTT 20N
BEIE 2 IR TNAL BB R o

B BITARE R BENL B4R A MK
AAEZEE-SHTHBAZEE BEREE
ZEMABZEE -Fi RANES THEREHR
TTEEJEMJZ? MR RFAEAERBRAMRE
BIHEMREZREF - RANEAREFERERE
RIE T EEANIT 2R RBEM A M5 R
RERBABREHER

on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

MEETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMWESFOMEEFARETSEE

lmpairment assessment of trade receivables from securities and futures dealing business

EHFRHEEERBELZEWNE SR B EFIE

The Group has adopted a forward-looking expected-loss
impairment model to recognise the expected credit losses
(the “ECLs”) of trade receivables from securities and futures
dealing business in accordance with the requirements of
HKFRS 9.

BEBEREE S M7 S 2RI F 5% R SRR ATHE 14 TR
ERIBEELRBSLMEESEXHRELE CRERE SR
REREREEER ([AREEBR]) -

As at 31 December 2022, gross trade receivables from
securities and futures dealing business, and the related
ECLs amounted to approximately HK$409,764,000 and
HK$262,068,000, respectively.
RZZE-_—F+-_RA=+—H EFLPEEFTEBKE
EZRRESEFEELERBREEBRINOR
409,764,000/ 7T }2262,068,00075 7T °

For the assessment of the classification at each stage,
we have checked the outstanding margin receivable
balances to the corresponding values of collateral assets
(defined as loan-to-value);

sLEFE G ERE RO 2R 5 - RIS RE AR ERERIR
EoEHEEAEENHEREENLE (ERE/ENRE
EBELX):

For trade receivables from securities and futures dealing
business classified at stage 1, we evaluated the Group’s
estimation methodology of ECLs, and checked the
parameters to external data sources where available,
including the price volatility of selected underlying
collateral;

fTﬁA“*ﬁﬁéﬁWeﬁxfﬂ’\] S MIEREEXBEL 2 RK
BH5EX RACHE EXRENBEREEERGFS
= jﬁHﬂfEF%ﬂ%{EﬁiT R SMER BB RIRAE TR - B
T2 T AR R AR R B0 B AR R -
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B AZBEN R E S

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANSETNMEERRETSEE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables from securities and futures dealing business (continued)

ESRPEEERFELZ ENESRAZ BTG (E)

The assessment of ECLs of trade receivables from
securities and futures dealing business involves significant
management judgements and estimates, including estimation
of probability of defaults, valuation of collateral, expected
future cash flows and future economic conditions.
EHERHEEERBEL CRREZRAZAREEERE
HEP R EREBELERAEG MG BRYEOH X K
HmfhE BHRARRERE R ARREBEN R MR -

The Group assesses whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk for exposures since initial recognition
by comparing the risk of default occurring over the expected
life between the reporting date and the date of initial
recognition.

BEEEEBLBRE A MENGER AR HNEFFH

PR KB - P B )RR DA S AR A T
PR

Related disclosures about trade receivables from securities
and futures dealing business, and its related ECLs are
included in Notes 2(j), 3, 20 and 45 to the consolidated
financial statements.
BENHEEEXEREA Y ERE SERF L EABER
FEEBEBZHBEBRIHNGEETEMRME2) 3 20k
45 °

For trade receivables from securities and futures dealing
business classified as stages 2 and 3, we checked
the price volatility and liquidity of the collateral, and
developed a reasonable range of expected cash shortfall
for comparison with the Group’s assessment; and
HROBERFIEBENELRMAEREXRBKELL
FEWE 5 BR300 BRI R E IR m e (E R IE R B 1 -
WELEHRERENSESHE AR SEENTHE
EITHE &

We also evaluated the related disclosures regarding the
accounting policy, the judgement and estimates involved
and the details of the ECLs included in the consolidated
financial statements respectively.
BAIIRE 2 BIEHE PSR & R BUR - B R A 5T A R AR
BUBHREMEEREEERFBNARKRE-
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Key audit matter

BEETEER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANSETNMEEERETSEE

Impairment assessment of loan and interest receivables from money lending business

HERBELZ EWREZLRFEZREFE

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had gross loan and
interest receivables from money lending business amounting
to approximately HK$433,419,000 and HK$67,295,000,
respectively. The Group had recognised ECLs on loan
and interest receivables amounting to approximately
HK$60,590,000 and HK$9,837,000, respectively.
RZF-_—_F+-_A=+—H EBEXEEREEH
L2 EWE R EH S 85 5 Bl £433,419,00078 7T &
67,295,000/ 70 B & C 58 W E KA B R
= B B85 51460,590,0007% 7T %9,837,00078 7T ©

The models and assumptions adopted by the management
in estimating ECLs are related to the future macroeconomic
conditions and borrowers’ creditworthiness (e.g. the
likelihood of default by customers). The management
believes that they have considered reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost and effort for this purpose. Such
assessment has taken the quantitative and qualitative
historical information and also, the forward-looking analysis.
EEERAFAMEEERRRANEL RBRERERKE
BEBEMRARBRANGEE (MEFEOMAIRELE) B -
EEERS NECERMABANESZAERASZER:
BEFRHEETVERARE N -ZEFEHCRAEE
N E M 2 FE e BB A R ATRE M 5 AT o

Related disclosures from loan and interest receivables from
money lending business, and their related ECLs are included
in Notes 2(j), 3, 19, 24 and 45 to the consolidated financial
statements.
WMEXGEEZRRERENEUNREABEREREEEE
ZAEABRBRH NG S B HmEME2() 3 19 2445 -

We reviewed and assessed the adequacy of the Group’s
classification of stages based on the past due dates of the
loan and interest receivables.

BPEM LS ERERBEKER R SBEDH
RETEEDENTDME-

We assessed the effectiveness and marketability of
certain collaterals, including considering fair values of
collaterals and the liquidity of the collaterals.
BFIFFEE TERARZBEREREHNL - B1EZ BEM
an FY A SR Ko 3K 1 R RO R A I

We assessed the reasonableness and relevancy of the
external information used by the Group as the default
rates and forward looking information including
economic data and forecasts published by government
bodies and monetary authorities, such as GDP growth
rates, unemployment rates, etc.

BAIRHE BESEREROT AR EER 25N B R
BRI RARIE BRBTEE &Y BEBFI ML
EEE LI PIINBENEEBERRE KEXE-

We checked the accuracy of the calculation of ECLs
based on the methodology adopted by the Group, as
well as disclosures in relation to credit risk exposed by
the Group in the consolidated financial statements.
ZFERERE BEREMRATATERAEEER
ZEBERGEVBHRERME ERBEEEZEERR
MR E -

We discussed with the management of the Company
and independent valuer, for the reasonableness and
relevance of the methodologies, inputs and assumptions
adopted for the valuation report prepared and issued by
independent valuer.

BB B ERD AR I K 3 2 [ ER SRR
FE BABBRRENSEEREALER EAFE
BE LB EEMETTH W
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Other information included in the annual report
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditors report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors and those charged
with governance for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the audit committee
of the Company in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the

consolidated financial statements (continued)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

J Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors” use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

J Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee of the Company
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence of the Company, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee of
the Company, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Li Wing Yin

Practising Certificate Number: P05035

Hong Kong, 29 March 2023
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Ny

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZE_-F_-—#F+_-A=+—HIIFZF

Notes
B EE

Revenue L'ON

Financial investments and services B %1% & & AR 7%

Brokerage and commission income  &F42 K& AR & WA

Advisory fee income A EWA

Sales of goods &S B o

5

Cost of sales and services SHE & IR R A

Brokerage and commission B BRAEAERX

expenses

Cost of sales & AR
Gross profit EH
Other income and losses, net HAb WA REEFRE 5
Administrative expenses TTHRX
Equity-settled share option MRt E 2 AR o BE

arrangements 38
Other operating expenses Hitn 2 ER X
Finance costs BN 6
Unrealised fair value losses on FRERRATEIRZ

equity and fund investments at fair ~ f&7R &%ﬁ&ﬁz

value through profit or loss, net REBR RN FEBEFR
Unrealised fair value losses on debt  #Ei1Em ik A FEFIKR 2

investments at fair value through BERRE 2 RER

profit or loss, net NFEEBEFR
Reversal of/(provision for) credit HthemEEEEER

loss allowances on other B E, (5HR)

financial assets
Share of profits of an associate o — B & R R 2 & A 16
Loss before income tax BRITSHAIEE 7
Income tax expense FISHR X 10
Loss for the year rEEEBE
Loss for the year attributable to UTATEEFEESE

Equity shareholders of AR B R R

the Company

Non-controlling interests FEIE IR
Loss per share attributable ERAREEAREERER

to owners of the Company

Basic and Diluted BERR#EE 12

2022
—ZE-

HK$’000

FTEx

2021
—E-—%F
HK$'000
FAET

46,779
187,005
34,634
9,422

43,251
161,670
38,920

277,840

243,841

(112,719)
(4,322)

(157,624)

(117,041)

(157,624)

160,799

(2,706)
(176,202)

(18,024)
(5,001)
(25,838)

(29,607)

(19,796)

10,717
3,006

86,217

(5,621)
(157,948)

(11,880)
(4,738)
(32,863)

(107,632)

(1,219)

(133,775)

(102,652)

(2,738)

(369,459)

(1,807)

(105,390)

(371,266)

(106,759)
1,369

(371,266)

(105,390)

(371,266)

(0.67) 7&Al

(2.32) 71l
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Consolldated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meazmEkER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE_-F_-—F+_-FA=+—HIFF/Z

2022
—=E—=

HK$’000

FE T

Loss for the year

REEEE (105,390)

Other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income that may
be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods:

Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

Hft 2 H WS

AREREREREROBEE
HBan 2z Hfth 2 as

MERINRBZENER
4,730)

Other comprehensive income that will
not be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods:

Equity investments at fair value through

TERBERAEER RS
HEan 2 Hfth 2 W as

FEREMEEREEATE

other comprehensive income: SRR Z IR AR E
Changes in fair value, net of tax N ELE) BREiE 65,579
Other comprehensive income for the year 2N & H Ath 2 [ Uk 25 60,849
Total comprehensive loss for the year AEEXHBBRER (44,541)
Total comprehensive loss UITATEEAEEZEER

for the year attributable to B

Equity shareholders of the Company AAREBERR (45,910)

Non-controlling interest FEZER RS 1,369

(44,541)
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2021
—E-—%F
HK$'000
FA&ET

(371,266)

2,758

201,763

204,521

(166,745)

(166,745)

(166,745)




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

E BRI R R

31 December 2022 —FE—-—#F+=-H=+—H

2022 2021
—E_ —E-—%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FTEx T T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment L ER S 13 2,628 4,198
Right-of-use assets FREEE 14 5,487 10,770
Intangible assets BICEE 15 - 500
Investment in an associate R—EEERR 2HE 16 87,006 -
Equity investments at fair FRHMEERSERAFE
value through other FIRR 2 IR AR E
comprehensive income 18 392,073 493,258
Deferred tax assets EETIBEE E 17 110 110
Loan receivables from money WEREBEE 2 BIRER
lending business 19 124,911 353,930
Finance lease receivables & E W FRE 22 1,646 3,946
Deposits and other receivables &% [ E th fE UL R IE 24 23,705 37,032
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 637,566 903,744
Current assets REEE
Loan receivables from money WEEBES 2 RIE R
lending business 19 247,918 115,851
Trade receivables from securities FFHFNPEEEXBKELEZ
and futures dealing business FEUE SR 20 147,696 130,116
Trade receivables from EREEERREBRELEL
placing and asset FEWE 5 BR K
management business 21 33,479 45,990
Trade receivables from HENMEA ZEKE FIRX
sales of goods 865
Finance lease receivables LA TH S e U FkE 22 2,300 2,426
Inventories FE 23 1,796 -
Prepayments, deposits and i‘ﬁﬁ RIE -~ R N E At I
other receivables FRIE 24 163,351 85,545
Equity and fund investments BRERRATEIRZ
at fair value through BRAREZRE
profit or loss 25 35,508 95,558
Debt investments at fair value FRERIEAFEYES
through profit or loss BIEKE 26 29,677 173,035
Cash and bank balances Re RIRTTHET 27 62,388 116,364
Bank balances held on REBEPBERTHER
behalf of clients 28 691,356 159,683
Total current assets mEEERE 1,416,334 924,568
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

iR e BRI LR

31 December2022 —F_——4F+_H=4—H

2022 2021
—E_ - —%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FAET
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables e E 5 BR K 29 695,823 168,102
Lease liabilities HEARE 32 3,415 4,018
Third party interests in ReafiREESZE=T#R
consolidated investment fund 30 = 52,662
Other payables and accruals HEMENRIERESER 31 18,226 84,693
Other borrowings HMEE 33 123,075 268,109
Bank borrowings RITIEE 33 39,500 71,664
Bank overdrafts RITBX 33 21,638 -
Note payable NS 34 42,422 50,000
Tax payable e IR 1,072 56
Total current liabilities mE B EERE 945,171 699,304
Net current assets REBEEFE 471,163 225,264
Total assets less current liabilities EEZAERREEE 1,108,729 1,129,008
Non-current liability kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEEE 32 2,989 6,599
Total non-current liability FRE A ERE 2,989 6,599
Net assets FEE 1,105,740 1,122,409
Equity iz
Share capital (LN 35 162,939 159,697
Reserves & 36 939,364 962,712
Equity attributable to equity NABEB AR
shareholders of the Company 1,102,303 1,122,409
Non-controlling interests R 3,437 -
Total equity L ar 1,105,740 1,122,409

Chen Xiaodong
PR R

Director

BF
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Director
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

an\

IE:%/)ILEZ:‘E

For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZE_-F_-—#F+_-A=+—HIIFZF

Notes
B 5
Cash flows from operating activities RETEHELEZRERE
Loss before income tax B FT{S B AT E B
Adjustments for: FLNSIIE B (EFE
Bank interest income RITHBUA 5
Interest income on finance lease EEHE N EUA 5
Finance costs B ER 6
Depreciation on property, plant Mm% BB RREITE
and equipment 7
Depreciation on right-of-use ERREERE
assets 7
(Reversal of)/provision for credit HithemEEEEEE
loss allowances on other B (BR/) EHR
financial assets
Equity-settled share option tgmE 2 BEL
arrangements, net R 38
Dividend income from investment ~ EMRAFHFIEE ZKE
in listed equity securities WA 5
Dividend income from fund ESREZREWA
investment 5
Interest income from investment BBIRE 2R EF WA
in debt investments 5
Share of profits of an associate DG — B E R F 2 E 7
Loss on modification of note FER EB ISR A
payable 5
Loss on modification of other H U RIBIEETEE
receivable 5
Unrealised fair value losses on BRBEmEAFEYEZ
equity and fund investments at BRAEARESIRE K
fair value through profit or loss, BATEEEFHE
net
Unrealised fair value losses on FEiRE ﬁﬂfﬁ@$@§']ﬁ'ﬁz
debt investments at fair value BERRE 2 REBR AT
through profit or loss, net BEBBFHE
Gain on modification of lease HEBFT M= 7
Written off on intangible assets WiEmTEE 7
Written off on other receivables i 5 EL b FE UK IR 7
Written off on property, plant and i $8%1 % « BiE &%
equipment 13
Net loss from sub-leasing right-of- A {F AR EE 2 E1E
use asset FEE 5
Waiver on note payable and note BERNERKENRER
interest payable B 5

2022

—=ZE-=

HK$’000
FEx

(102,652)

(3]

94)
25,838
1,582

4,955

(10,717)

18,024

(703)

(2,485)

(6,265)
(3,006)

2,422

1,502

2021

—E-—%F

HK$'000
TET

(369,459)

133,775
11,880
(1,971)
(5,223)

(11,033)

107,632

1,219

242

8,806

(2,158)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= A AN =g —1
%l\ﬁfﬁi/ﬁi%

For the year endled 31 December 2022 {2 —F — —4F+ _H=1—HILFZ

Operating loss before working
capital changes

Decrease/(increase) in loan
receivables from money lending
business

Decrease in equity and fund
investments at fair value through
profit or loss

Decrease in debt investments at fair
value through profit or loss

(Increase)/decrease in trade
receivables from securities and
futures dealing business

Decrease/(increase) in trade
receivables from placing and
asset management business

Decrease in finance lease
receivables

Increase in trade receivables from
sales

Increase in inventories

Increase in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

(Increase)/decrease in bank
balances held on behalf of clients

Increase/(decrease) in trade
payables

(Decrease)/increase in other
payables and accruals

Decrease in third party interests in
consolidated investment fund

LEESEPINKLLEER

MEEBELE ZBRER
B, (HE0)

BRBRRAFEIERZ
BARESRERD

FRESRATEIERZ
BEHRERD

EFMPEEERREL L
FEWE 5 BRR (8800) /7
oo

REREEEEEBEL
ZIEWE ZERFAL
(&)

B & & R UK IR R A

KAHEENREE SRR
il
FEEN

BNRA BE REAMER
SRR N

REBFPRHAERITER
(%) Ed

BB 5 BRI,
OR )

H e 5IE R ER B A
CRl4) S8

REHREESZE=T
i Fab

Cash (used in)/generated from
operations

E (R /FERe

Dividend received 2R &
Interest received EEEIYS)
Interest paid ERFE
Tax paid EENEZRE
Net cash generated from operating & & /ZEF1S 2 S F5H

activities
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2022
—_=ZE-=

HK$'000

FEx

(21,546)

39,407

30,443

123,562

(6,916)

28,203

2,520

(865)
(1,796)

(78,805)

(531,673)

527,721

(59,683)

(52,662)

(2,090)
2,870
6,265

1,178)

1,722)

4,145

2021
—E-—%F
HK$'000
FAT

(67,431)

(65,500)

177,229

67,665

86,834

(18,275)

(39,754)
276,788
(271,913)

13,678

(33,696)

125,625
854
11,033
(7,764)
(11,519)

118,229




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

,_\_|
“mﬂ‘ imﬁi%

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F— — 4+ _H=—+—HILFZ

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchases of items of property, plant
and equipment

Acquisition of equity investments
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Acquisition of an associate

Proceeds from disposals of equity
investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Capital injection from non-
controlling interests

Dividend received

Interest received

Net cash outflow arising on

RETHEEZHERE
BEDE BFEAREEAEE

Yo BB o5 1B H At 2 T IR R I
RNFESIRZ BAKRE

oo — P 8 2 )
5B A 2 E s 1R
AFEIELRARE
2 F8 R

SRR A

B S
B KA B

FERUWEE R B A R

acquisition of assets through BEEAZRSRLFHE
acquisition of a subsidiary

Net cash generated from investing IR &EEBEL RS FH
activities

Cash flows from financing activities ﬂﬁ%@ﬁizfﬂﬁﬁ

Net proceeds from issuance of new
shares

Proceeds from issuance of note
payable

Proceeds from other borrowings

Proceeds from bank borrowings

Repayment of note payable

Repayment of other borrowings

Repayment of bank borrowings

Repayment of the principal portion
of lease liabilities

Payment for interest portion of note
payable

Payment for interest portion of other
borrowings

Payment for interest portion of bank
borrowings

Payment for interest portion of lease
labilities

BT DB RIE TR
BTN ERATSRIE

H BB 1SR
RITEEMRERA
BERNERE
BEHEMEE
BERITEER
EEMERBEARESHD

XNENRENSHD
EMEEN S
X RITEENEHBD

L

SXNMEERENSED

Net cash used in financing activities

BMERBMAZREFR

2022 2021
—==-= —E -

HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx TAET

(82) (3,680)

(950) (45,983)
(30,000) -
167,714 99,047

2,214 -

633 1,117
62 25

(146) -

139,445 50,526

= 50,000
3,459 2,582
10,456 50,632
(10,000) -
(148,178) (65,697)
(42,670) (115,432)
(3,907) (11,202)
(6,045) -
(24,236) (15,117)
1,367) (2,072)
(426) (593)
(215,134) (106,899)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FAERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z —ZF ——

A= — AL

2022

—=E-—
Notes HK$'000
B 5 FET

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and bank balances at
beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rates
changes, net

RERRESEEHRBZ
OR4) /48 mFaE
FHNzRE MRITHEF

SNEEFE R B 2 BT

(71,544)

116,364

(4,070)

Cash and cash equivalents atend FRZREERRELZEEE

of year 40,750
Analysis of balances of cash and RERREEERBLEFZ

cash equivalents D
Cash and bank balances Re RRITET 27 62,388
Bank overdrafts RITEX 33 (21,638)

40,750
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2021
—E-—%F
HK$'000
FAT

61,856

54,032

476

116,364

116,364

116,364




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

an 7f ﬁ‘ﬁz #ﬁ 43)% Bﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —F - —F+ _-H=+—HIFFZ

Corporate and group information

Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The principal place of
business of the Company is located at Unit 1801-2,18/F, Far
East Finance Centre, No.16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in
securities and futures dealing business, trading of debts and
equity investments and money lending business. During the
year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had expanded
new business in the traditional Chinese medical industry in
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) through acquisition of
a subsidiary in the PRC.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

AEAIREBEER
REEBIERER AR ([RAQATF])ARA
REFMKL2BERAR -HiMFEE
H 3k & Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda ° NQA &) E &
EHWBUNBEBERBIHEERREE/ME O
18%21801-2F -

ARAREEEBAREER - ARRRE
MEBARI(TXAEIAER])EBHE
BEMPEEEER EHEEERRAK
EULMEEK BHE T -_—_F+_-HA
—t+—HLEFE - AEEAEBKRENPE
AREMBE([FEADH—HEHBEAR &
REFRB AR B BEENTER-

MBATl &R
R —FR - —F+_A=+—
B ARREEMBARZFBWOT:

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company
FRAREREZED
Issued ordinary/
Place of incorporation registered
Name and husiness share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
HRRIR BRAZER/
REER ERLEnY ERRA E& B IEXH
Hoshing Limited* British Virgin Islands Usst 100 (2021: 100) - Investment holding
Hoshing Limited* AERAES B 100 - RABR
(ZB=—%F:100)
139 Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Us$2 - 100 (2021: 100)  Provision of administrative services
139EXARAE BE VES - 100 RETHERE
(ZZZ—%:100)
Chaifa Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 (2021:100)  Investment holding
BEUBARRA ik BT - 100 REER
(ZBZ—%:100)
Central Wealth Infrastructure Investment  British Virgin Islands/Hong Usst - 100 (2021:100)  Investment in and trading of
Limited Kong securities
PEEEREARAA EBRAEE/EH [E R 10()) RARERES
—FC 100
Desert Gold Limited British Virgin Islands/Hong Us$1 - 100 (2021: 100)  Investment in and trading of
Kong securities
Desert Gold Limited AERLES/ER E - R 10()) REAREEES
ZEC 100
Top Billion Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 (2021:100)  Money lending
BEHBERLT i 2L - 100 HE
(ZF=—F:100
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Corporate and group information (continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

1.

AEIREBEFR @)

MERXRZER (&)

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

AAREEREZEAL
Issued ordinary/
Place of incorporation registered
Name and business share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
EMEIR BRTLER/
NEER EHREnE ZRBRAR HE BE IEXE
Winsey Enterprises Limited* British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100 (2021:100)  Investment holding
Winsey Enterprises Limited* EERAES B3 - 100 #®EER
(ZZ=—%:100)
Central Wealth Securities Investment Hong Kong HK$404,000,000 - 100 (2021: 100)  Brokerage and related services
Limited
PEESREARRAR &E 404,000,000 T - 100 SBEREBRE
(ZZF=—%:100)
Central Wealth Futures Limited Hong Kong HK$23,500,100 - 100 (2021: 100)  Brokerage and related services
MEREERAR B 23,500,100 70 - 100 ELEREBRE
(ZZZ—F:100)
Central Wealth Asset Management Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 - 100 (2021:100)  Asset Management
Limited
MEEEERERAA B 10,000,007 7T - 100 BEER
(ZZ=—%:100)
Instant Achieve Limited* British Virgin Islands US$62,500 - 100 (2021: 100)  Investment holding
AERRAR: EBRAES 62,500E T - 100 H®EZR
(ZZ=—F: 100
Greater China Income Fund Cayman Islands US$3,552,974° - 100 (2021: 100)  Investment in and trading of debt
(2021: US$4,912,974) instruments
Greater China Income Fund BEHE 3,552, 974% 0 - 100 FEEIAREREE
(zB=-F: (ZZ=—F:100)
49129745 7)
Central Wealth Cornerstone (Shanghai)  The Peoples Republic of RMB116,146,995 - 100 (2021: 100)  Advisory service in debt capital

market and investment in the

fund

Consulting Co Ltd* China (the PRC) (2021: RMB95,154,923)

PEED(LE)ERBNBRAR  PEARANE (PE) )\R%H614699ga

AB95,1549237)

Youbeigin (Guangdong) Medical The Peoples Republic of RMB500,000

Technology Co., Ltd." China (the PRC) (2021: Nil)

ERERBRBENBARRA mEARLANE (E) (AR%SO%)O%
ZEI-FR

* Not audited by Moore Stephens CPA Limited or another
member firm of the Moore Global Network Limited

: The shares represented participating shares

On 21 February 2022, 51% of equity interest in the company
was acquired by an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

100 Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited #E & E1Z i H R 2 7

- 100 EFEXADHERRSERES
(ZZ=—5:10 R&
- 51(2021: Nil)  Trading of tradition Chinese
medicines and supplements
- 51 FERERES
(Z2=-5:8)

* REREFHEGAHMEBHAERD
REFEZHWMEMKE RARER

: P fn #5 2 B AD

" RZZEZ—_F=-_A=+—H RZAF
51%E’JHﬂEEE-F‘ﬁF?&zéS%EE’]Mﬂ*“
A) U B

ERINEARREETRR/EAFEALE
% fﬁ}g?éi%&$%lééi¥ﬁi
EXDPZARBMBRAB - ARBEER
EH%%MW%’AETZ%T*#EIJﬁ%%%ﬁﬁi@
RILE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{%F —F = — 4+ _H=1—HIFFZF

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”).

They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for the equity, fund and debt investments and
investment property which have been measured at fair values.
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the functional currency of the
Company, and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

(@) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs

In the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group has applied, for the first time, the following new
and revised standards issued by the HKICPA.

Amendments to Reference to the Conceptual Framework

HKFRS 3

Amendment to Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
HKFRS 16 beyond 30 June 2021

Amendments to Property, Plant and Equipment —
HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
HKAS 37 Contract

Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-
HKFRSs 2020

Amendments to
AG 5 (Revised)

Merger Accounting for Common Control
Combination

The application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs
in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(b)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2022. A subsidiary
is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —&F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(b)

(9]

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Business combination and goodwill

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration
test, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The concentration
test is met if substantially all of the fair value of the
gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single
identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets.
The gross assets under assessment exclude cash and
cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill
resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If
the concentration test is met, the set of activities and
assets is determined not to be a business and no further
assessment is needed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(o)

Business combination and goodwill (continued)
Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measures
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation either at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquirees identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —&F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(0

Business combination and goodwill (continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of
in these circumstance is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(d)

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investment in an associate is stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group'’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates is included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associate is
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investment in
the associate, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associate is
included as part of the Group’s investment in associate.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or
loss being the difference between the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a
part interest in the associate and the carrying amount
of the investment at the date the equity method was
discontinued, recognised in the consolidated profit or
loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at the
date when significant influence or joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —&F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each item of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over the following
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for
this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements  Over the remaining lease terms
or 3 years, whichever is
shorter

Motor vehicles, furniture, 3 to 5 years

fixtures and equipment

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AN
#red

upLE eI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

2.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(e)

M

(g

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Investment property

Investment property is interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating
lease for a property which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment property is stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the
reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment property is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the year in which they
arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the year of the retirement
or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets
are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible
assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over
the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year
end.
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —&F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(h)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than financial assets deferred tax assets and
investment property), the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated. An assets recoverable amount is
the higher of the value in use of the asset or cash-
generating unit to which it belongs and its fair value less
costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the function
of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than
the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation), had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
impairment loss is credited to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

2.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

@)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial assets contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient are measured
at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15
in accordance with the policies set out for Revenue
recognition below. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets (other
than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to the fair value of the financial assets, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPP1”) on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Interest/dividend income which are derived from the
Group’s ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets are classified as measured at amortised
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income,
and fair value through profit or loss. The subsequent
measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —&F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

@

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if
both of the following conditions are met:

. The financial asset is held within a business model
with the objective to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows.

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are
not held for trading. The classification is determined on
an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Dividends are recognised as revenue in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably, except when the Group benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial
asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in other
comprehensive income. Equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income are
not subject to impairment assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4 A

RE M ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

2.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

@)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading, financial
assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for
the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of
principal and interest are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments
to be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, as described above, debt
instruments may be designated at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates,
or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are carried in the consolidated statement of financial
position at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

This category includes derivative instruments
and equity investments which the Group had not
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value
profit or loss are also recognised as revenue in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss when the right
of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can
be measured reliably.
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —&F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

@

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated
from the host and accounted for as a separate derivative
if the economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to the host; a separate instrument with the same
terms as the embedded derivative would meet the
definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either
a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of
the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract
containing a financial asset host is not accounted for
separately. The financial asset host together with the
embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a pass-
through arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4 A

RE M ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

2.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

@)

()

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent,
it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all
debt instruments not held at fair value through profit
or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the
original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows
will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2 —F = —F+_-H=+—HI - F/F

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

0)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided
for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month
ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making
the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition
and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

For financial assets, except for receivables from margin
clients and receivables from cash clients, the Group
considers that there has been a significant increase in
credit risk when contractual payments are more than
30 days past due. The Group considers these financial
assets are in default when contractual payments are 90
days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4 A

RE M ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

2.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

0)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

For receivables from margin client and cash clients, the
Group considers there has been a significant increase
in credit risk when clients cannot meet the margin
call requirement and uses the loan-to-collateral value
(“LTV”) to make its assessment. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a margin client
receivable to be in default when there is a margin
shortfall which indicates the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full taking into
account the pledged securities held by the Group. A
margin client receivable is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

— Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs.

Stage 1

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs.

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at
the reporting date (but that are not purchased
or originated credit-impaired) and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —&F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

0)

(k)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not
contain a significant financing component or when the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does
not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group has applied loss rates which are
reference to the default rates from international credit
rating agencies, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, accruals, lease liabilities, third party interests
in consolidated investment fund, bank overdrafts and
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, and note
payable.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4 A

RE M ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

2.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

k)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)
Loans and borrowings (continued)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Modiification of financial liabilities

Except for changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows as a result of interest rate
benchmark reform in which the Group applies the
practical expedient, when the contractual terms of
a financial liability are modified, the Group assess
whether the revised terms result in a substantial
modification from original terms taking into account
all relevant facts and circumstances including
qualitative factors. If qualitative assessment is not
conclusive, the Group considers that the terms are
substantially different if the discounted present value
of the cash flows under the new terms, including any
fees paid net of any fees received, and discounted
using the original effective interest rate, is at least 10
percent different from the discounted present value
of the remaining cash flows of the original financial
liability. Accordingly, such modification of terms is
accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees
incurred are recognised as part of the gain or loss on
the extinguishment. The exchange or modification is
considered as non-substantial modification when such
difference is less than 10 per cent.
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —&F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(k)

0)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Modification of financial liabilities (continued)

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities
that do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount
of the relevant financial liabilities will be calculated
at the present value of the modified contractual cash
flows discounted at the financial liabilities’ original
effective interest rate. Transaction costs or fees incurred
are adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified
financial liabilities and are amortised over the remaining
term. Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the
financial liability is recognised in profit or loss at the
date of modification.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the aggregate
stand-alone price of the non-lease components,
including contract for acquisition of ownership interests
of a property which includes both leasehold land and
non-lease building components, unless such allocation
cannot be made reliably.

2.

BB REREERTES
BUR (#)

(k)

)

THMEE (&)

BiiemEE (&)
ATEERRIEANERABIE
R MR ABENREERSZ
TRABERERNXMERENLERA
RARERBAEFE - FFEERHEAK
ZEARBELET B ENKRE
BEERGTHE#HE THEBAE
BREEMFEMERT A MR B SR -

T AZHH

WP IR A Al O TT 2 R SHE
EREE MEREFEEELARE
BREERFEABER EREENR
TRBESAERKE WEFES
BRI BARRRA

HE

HE /)T

W& # BRI E M TE— BERE
WP R R & E AR A%
BHRMEExREHEE-

A EBERAHA
BRESEERKAKE D

e —BEHEEEARMY R—EK
ZIRFINEESFEEARBONA
# ANEBEREHEEEKE D WAY
EEERIIFHEEAXNBINERE
REMBEOREDEESEHEER
RED - BRERBE-EDE (BFEHE
S+ RIFHEEFAKE D) M
BREESHAKN HETEREDER
BR N

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 £ 119



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

0]

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
(continued)

As a practical expedient, leases with similar
characteristics are accounted on a portfolio basis when
the Group reasonably expects that the effects on the
consolidated financial statements would not differ
materially from individual leases within the portfolio.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of premises that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

J any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

J any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

J an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —&F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

0]

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

J variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the option;
and

J payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising an
option to terminate the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4 A

RE M ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

2.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

0]

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified
as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term except for investment properties measured
under fair value model. Variable lease payments for
operating leases that depend on an index or a rate are
estimated and included in the total lease payments to be
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as income when they arise.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at commencement date
at amounts equal to net investments in the leases,
measured using the interest rate implicit in the
respective leases. Interest income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic
rate of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding
in respect of the leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —&F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

0]

(m)

(n)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessor (continued)
Sub-lease

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts
for the head lease and the sub-lease as two separate
contracts. The sublease is classified as a finance or
operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease, not with reference to the
underlying asset.

The Group uses the discount rate used for the head
lease (adjusted for any initial direct costs associated with
the sub-lease) to measure the net investment in the sub-
lease if the interest rate implicit in the sub-lease cannot
be readily determined.

Cash and bank balances

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and bank balances comprise
cash on hand and cash at banks, which are not
restricted as to use.

Bank balances held on behalf of clients

The Group has classified the clients” monies as bank
balances held on behalf of customers under the current
assets section of the consolidated financial position
and recognised a corresponding trade payable to
respective clients on grounds that is liable for any loss
or misappropriation of clients” monies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4 A

RE M ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

2.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(0)

(p)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
tax authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —&F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(p)

Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

J when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

J in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4 A

RE M ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

2.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(p)

(q)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
control of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Basis of preparation of financial statements

and principal accounting policies (continued)

(@) Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —&F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

2.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(q)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Commission income from securities and futures dealing

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in
time when the customer has received the service from
the Group, generally when the trades are executed.
Commission and handling income on securities and
futures dealing and broking is generally due within two
days after trade date.

Commission income from placing

The performance obligation is satisfied at point in time
when the customer has received the service from the
Group. The customer receives and consume the benefits
provided by the Group when the relevant services are
rendered.

Management fee income

The Group provides asset management and investment
advisory services on diversified and comprehensive
investment products to customers. Management fee
income is charged at a fixed percentage per month on
the net asset value of the fund managed by Group. The
management fee income is recognised when it is highly
probable that a significant reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
net asset value of the fund is confirmed at each month
end.

Performance fee income

The Group is entitled to performance fee income from
its fund management business when the net asset value
of the fund exceeds certain benchmark at the end of the
relevant performance period. Similar to the management
fee income of the fund, the performance fee income is
recognised when it is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the net asset value of the fund is
confirmed at each relevant performance period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —&F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(q

(r)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Revenue from other sources

Property rental income is recognised on a time
proportion basis over the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised on the
transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership to
the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the goods
sold.

Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group's operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4 A

RE M ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

2.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(r

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using the binomial model, further details of which
are set out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised
in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit
or loss for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and
end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant
date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions
are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2 —F = —F+_-H=+—HI - F/F

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(r)

Share-based payments (continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met, no expense is recognised. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if
the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of
the award are met. In addition, an expense is recognised
for any modification that increases the total fair value of
the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

2.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(s)

Other employee benefits

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the
Group when the employee leaves employment prior to
the contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. Under the MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at the lower of 5% of the
employees’ relevant income or HK$1,500 each month.

The employees of the subsidiaries within the Group
which operate in the PRC are required to participate
in the central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These PRC subsidiaries are
required to contribute a prescribed percentage of their
payroll costs, subject to certain ceilings imposed, to
the central pension scheme as specified by the local
municipal government. The contributions are charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme. The applicable percentages
for the central pension scheme for the year ended 31
December 2022 and 2021 are listed below:
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(s

®

Other employee benefits (continued)
Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

2.

iR e SRR MR

MR REERTEGS
BUR ()
() HttEEEF (&)
RIKEFETE (88)
Percentage
Bk
2022 2021
S fF —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHER TET

Pension insurance BZRR
Medical insurance ERRR
Maternity insurance £ B RR
Unemployment insurance KERR

Work-related injury insurance L& {REE

Housing provident fund EEAER

14.00% - 14.00% —
16.00% 16.00%
4.50% — 5.20% —
8.50% 10.50%
0.45% — 0.45% —
2.00% 1.00%
0.48% — 0.50% —
0.70% 0.70%
0.10% - 0.16% —
0.27 % 1.52%
5.00% - 5.00% —
12.00% 7.00%

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.
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Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(u)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss with the exception of monetary items that
are designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s net
investment of a foreign operation. These are recognised
in other comprehensive income until the net investment
is disposed of, at which time the cumulative amount is
reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange
differences on those monetary items are also recorded
in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of
the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —&F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(w)

Foreign currencies (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to an advance consideration, the
date of initial transaction is the date on which the
Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts
in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

2.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(v)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity, fund and debt
investments at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in
the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participants ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 -  based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —&F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(v)

(w)

(x)

Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.

Governments grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants relate to income that are receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support
to the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable. Such grants are presented under other
income and gains/(losses), net.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(I)  the party is a person or a close member of that
party p
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the

Group;

or
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2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)
(x) Related parties (continued)
() the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (I);

a person identified in (I)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2 —F = —F+_-H=+—HI - F/F

Basis of preparation of financial statements

and principal accounting policies (continued)

(y) Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using weighted
average cost basis and includes all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion, and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period
in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount
of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in
which the reversal occurs.

Significant judgements and estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires the
directors of the Company to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.
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3. Significant judgements and estimates (continued)
The directors of the Company have considered the
development, selection and disclosure of the Group’s critical
accounting judgements and estimates.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
the directors of the Company have made the following
judgements which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Determination of consolidation scope of interest in an
investment funds

The Group invested in investment funds as described in Note
30 to the consolidated financial statements which the Group
concluded that it has control over the relevant activities of the
funds despite the fact that the Group does not hold more than
half of the participating shares of the funds.

All facts and circumstances have been taken into consideration
by the directors of the Company in the assessment of whether
the Group, as an investor, controls the investment funds. The
principle includes the following three elements of control: (a)
power over the investment funds; (b) exposure, or rights, to
variable returns from involvement with the investment funds; and
(c) the ability to use power over the investment funds to affect
the amount of the investors returns.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has effectively held
100% interest in a fund (2021: 55.45% to 100% in two
funds) established in the Cayman Islands. In marking the
judgement as to whether the Group has control over the
funds, the directors of the Company considered the fact that
the Group is the only general partner of the funds and is
acting as the fund manager of the fund in accordance with
the management agreement. The Group has the rights to
all decision making about the operation of the funds and is
able to direct the relevant activities such as acquisition and
disposal of underlying assets of the funds at its sole discretion.
In addition, the fund manager could not be removed by other
participating shareholders, who are only entitled to the shared
returns on the funds based on its net asset value but did not
have any voting rights to the funds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —&F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

Significant judgements and estimates (continued)
Judgements (continued)

Determination of consolidation scope of interest in an
investment funds (continued)

After assessment, the directors of the Company concluded
that the Group has control over the funds and is accounted
for as subsidiaries of the Company in accordance with
the requirements of HKFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial
Statements”.

Determination of transactions between Youbeigin (Guangdong)
Medlical Technology Co., Ltd. and its partners in the PRC

On 21 February 2022, the Group has acquired 51% of
the equity interests in Youbeiqgin (Guangdong) Medical
Technology Co., Ltd (“Guangdong Youbeiqin”). Subsequently,
Guangdong Youbeiqgin and its partners (the “Partners”)
entered into cooperation agreements to form new companies
with registered capital in the PRC and in the opinion of
the directors, adopted the general template of articles of
association commonly adopted in the PRC. According to the
cooperation agreements, Guangdong Youbeigin holds 51%
equity interest of each of the newly incorporated companies,
with term of 2 years (the “Clinics”). Each of the Partners and
its ultimate beneficial owners are independent third parties
and non-connected persons of the Company. Details of the
cooperation were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 4 May 2022.

From the incorporation of new companies and until 31
December 2022, Guangdong Youbeiqin has not injected any
capital as stated in the adopted articles of association, and
has not appointed any director to the Clinics. The Partners
are the fund providers for the Clinics’ setup and operations,
furthermore, the Partners directly and solely appointed the
directors for each newly formed company at their discretion,
in order to manage the operational and financial decisions
and activities directly. In view of that, cooperation progress
confirmation between Guangdong Youbeiqin and Partners are
signed to clarify all the profit or loss arisen from the Clinics
are attributable to the Partners, and Guangdong Youbeigin
is not entitled to any profit or not responsible for any loss/
liabilities for the Clinics as of 31 December 2022. In addition,
legal opinion issued by an independent lawyer registered in
the PRC, has been obtained by the directors to confirm the
validity of the cooperation progress confirmation, and neither
infringement of entered parties’ beneficial interests nor breach
of the PRC laws is noted.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

3. Significant judgements and estimates (continued)
Judgements (continued)
Determination of transactions between Youbeiqin
(Guangdong) Medical Technology Co., Ltd. and its partners in
the PRC (continued)
Based on the actual business circumstances, written
consent with Partners according to the cooperation progress
confirmation and the legal opinion obtained, the directors
of the Company concluded that the Group has no control
over the Clinics as described under HKFRS 10 “Consolidated
Financial Statements” nor beneficiary interest in the Clinics,
Guangdong Youbeiqin recorded its transactions with the
Partners as sales of goods in its financial statements.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are described below:

Credit loss allowances of trade receivables from securities and
futures dealing business

The Group calculates the ECLs of trade receivables from
margin clients and cash clients by estimating the probability
of decline in expected future collateral prices and liquidity of
collateral, with adjustment to reflect the current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate.

Credit loss allowances of loan receivables from money
lending business and other receivables

The Group calculates the ECLs of loan and interest receivables
from individual clients based on the loss rates which are
reference to the default rates from international credit rating
agencies, with adjustment to reflect the current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate.

The Group calculates the ECLs of loan and interest receivables
from corporate clients based on these loss rates which are
reference to the default rates from international credit rating
agencies, adjusted for forward-looking futures specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

142  Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited FiZ &£ EZRE R A 7

B R HE RS (@)

¥ (&)
BETEFEREEEENRERAFER
FEE LT 55 (1)

BREEREBER GEBHRESELE
EHEREFEHOSERZ A RPTERNE
BEA ARFRESARASETENE
BB EERFE105 [46 M BHK] AR
MEEHD NS E TERDHESR
B BEREAGBANEMBERRPE
HESEBHAOR I ARINFERIFEE -

THEE fh 5T

RERER AIEERTEAMBRFEER 2
BENBEREERLEEAFEZEHBR
REZRENMEMERTEE G RRE
FIEAT

EHFRHEEERBELZEWNE SR
ZIEEE R

AREBERBMHEFTEHRRERBER T
REMRmRANAEE FEXERES
EEFRREEPHNEKE S RANEMIE
B8 I F D AR E AR R R
REREBEAMTROTER (ER) »

MEXRBENELREMERT B IZE
ERR

AEBREBEEEE (2ZBRERFRE
BIEENEROX)HEERNETPEEER
EMENEREEER UIFHABIUR
BR ' AR B R 2R AR R RO B FEURI (20
) e

AEERBEZEEEX (2EZERERRF
MEBELHNEOR)AELEEPER
ERRMEMEREEER LIREBA
FE 2 ATHE MR R MRBERBIEL R -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant judgements and estimates (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Credit loss allowances of trade receivables from the placing
and asset management business

The Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does not
track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has applied loss rates which are reference to the
default rates from international credit rating agencies, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

As part of a qualitative assessment of whether a counterparty
is in default, the Group also considers a variety of instances
that may indicate unlikeliness to pay. When certain events
occur, the Group carefully considers whether the events
should result in determining the counterparties as defaulted.

Other than the above, no credit loss allowance has been
provided for other financial assets as the related credit loss
allowance were immaterial.

As at the end of the reporting date, the credit loss allowance
for each type of financial assets is as follows:
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REFEEEHR SELREENEERIE
BEmT

Loan receivables from money
lending business
Trade receivables from securities and

MEEBESE 2 BRER

EFLMEEERBEEL

futures dealing business FEW E 5 BRK

Trade receivables from placingand ~BLEREEBREBEEL
asset management business FEWE 5 BR K

Other receivables Ho A & W R IE

2022 2021
S fF —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
60,590 47,437
262,068 272,732
747 17,903

9,837 7,351
333,242 345,423

Further details are set out in Notes 19, 20, 21 and 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

3. Significant judgements and estimates (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested
for impairment annually and at other times when such an
indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Income tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
carried forward to the extent that it is probable (i.e., more
likely than not) that future taxable profits will be available
against which the unused tax losses can be utilised, based
on all available evidence. Recognition primarily involves
judgement regarding the future performance of the particular
legal entity or tax group in which the deferred tax asset has
been recognised. A variety of other factors are also evaluated
in considering whether there is convincing evidence that it
is probable that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets
will ultimately be realised, such as the existence of taxable
temporary differences, tax planning strategies and the periods
in which estimated tax losses can be utilised. The carrying
amount of deferred tax assets and related financial models
and budgets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and to the extent that there is insufficient convincing evidence
that sufficient taxable profits will be available within the
utilisation periods to allow utilisation of the tax losses carried
forward, and the asset balance will be reduced and charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —&F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

Significant judgements and estimates (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Net realisable value of inventories

The Group recognises write-down on inventories based on
an assessment of the net realisable value of the inventories.
Write-down is applied to the inventories where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the net realisable
value is less than cost. The determination of net realisable
value requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where
the expectation is different from the original estimates, such
difference will impact carrying value of the inventories and
write-down on inventories charged to profit or loss in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.

Operating segment information

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed
separately according to the nature of their operations and
the products and services they provide. Each of the Group’s
operating segments represents a strategic business unit that
offers products and services which are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of the other business
segments. Summary of details of the operating segments are
as follows:

(@ the financial investments and services segment
comprises financial investments and trading, debt, fund
and equity investments and money lending business;

(b) the brokerage and commission segment comprises
provision of trading in securities and futures contracts
services; and

(c) the corporate and others segment comprises corporate
income, sales of goods and expense items.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is measured consistently with the Group’s loss before
income tax except that bank interest income, share of profits
of an associate, finance cost, head office and corporate
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude cash and bank balances, investment
in an associate, deferred tax assets and other unallocated
head office and corporate assets as these assets are managed
on a group basis.
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ReESEER (@)

4. Operating segment information (continued) 4.

Segment liabilities exclude note payable, bank overdrafts,
bank borrowings, other borrowings, tax payable, deferred tax
liabilities and other unallocated head office and corporate

liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the

then prevailing market prices.

For the year ended 31 December 2022

DEABEFTBRENRER RTEX RIT
fER HtEE BANE EEHBEAE
REMADEABEAREE BRZF
BEDIREAERER-

DEMHENBED2ZEERRITHEH
ETF =2 EEHET

BE-_Z-_—_f+-A=+—HILLEE

Financial Brokerage
investments and Corporate
and services commission and others  Consolidated
BBRE - .
ERE RERAE LERHM o)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET THET
Segment revenue: FERA:
External G 46,779 187,005 44,056 277,840
Intersegment sales DERHEE 1,511 1,839 3,350
188,516 45,895 281,190

Elimination 85 (1,511) (1,839) (3,350)
Total FChy 187,005 44,056 277,840
Segment results PERE (19,725) (33,790) (78,914)
Reconciliation: K
Bank interest income H|ITHIEHA 62
Unallocated expenses AP X (968)
Finance costs BBER (25,838)
Share of profits of an associate ~ FE5E & 22 )& 7l 3,006
Loss before income tax BRETEHAIEE (102,652)
Income tax expense PrEHR X (2,738)
Loss for the year KEEHR (105,390)
Assets and liabilities EERERE
Segment assets PEEE 960,099 878,817 65,457 1,904,373
Reconciliation: Hig:
Unallocated assets AOWMEE 149,527
Total assets BEBE 2,053,900
Segment liabilities NEEE 705,943 13,823 720,391
Reconciliation: HiR:
Unallocated liabilities AOMEE 227,769
Total liabilities BEERE 948,160
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F— — 4+ _H=—+—HILFZ

ER (|

4. Operating segment information (continued) 4. RBEHD

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-_T-—F+-_A=+—HI&EE

Financial Brokerage
investments and Corporate
and services commission and others  Consolidated
MHEE |
N BR 7% wiE ke TEREAM FoRe)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAEL FAL FAEL FEL
Segment revenue: FERA:
External IR 43,251 161,670 38,920 243,841
Intersegment sales DEREE - 1,711 1,240 2,951
43,251 163,381 40,160 246,792
Elimination i - 1,711) (1,240) (2,951)
Total Bt 43,251 161,670 38,920 243,841
Segment results DERE (103,889) (200,139) (31,712) (335,740)
Reconciliation: K
Bank interest income RITHBWA 25
Unallocated expenses AP X (881)
Finance costs %% A (32,863)
Loss before income tax BT ERAIEE (369,459)
Income tax expense PSR X (1,807)
Loss for the year AEEEE (371,266)
Assets and liabilities EERER
Segment assets NREE 1,320,415 337,488 53,857 1,711,760
Reconciliation: -
Unallocated assets AOEREE 116,552
Total assets BERE 1,828,312
Segment liabilities NEEE 53,143 220,898 41,922 315,963
Reconciliation: #hk:
Unallocated liabilities Aok ERE 389,940
Total liabilities EREvit 705,903
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For the year endled 31 December 2022 {2 —F — —4F+ _H=1—HILFZ

4. Operating segment information (continued) 4. RETEER )
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE_F__Ff+-A=1t-RLHEE

Financial Brokerage
investments and Corporate
and services commission and others Consolidated
RER# BEREE TEREM &8

HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$/000
TRR TRER TR TRER

Depreciation on property, plant and nE BERRENE
equipment 389 1,193 1,582

Depreciation on right-of-use assets RAEEENE 305 4,650 4,955
Provision for credit loss allowances o~ HEEBEE 2 EREH

loan receivables from money lending ZIEEFRRRE R
business, net T8

Reversal of credit loss allowances on trade EHRAEEEEREL
receivables from securities and futures LENESEREE

dealing business, net BRARRDFE

Reversal of credit loss allowances on RERBEERERESL
trade receivables from placing and LRUESERZEE
asset management business, net BRRRREFE

Provision for credit loss allowances BNRE ReREM
on financial assets included in BEFEREZER
prepayments, deposits and other BEZREFRER
receivables, net RFE

Written off on other receivables 8 EL A B L SO

Written off on intangible assets HMHEVEE

Capital expenditure* EARY*

* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and * BARXBERNEWE BEREE-

equipment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —&F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

4. Operating segment information (continued) 4. REIEEHR )
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BHE_T-_—F+_A=+—HILFE
Financial Brokerage
investments and Corporate
and services commission and others Consolidated
MBRE
KRR BekRe CERELM Ra
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TAT
Depreciation on property, plant and nE BERRENE
equipment - 5,754 593 6,347
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FRESENE - 9,230 10,446 19,676

Provision for credit loss allowances on MEERELZERER
loan receivables from money lending ZEEBRAE R

business, net ek 22,877 - - 22,877
Provision for credit loss allowances on BALHEE E%ﬁ%%i

trade receivables from securities and JENESRRZEE

futures dealing business, net FEREFE - 89,835 - 89,835

Provision for/(reversal of) credit loss REREEEREBES
allowances on trade receivables from JENESRRZEE
placing and asset management business, BB & E R/ (B E)

net 8 - 17,191 (796) 16,395
Provision for credit loss allowances BHE ReRhEM

on financial assets included in ERHAR S 22/

prepayments, deposits and other EEZEERRREE

receivables, net fHREEE 4,668 - - 4,668
Written off on other receivables i sE H Ao U TR IR - 242 - 242

Net loss from sub-leasing right-of-use asset AHERREAE 2 BiE
F8 - 8,806 - 8,806

Waiver on note payable and note interest ~ # % ERNEERENEE

payable & - - (2,158) (2,158)
Capital expenditure* BERRX - 180 3,500 3,680
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and * BEXARABEREME BE X

equipment.
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For the year endled 31 December 2022 {2 —F — —4F+ _H=1—HILFZ

4. Operating segment information (continued)
Geographical information
The following tables present derived revenue from external
customers for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
and certain non-current assets information as at 31 December
2022 and 2021, by geographical region.

Hong Kong
£

2022
—g-c=

HK$'000

TERT

Revenue from external REMNREF 2 W
customers
Non-current assets ERBEE
Non-current assets* FERBEE"
* Excluded investment in an associate, equity investments at fair

value through other comprehensive income, deferred tax assets,
finance lease receivables, loan receivables from money lending
business and deposits and other receivables.

Information about major customers and suppliers

The aggregate revenue during the year attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers was 28.35% (2021: 30.26%) of
the Group’s total revenue, of which 8.13% (2021: 8.20%) was
made to the largest customer.

There was no single supplier or aggregate any five suppliers
that contributed to 10% or more of the Group’s total purchase
during the year (2021: Nil).

None of the directors of the Company or any of their
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the directors of the Company, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interests
in the Group’s customers or suppliers during the year.
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2021
— & -l
HK$'000
FET

265,367 239,776 12,473 4,065 277,840

kRN 902,460
7,687 14,234

REFSFER (|
& & R

TREVWEEZZT-_Z_FR=_FT=—
+-A=Z+—BLFERwEE S ZKRE
IREBEEZWHZRMR _E_—_FR_-F
T—F+-_A=t—HEHERED ZET
ERBEEER -

The PRC Total

HE @t
2022 2021 2022 2021
ZEZ—F etk —F - —F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TERT FTAEL

HK$'000
TER

243,841
903,744

428 1,284 637,566
428 1,234 8,115

* TEER—HBZ2RARZRE BBRHEM
2EBHERATEIEZ RARE BT
BMBAEE BMEHERERE BREEK
EEZ BRERRIZ S N A e YR -

EBFrEEZFRHEERNER

FER AREEBNAEATERNRIFZA KA
REEEWZR28.35% (ZF = —F:
30.26%) EFZARAEF58.13% (= F
——5:8.20%) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F— — 4+ _H=—+—HILFZ

wIN 3 7

Revenue, other income and losses, net 5. WA -HtWAREEFHE
An analysis of revenue and other income and losses, net is as BRAWRA - EMRAREBEBEEREZ 2NN
follows: Ik
2022 2021
—E—-— —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FAT
Revenue WA
Revenue from contracts with — Z B8 & &2ER|E 155
customers within the scope /2] A1 R 1815 [ 5 #57
of HKFRS 15 recognised ZEFEAHA
at a point in time
Commission income from BERLEEEZAEBA
securities and futures dealing 8,543 11,150
Commission income ez BA
from placing 165,331 137,861
Performance fee income =EEBRBA 740 97
Management fee income BEEERA 33,894 38,823
Sales of goods HEREm 9,422 -
Revenue from other sources — &ERI B & ERIZE 159
outside the scope of FE )2 B b F IR A
HKFRS 15
Losses on disposal of equity — HEEREZZATFEYE
investments at fair value ZRAKE ZEE
through profit or loss (4,280) (17,365)
Gains on disposal of debt HEBBRRRATEIR
investments at fair value ZEBRE 2 W
through profit or loss 9,349 5,630
Gains/(losses) on disposal of ~ H&FERERIZ A FE
fund investments at fair value 38R 2 £ & E 2 Wz
through profit or loss (E18) (1,158)
Dividend income from THRAFHFREZKRE
investment in listed WA
equity securities 1,971
Dividend income from fund  #EiRERZE A FEIERZ
investments at fair value EeREZREWA
through profit or loss 2,485 5,223
Interest income from money  HRE 2 B WA
lending business 31,908 37,917
Interest income from BHERERZMEBA
securities margin 13,131 12,659
Interest income from debt BEBRE ZFBWA
investments 6,265 11,033
277,840 243,841
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year endled 31 December 2022 {2 —F — —4F+ _H=1—HILFZ

Revenue, other income and losses, net

(continued)

An analysis of revenue and other income and losses, net is as

follows: (continued)

5. WA -HEBRAREERZFHE @

BRWA EMBRARERFEZ DTN

Other income and losses, net

Bank interest income

Handling fee income

Change in third party
interests in consolidated
investment fund

Wages subsidies of
the Employment
Support Scheme

Rental income

Waiver on note payable and
note interest payable

Net loss from sub-leasing
right-of-use asset

Interest income from finance
lease receivables

Gain on modification of lease

Loss on modification of
note payable

Loss on modification of
other receivable

Others

R A RSB F R
SRR
FEBUA

WA RERE 2B
RS D

R R 82 TEMAE

He WA
HERNERMENRE
L&

DEEREEE ZEBRFE

BEMRERUGRIEZ M B
YA

MEET R

e RIBIER] B 1R

H o fE R RIS R] B 1R

Hity

T (&)
2022
—s-=
Notes HK$’000
B 5 FBT
62
(i) (3,744)
(ii) 1,007
(iii)
22
11
34 (2,422)
24 (1,502)

2,361

(2,706)

152  Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited #Z & B Z R H R A 7

2021
T4
HK$’000
FAT

25
1,109

(3,435)

1,295

2,158

(8,806)




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F— — 4+ _H=—+—HILFZ

Revenue, other income and losses, net
(continued)

An analysis of revenue and other income and losses, net is as
follows (continued):

Notes:

(M)

(ii)

(iii)

This amount represented the net change in net asset value
of consolidated investment fund attributable to third-party
shareholders, which was fully redeemed during the vyear.
Details of the Group’s interest in consolidated investment
fund are disclosed in Note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, government grants
were received by certain subsidiaries in connection with the
new phase of Employment Support Scheme launched in year
2022. There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies
relating to these grants (2021: Nil).

This amount represented the rental income from sub-leases
the properties under operating lease arrangements with leases
negotiated for less than one year.

Finance costs
An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

WA EHbg A R EEEEE®m

BRWA BB ARERFEZ DM
(&)

() ZEBEE-IREEGGEAREESE
EFEZFES WHRFRZIHER K
EERNGEREE SRR ZHFBRERES
AU RERM 30 -

iy BEZT-_-F+-A=1+—HILFE"
ETHBARWRER —E-—F#H>
R E B A BT B E
BRSSP RBITIEEKAEE (=
T —F |

(i) ZEeMEEAKEHERFRTEREYEZ
HEWRA ZHERES —F2ZA-

M E A

Interest on bank borrowings
Interest on other borrowings

RITIEEFIE

— margin loans

Interest on other borrowings

— secured/unsecured
Interest on bank overdrafts IRITEZFE
Interest on note payable NS SN
Interest on lease liabilities HEBGNE
Others H

HfEENE - RESER

Hib g BRI S —FEM EE

MBERASTAT
2022 2021
—ZE-= T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAET
1,367 2,072
3,458 5,483
14,383 16,520
1,159 2,265
5,026 5,914
426 593
19 16
25,838 32,863
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A SRR

For the year endled 31 December 2022 {2 —F — —4F+ _H=1—HILFZ

7. Loss before income tax 7. BRETBHATER
The Group’s loss before income tax is arrived at after charging/ REBBRATEBATER TR (GHA) M
(crediting): THARESR:
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FAT
Depreciation on e
Right-of-use assets (Note 14) EREEE (Mizt14) 4,955 19,676
Property, plant and equipment W W R (HEE13)
(Note 13) 1,582 6,347
6,537 26,023
Employee benefit expenses EERMHAX (BEEEHS)
(including directors’ (KI5 () &8) -
remuneration (Notes (i) and 8)):
Wages and salaries TEERF® 130,316 83,232
Equity-settled share option R E 2 BIRELEE 38
arrangements, net (Note 38) (Ff7E38) 18,024 11,880
Retirement benefit scheme R A &R
contributions 4,597 4,554
152,937 99,666
Minimum lease payments under KEHERT 2 REBERMK
operating leases (Notes (ii) and 14) (B E (i) B214) 4,883 631
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN B & 2,800 1,800
Provision for credit loss allowance ~ MEXBFELEZEWERZ
on loan receivables from money FEBERETIRFR
lending business, net 13,153 22,877
(Reversal of)/provision for credit EFMMEEEXERELZ
loss allowance on trade receivables  FEULE S ER7 2 5 EE 1B E B
from securities and futures (#[E) G FH
dealing business, net (10,664) 89,835
(Reversal of)/provision for credit MEREEEBREBEELEZ

loss allowance provision on trade ERWE SRRz EEBHRER
receivables from placing and asset (#m) FHRFE

management business, net (15,692) 16,395
Provision for credit loss allowance — FH ATETFIE - =& R EH i &L

on financial assets included in REZeMEEZFEFE

prepayments, deposits and other BimatiesE

receivables, net 4,668
Written off on other receivables S E A R W R IR 242
Written off on intangible assets WiHEEE -
Written off on property, WEYE BB RREB

plant and equipment -
Foreign exchange differences, net PN ERR RE (539)

154  Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited #Z & B Z R H R 2 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Loss before income tax (continued)
Notes:

(i) As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the
retirement benefit schemes in future years (2021: Nil).

(i) The amount represented short-term lease payments for the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 under HKFRS 16.

Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation, is as follows:

7.

iR e SRR MR

BREFEBBAIEE (&)
Bt -

() RZB-_—F+-_A=+—H Ar%EBEL
EEG KA BIER D R RFERIKGE
MEtEMR (T —F 8\) -

iy ZEHEBREESYHEREENEI65H
REBEZ_T_ZFR=ZT=_—F+=A
=t+—HIEEFEEZEBRBEENRK-

EEME

RIEEMRB FERAMEHE383(1)()
b):(c) RO IERAR AT (HEEEMZZER)
BOF2HWECFANESHES O T

kn
e RMMEEMEN

Fees

Salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind

Equity-settled share option
arrangements, net

Retirement benefit scheme
contributions

RRAR R ET B4R

BB s B FE

2022 2021
- —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TExT FAT
581 581

1,674 3,615
7,129 3,736

82 62

7,994

During the year ended 31 December 2022, 638,400,000
share options were granted (2021: 494,690,000) to the
directors of the Company, in respect of their services to the
Group, under the share option schemes of the Company,
further details of which are set out in Note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements. The fair value of such
options, which has been recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on the grant date, was determined
as at the date of grant. The amounts recognised in the
consolidated statements of profit or loss for the years were
included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

BE-_E-_—F+_A=+—81tFE"
REBEARRNEERETE AR ESHKE
£ 8RS B/ IR & $£638,400,00017 B8
A% #E ( —F = — £ : 494,690,00017 ) * # —
SHBERGE AU B RERME38 -2 S8
BREARDEBERGAEBERER EA
FEITAREBHEE MRZEFER
GAEBERNERZEBEFALLES
B EERA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year endled 31 December 2022 {2 —F — —4F+ _H=1—HILFZ

8. Directors’ remuneration (continued) 8. EEM=
Salaries, Equity-settled ~ Retirement
allowances  share option benefit
and benefits ~ arrangements, scheme Total
Fees in kind net contributions  remuneration
REGEZ
HeoRl BREZH BIER
we RENEA B g MensE
2022 —BICF HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET TET TET TET

Executive directors YTEE
Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman) ~ FREER %4 (£/%)
Ms. Chen Jinxian (Vice Chairman) B&F &+ (21T /%)

(appointed on (R=B-—%
21 February 2022) ZRAZT-BEZA)

Mr. Yu Qingrui REHEE

Mr. Wang Jun (Chief executive ~ FE 5% 4 (TTH#EE)

officer) (resigned on (R=Zz=fF
6 June 2022) NARBEE)

Ms. Song Caini (appointed on ~ REEXT (RZE==F
21 February 2022) ZAZ+—-HEZA)
Mr. Chen Hongjin (appointed on R & %% (RZE-—F
21 February 2022) ZAZt+-REZA)

Mr. Li Jing (Chief executive TELE (THER)

officer) (appointed on (R=F=-=F
9 December 2022) TZANREZE)

Independent non-executive BUKHTES

directors®

Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong BEREE

Mr. Wu Ming REFE

Mr. Liu Hongwei (resigned on ~ SIZ@ %4 (RZF-_4F

22 December 2022) TZAZTZBE{E)

Mr. Lin Guoyan (appointed on ~ #EIA S % (RZE==F

22 December 2022) T-A-+=-REZf)

i Subsequent to the reporting period, Mr. Lin Guoyan has resigned i RIEHE MEREEERERARAZ
as independent non-executive director of the Company and Ms. Li BUFRTEERFTERLTEN-F
Meifeng has been appointed as the Company’s independent non- TEF=ZANBREZERARRZEILI
executive director on 8 March 2023. MITES-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —&F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

Directors’ remuneration (continued) 8. EEM=E m
Salaries,  Equity-settled Retirement
allowances  share option benefit
and benefits  arrangements, scheme Total
Fees in kind net  contributions  remuneration
REEE 2
Fe 2R BRERE RN
we  REDEN et s B MewE
2021 “E-F HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TBT TR T T TBTT
Executive directors® HiTESE®
Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman)  FREEREA (XF) - 650 1,205 33 1,888
Mr. Xu Ke (Chief executive RIEE (ITHER)
officer) (resigned on RZB_—F
28 December 2021) TZAZT\REE) - 2,730 - 18 2,748
Mr. Yu Qingrui REHEE - 126 1,205 1337
Ms. Lam Hay Yin (resigned on ~ #EHL L (RZZ=—F
16 November 2021) T—AT/RERD) - 109 1,205 5 1319
Mr. Wang Jun (Chief executive ~ TE 54 (1THEH)
officer) (appointed on (R=B=—-F
28 December 2021) TZAZT\BEZE) - - - - -
Independent non-executive BIFBTES
directors
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong BEREE 150 - - - 150
Mr. Wu Ming R#ATE 71 - 121 - 192
Mr. Liu Hongwei HEREE 360 - - - 360
581 3,615 3,736 62 7,994
# Subsequent to the reporting period of year ended 31 December # REBEE-Z-—F+-_A=+—HLFE

2021, Ms. Chen Jingxian (Vice Chairman), Ms. Song Caini
and Mr. Chen Hongjin have been appointed as the Company’s
executive directors on 21 February 2022.

Subsequent to the reporting period, Mr. Lin Guoyan agreed to
waive the remuneration for his service in year 2022 upon his
resignation on 8 March 2022 (2021: Nil).

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2021: Nil).

ZREEE BRERzT (BIER) KX
RELTEBEAEAEER T __F_A
Tt BEZAEAEARRRRITES -

RmERR MEXEER T -_—F=

AN\BEBERRFERERR

REMNE (ZF=—%: #)

—E-oFy

RERNBERNTBIIERTES 2 4
Fe(ZE—F:8&)-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year endled 31 December 2022 {2 —F — —4F+ _H=1—HILFZ

9. Five highest paid employees 9. AUGESHMES
The five highest paid employees during the year included one FAAUKSFHEEBRE —REF (=

director (2021: one director), details of whose remuneration T —F —RER) BEIHEFREH
are set out in Note 8 above. Details of the remuneration R EXEES c FARTINE (ZT=—45:
for the year of the remaining four (2021: four) highest paid MB)EARREF 2R FHES 2B
employees who are not a director of the Company are as THBWT:

follows:

2022 2021
—E_-CF T —%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAET
Salaries, allowances and e R REYEAR

benefits in kind 57,318 34,190

Equity-settled share option RIEEE 2 BIRIELEE F8
arrangements, net 1,809 1,164

Retirement benefit scheme RREFFT B R
contributions 97 138

35,492

e FTIBEZIEFTZ &= FME
BABIT :

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

2021
—E-—F

HK$4,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 4,000,001,% 7T 26,500,000/ 7T 1
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 7,000,001 7T £7,500,00078 7T 1
HK$10,500,001 to HK$11,000,000 10,500,001 7L 2= 11,000,0007 7T 1
HK$13,000,001 to HK$13,500,000 13,000,001 7L £13,500,00078 7T 1
HK$25,00,001 to HK$30,000,000 25,00,001,% 7C £30,000,000/%8 7T -
4

During the year, 159,600,000 share options were granted to
one non-director highest paid employee (2021: 159,600,000)
in respect of his service to the Group under the share option
schemes of the Company, further details of which are set
out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements. The
fair value of such options, which has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on the grant date, was
determined at the date of grant. The amounts recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the years were
included in the above non-director highest paid employees’
remuneration disclosures.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10. Income tax expense

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2021: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising
in Hong Kong during the year. Under the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime, the first HK$2,000,000 of profits of the
qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of
group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Taxes on profits assessable in the PRC in the current year
have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the PRC
in which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

iR e SRR MR

10. FIB8%iBA X

BEENGH BEERAFEAEBELEZ
Bt E R R FIR16.5% (T — —F:
16.5% ) B8 R 5147 o IR IR W 4R ) F1 15 T & 5
A EREBEEREH2,000,0008 TH
F#5128.25% KB = BH - i 8 82,000,000
7B TCHE T B2 16.5% BB REF - T/ A&
W AR I RS TR R I S A B R A
BA216.5% M — T R -7 -

AERFEBERB G ZHACRERT
AP EBRzRERES  HAREEE
PRER B 2 RITRRETE -

2022 2021
—E-CfF —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHER FET
Current — Hong Kong BN —FE
Charge for the year FEXH 2,241 2,070
Under-provision/(over-provision) BEFEBETRS
in prior years (EBRERE®) 302 (408)
2,543 1,662
Current — the PRC BIHg—rp
Charge for the year FEXH 173 -
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETE 22 59
59
Deferred (Note 17) BT (MEE17) 86
Income tax expense PRSH R X 1,807
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year endled 31 December 2022 {2 —F — —4F+ _H=1—HILFZ

10. Income tax expense (continued) 10.
A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to loss
before income tax using the statutory rates for the jurisdictions

in which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are

FrEHEX @
ERAATREADD K E QT FEE
BE 2 EER R E 2 KRR AEEE
BrReMEY RRERHRSE S
BN WEMT -

domiciled to the tax position at the effective tax rates is as

follows:

2022 2021

—=E_—— T

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTERT FAET

Loss before income tax FrET1S TR E 18 (102,652) (369,459)

Tax at the statutory tax rates BEEMRTE 2B (20,762) (66,382)

Income not subject to tax RETWA (7,486) (2,368)

Expenses not deductible for tax AE OB X 12,947 9,316

Tax losses not recognised AHERBIAEE 18,488 60,945

Tax losses utilised EHANIAER (399) (428)

Temporary difference not recognised 7 & 73 & I Z= 58 366 1,258
Under-provision/(over-provision) BAEFEREBTR (HBREEE)

in prior years 324 (349)

Tax concession MR (575) (20)
Tax relief of 8.25% on first 2,000,000/ 7T f& SR Tt 5 A Z B

HK$2 million assessable profit 8.25% Z T IR % (165) (165)

Tax at the effective rate BREBRHERTE 2B 2,738 1,807

11. Dividends 11.
The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment
of any final dividend for the year (2021: Nil).

12. Loss per share attributable to owners of the 12.

Company

The calculation of the basic loss (2021: loss) per share
amount is based on the loss for the year attributable to
owners of the Company of approximately HK$106,759,000
(2021: loss of HK$371,266,000), and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue of 15,980,612,000 (2021:
15,969,650,000).
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Hiz%\
ARBESVERZRAFTFEIRMNEMK
BB (ZE_—F &) -

RARERABRGEBRER

BREAEB(ZZE-—F 5FE)4%E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MR

12. Loss per share attributable to owners of the  12. ZATEFAELEEREIE (@0
Company (continued)

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share are BREAREEEELERTIERGE:
based on:

2022 2021

—E-fF —E-—%F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTHERT FET
Loss for the year attributable to AEESRERKEEEIEMA
owners of the Company, used RRABHER ARIEFAER

in basic and diluted loss per
share calculations

(106,759) (371,266)

Number of shares

KR8 E
2021
—E—F
‘000
TR
Shares &)
Weighted average number of AAHEEREARREEEEMA
ordinary shares in issue during FARADETEBRINETHE
the year used in the basic and
diluted loss per share calculations 15,980,612 15,969,650
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the assumed BE_T-__Ft+t_A=+—-HLEE
conversion of potential ordinary shares in relation to the share HRBREZITEEBRBERKN T
option has an anti-dilutive effect to the basic loss per share as TE URREREFEBRECEELR
the exercise price of the options exceeds the average market RHEREABEAAREBEYE (%

price of ordinary shares (2021: same). ——%F:R) -
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A SRR

For the year endled 31 December 2022 {2 —F — —4F+ _H=1—HILFZ

13. Property, plant and equipment 13. % -BERREB

At 1 January 2022:

R-ZE-Zf-A—8:

Leasehold
improvements
HEM=E
i

HK$'000
TER

Motor vehicles,

furniture, fixtures

and equipment
FE R

RERRE

HK$’000

FTET

Total

At
HK$/000
TER

Cost XA 23,085 9,089 32,174
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (19,517) (8,459) (27,976)
Net carrying amount RmFE 3,568 630 4,198

At 1 January 2022, net of

n-_E-_—#F#—HF—H"

accumulated depreciation kR REHTER 3,568 630 4,198
Additions NE - 82 82
Written-off of cost 38 X A (4,925) 2,732) (7,657)
Depreciation charged FARAFES M (HE7)

for the year (Note 7) (1,272) (310 (1,582)
Written-off of accumulated W EREINE

depreciation upon disposal 4,925 2,728 7,653
Exchange realignment [E 5 A% 1) (45) (66)
At 31 December 2022, net of N - —4F

accumulated depreciation +ZA=+—8"

B REtITER
At 31 December 2022: N-ZTE-—F

+=ZA=+—8:
Cost PR 16,929 6,035 22,964
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (14,654) (5,682) (20,336)
Net carrying amount FEFE 2,275 353 2,628
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —ZF ——

13. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

wIN 3 7

Ft_A=+—HILFE

13. ¥ -BERKE @

Motor vehicles,

Leasehold  furniture, fixtures
improvements and equipment Total
HEME AR
K KERHE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET
At 1 January 2021: R-B--f—-A—-8:
Cost ZEN 19,048 8,893 27,941
Accumulated depreciation RiE (14,328) (6,931) (21,259)
Net carrying amount REVFE 4,720 1,962 6,682
At 1 January 2021, net of RZE-_—F—H—H"
accumulated depreciation HBREFTER 4,720 1,962 6,682
Additions NE 3,621 59 3,680
Depreciation charged FRFEH (HFE7)
for the year (Note 7) (4,904) (1,443) (6,347)
Exchange realignment bE i B 131 52 183
At 31 December 2021, net of i
accumulated depreciation +tZA=+—8"
MR R &R 3,568 630 4,198
At 31 December 2021: RZZE——F%
+=ZA=+—8:
Cost AR 23,085 9,089 32,174
Accumulated depreciation ZETHE (19,517) (8,459) (27,976)
Net carrying amount REHE 3,568 630 4,198
ANNUAL REPORT 2022 &% 163



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T A R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

14. Right-of-use assets 14. EAEEE

Premises
LE S
HK$'000
TET
Cost: RN
At 1 January 2021 WZ_E_—F—H—H 66,863
Additions nNE 8,978
Derecognised upon expiration of lease RIS JE w42 IR (19,505)
Derecognised upon sub-leasing Mo HER R IEHER (23,670)
Exchange alignment bE 54, R B (243)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RZEZ—F+A=+—80K
—F--%—H—H 32,423
Derecognised upon expiration of lease PO T 5 JE o B 4% L FERR (1,740)
Derecognised upon termination of lease REEIFHE SRR IR (21,468)
Exchange alignment bE 55, A B (237)
At 31 December 2022 R-ZF-—_F+-_A=+—H 8,978
Accumulated depreciation: AFtiE:
At 1 January 2021 RZEZ—F—H—H 30,035
Charge for the year (Note 7) FAZH (H5737) 19,676
Derecognised upon expiration of lease R E R R R (19,505)
Derecognised upon sub-leasing RO TR R IEHER (8,285)
Exchange alignment bE 55 R B (268)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RZE-_—F+-_A=+—8BX
—F--%—H—H 21,653
Charge for the year (Note 7) FARZE (H3E7) 4,955
Derecognised upon expiration of lease A& & m i 4R L RERR (1,740)
Derecognised upon termination PR LE B AR I FERR (21,180)
Exchange alignment & 7 A% (197)
At 31 December 2022 R-F-_—_F+-A=+—H 3,491
Net carrying amount: AR E
At 31 December 2022 R-B-_—F+=-A=+—H 5,487
At 31 December 2021 R-—F—_—F+-_A=+—H 10,770

The right-of-use assets represent the Group’s rights to use
underlying leased premises as offices for its operations under

2 =)

FERAREEREASERES (MFE(ZF
TF—E=F) )RS

HEZHE

BB AL E AN
LTSS BES DT
18 (m0A) 5% A E R A E
SEEL IR

operating lease arrangements over the lease terms, which is
2 (2021: ranged from 1 to 3) years, which are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any, and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liabilities.
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Right-of-use assets (continued)

The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other
than the security interests in the leased assets that are held
by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

14. FAEEE @)

BREEARA 2 HEEE 2 HM M5
HEWZ Y EENEFRSG -HEEET
SR EE R E R -

Fixed payments & 7€ 1~ 3K
Expense relating to short-term

leases (Note 7)

FEEATE EARRE R X (B 3E7)

HERD R ARE

Total cash outflow for leases

2022 2021
—E=-— B —%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET AT
4,333 11,795
4,883 631
9,216 12,426

Leases committed

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
entered into a new lease the underlying asset as an office
in Hong Kong, with the non-cancellable period of 3 years
from the commencement date of the lease on 1 November
2021. The total future undiscounted cash flows over the non-
cancellable period amounted to approximately HK$9,803,000
of which approximately HK$3,063,000 is payable within 1
year from the end of the reporting period and approximately
HK$6,740,000 is payable over 1 year but less than 3 years
form the end of the reporting period.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no new lease is
entered by the Group that is not yet commenced (2021: Nil).

Intangible assets

The intangible asset was of indefinite useful life as it had no
expiry date and represented the Futures Exchanges Trading
Right in Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, which
was fully written off upon the holder of the right, a subsidiary
of the Company applied deregistration on 31 August 2022.

15.

iR
HE-_E-_—H+-_A=+—RHILEFE"
AEEY By HEABERBEEE
ERBEAER L AT B_E_—F+—HA—
BREEMMAKG BB =FRT B
RAAREBRARRRUERRERELR
¥ /5 #99,803,000/%8 7T+ H # 493,063,000/
TARBEHRERE —FAIMN Y
6,740,000 LR M&E B A RE BB —
FERIRZFRIf-

BE-_ZT-_—_F+-_A=1+—HBLFE-
AEBYHMITLMKRFROFEE(ZF
T )

BEEE
EREELEINHA - RAEERAFEHSE
B WABEERXIREEMABR AR ZH
RIRGHE-RZEFMNFTEA (AAE—
MWEAR R =T \HA=+—H
B BUE e - s A EE -
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16. Investment in an associate 16. REEERT 2 RE
2022 2021
—E-—F T
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FHET

Share of net assets FEIEEEFAE 87,006 -

BEARZHENT

Particulars of the associate are as follows:

Place of Percentage of
Particulars of incorporation/ ownership interest
Name issued shares held operation attributable to the Group Principal activities
BFREERTRE  HEMRYS rEMEEEEEER
YNCIECE Z#HE R E BoL FTEER
2021
—F
Senworth Limited Ordinary shares Hong Kong — Investment holding and
provision of property
management services
BWBRAR R B - REBBRREH‘RDZE

IR R

R-ZE-_—F+_-_A=+—H BEE2Q 78
RATRBIREEA R

At 31 December 2022, the associate has interests in the
following companies:

Name of subsidiary Place of Percentage of

directly held by Particulars of incorporation/ ownership interest Principal

the associate issued shares held  operation attributable to the Group activities

BEQAREREEZ BEERTRHO  ERALS AEBEEEREREGZ

(o) PNCIECE 25 REE Bak TEREH

Directly Indirectly
B &

AT RIEYZEEIE  Ordinary shares The PRC 22.50 ~ Investment holding and
ARIA (2021: -) provision of property
([RIEME]) (Z2=—%F:-) management services

MBEMKRIEMEEE EAEK & 22.50 - REERRRHEYME
BRAF (2021:-) B AR %

(TRIEHE]) (ZF=—%F:-)
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16. REEE QT 2 ’RE (#)

16. Investment in an associate (continued)

Name of associate Place of
directly held by Particulars of incorporation/

Percentage of
ownership interest

RIEH %= issued shares held  operation attributable to the Group Principal activities
HEERRAZ REERTRE =EMRLS rEERGEREES 2
BENTEH A= P Bk FEER
Directly Indirectly
HE e

IMEET K KEEEFEZE  Ordinary shares The PRC
HEBRAT

IBEMmRARBMEE BEK B
REBRAR

On 27 October 2022, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company acquired 25% of issued share capital of Senworth
Limited, which was engaged in investment holding and
provision of property management services. Senworth Limited,
which is considered a material associate of the Group, is a
strategic partner for the Group, providing access to property
investment market in the PRC.

The total consideration payable by the Group under the
sale and purchase agreement is HK$84,000,000, of which
HK$30,000,000 was settled in cash and the remaining
balance of HK$54,000,000 would be satisfied by issuing
promissory notes to the vendor upon completion of the
acquisition, and which was then fully offset against vendor
amount owed to a wholly owned subsidiary.

- 11.25 Property investment

- 11.25 YERE

RZEBEZZF+AZ+ERH ARQRAIZ2E
MEARWERBAERARBEBETRAZ
25% HFEFBHRERETBRNMIEEDESE
BRB -BHERATNERBREAATZ
EEBENG ENAEEZEEAER
tH AREEREEAPEEHEREM
ok

BHEEBEWR A5BRERNRKELZER
84,000,000/ 7T E #130,000,0007%5 7T A IR
SEE 5T 4 8254,000,00078 7T 5 £ UL BE
TEREBIBEE HETERLEZELN BB
BEBEEREXE2EMNB AR ZRIEK
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16. Investment in an associate (continued) 16. REEE QAR ZRE (@)
Summarised financial information in respect of the associate, 75 8 5 & 2 B Senworth Limited B 75 3R 3%
Senworth Limited, as extracted from its financial statements is BREMENBER BN T

summarised below:

2022
—E-=
HK$’000
FERT

Current assets MENVEE 2,190
Non-current assets, included investment IRBEE BERBERRZEE

in an associate 381,321
Current liabilities, included amount RBEE REEMNAERZHIE

due to the Group (35,488)
Equity attributable to owners of Senworth Limited B AR A GHESB AEGER 312,989
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR 35,034
Revenue WA 8,550
Loss from continuing operations KEFBEREEB 2 EE (574)
Other gains H b Y &1 209,859
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 4 A Fi & 2 [ 48 U 25 209,380
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information PR EHBEERERNGE M HRKRER
to the carrying amount of the interest in the associate ZREBERRZERREE R

recognised in these consolidated financial statements:

2022
HK$’000

THET
Net assets of the associate at acquisition W B S N Rl 2 B EFE 347,540
Group’s interest in Senworth Limited AREERBBBRAR ZH#ER 25%

86,885
Investment cost REKA (84,000)
Gain on bargain purchase (Note) HBEUW B (M) 2,885
Share of profits on an associate (Note) pak(a):id— /NI F NG D) 121
Investment cost BEKAR 84,000
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest AEBNBHRERRFZERELZ

in Senworth Limited BREE 87,006

Note: P5E
The gain of bargain purchase in amount of HK$2,885,000 arisen at U R B OHIEE AR B (B YE Wi 252,885,000 7T
acquisition date has been included as share of profits of an associate. B RDEBE RN 2R TAR  BRAWKE 2
Details of the acquisition are disclosed in the announcement of the BRARB B _F+ ANz AEPHE-

Company dated 6 October 2022.
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17. Deferred tax
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets d
year are as follows:

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —&F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

17. IEEFIE

uring the BERBBEREERNFAZESHNT:

Deferred tax liabilities EEBEEE

Depreciation

allowance in

excess of related

depreciation

EREGBEB

BETE

HK$'000

FHET

At 1 January 2021 RZZE=——%—H—H 85
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated FARNTAGEBEER ZELERIE

statement of profit or loss during the year (KtzE10)

(Note 10) (86)
Exchange realignment [ 3 32X 1
Gross deferred tax liabilities 2 —F+ZA=+—8"

at 31 December 2021, 1 January 2022 and —E-—F—F—HK

31 December 2022 T _F+ZA=+—B82

B IR B EBRE -
Deferred tax assets ELEHIEEE
The related
Credit loss depreciation
allowances of in excess of
other financial depreciation
assets allowance Total
HthemEE HFHARTERR
FEEERE nERE wat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2021 RZZE_—F—H—H 236 47 283
Deferred tax credited to the FRFFAREBEER BT

consolidated statement of B8 (fIzE10)

profit or loss during the year

(Note 10) (126) (47) (173)
Gross deferred tax assets - —%+-A=+—8"

at 31 December 2021, —ET-—EFE—-—AF—HF

1 January 2022 and —E-_F+-A=+—H

31 December 2022 ZERRIBEERE 110 - 110
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17. Deferred tax (continued) 17.

Deferred tax assets (continued)

Subject to the approval by relevant tax authority, the Group
has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$3,244,174,000 as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
HK$1,572,793,000) that are available for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. Such unused tax losses are subject to the approval
of the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (“IRD”). Tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely. During September
and October 2022, the IRD issued statement of loss for the
assessment year of 2021/2022 to certain Hong Kong group
companies and showed the tax losses carried forward were
approximately HK$3,149,334,000.

The Group has unused tax losses arose in the PRC, which
will be expired in 5 years, of approximately HK$90,047,000
(2021: HK$53,867,000). No deferred tax asset has been
recognised due to unpredictability of future profit streams.

18. Equity investments at fair value through other 18.

comprehensive income

EERIE (&)

EERBEEE (&)
KBRS RILE RZE-=-_F+=A
Tt H AEEAEREEEEZRE
BT 18 #93,244,174,0008 75 (Z B = —4F:
1,572,793,000/% 7T ) - A (K85 IR 518 2
RAIZKRRERBE M -ZEARSAHE
EiEASEENRER ([BHERDHEERR
AEE -MEBEXeERHELE N
—ZFNARTA BEBRAETEESE
ERAABEE T -—F /T - —Fi7HE
FENEBERR BrELENBEEENA
3,149,334,0007% T °

REBNRPEELBRSFEEHNRE A
T I8 518 4990,047,000/8 70 ( — T = — 4 :
53,867,000/78 JT ) © £ WA K 2K i F) AR B~
AIFECEM Rt EEREMEEHEEE
,'go

ZRHEMEEREEAFES
RzBRAERE

2022 2021
—E-—F B —%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT

Equity securities listed in HEELTRAFS BLATFE
Hong Kong, at fair value

392,073 493,258

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income as the Group
considers these investments to be strategic in nature.

The fair values of the listed equity securities investments were
determined based on the quoted market closing prices on the
Stock Exchange.
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18. Equity investments at fair value through other

comprehensive income (continued)
An analysis of investment portfolio is as below:

Stock code Name of securities

R BHEHE

572 Future World Holdings Limited
R RIERBR A A

1141 CMBC Capital Holdlngs Limited
RIBEXRZRBRD

412 Shandong Hi-Speed Holdmgs Group Limited

(formerly known as China Shandong
Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited)*
IWEsEREEAR AR
(MBFEURSREBEEARAR) *

* Percentage of shareholding in the listed securities held by the
Group

During the year, the Group received the amount of
approximately HK$633,000 (2021: HK$1,117,000) dividend
from these investments and recognised in the Revenue in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group sold
part of its equity investments to provide for general working
capital. These shares were sold at an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$167,714,000 (2021: HK$99,048,000)
and resulted in a cumulative gains of approximately
HK$44,087,000 (2021: loss of HK$119,949,000) which
was transferred from equity investment fair value reserve to
accumulated losses during the year.

18. ZRHEMEEKWSEEAFES

BRZBRAEKE (&
WEEEDHTWT
2022 2021
—s—-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000 %o*
FHET FAT %p*
- 1,001 1.91
40,863 0.72
373,839 451,394 2.34
392,073 493,258

* AEEMBLmERZRERD

RAFE AEEEZSRERIREYD
633, 000/87C (ZZ=—4% :1,117,00057T)

YRR

BmRZBARNTER -

REE-_ZE-_—_F+_A=+—HBILFE"
AEBHELHRAKRE AZMH
B -ZEEHR 1\ﬁ@§EZ’7167714000,%

T(ZE =

— —%:99,048,000/ 7T )

ﬁ.&s

LK

HIR—E 25z #4944,087,0008 7L (= F
——4F 1 E518119,949,000/8 7)) R ER B

BAKRER
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18. Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (continued)
As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s equity investments
at fair value through other comprehensive income, with
carrying amount of approximately HK$18,234,000 (2021:
HK$40,399,000), have been pledged to secure the other
borrowings granted to the Group (Note 33(c)).

* On 24 October 2022, a wholly owned subsidiary
(the “Vendor’), being the shares owner of the listed
securities, has entered into a Share Charge arrangement
with Globally Finance Limited, to charge 95,061,000
shares of the listed securities in favour of Globally
Finance Limited. Under Vendor’s instruction, who could
intend Globally Finance Limited, as the trustee, to enter
into share sale and purchase agreements to transfer the
charged listed securities to purchasers, the net proceeds
shall be in or towards the payment to settle the loan
and interest receivable owed by the Company to the
Globally Finance Limited (the “Loans”) until the Loans
are discharged.

On 3 November 2022, 29,705,000 shares of the
charged listed securities had been transferred to two
independent third parties at the considerations of
approximately HK$45,746,000 in total was deemed to
be set-off against the Loans. Details of the transaction
was disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

On 4 November 2022, Vendor further entered into
the conditional Sale and Purchase Agreements with
three independent individuals (the “Purchasers”), each
of the Purchasers respectively pursuant to which the
Vendor agreed to sell and the Purchasers agreed to
acquire, an aggregate 65,356,000 ordinary shares of
Shandong Hi-Speed Holdings Group Limited (formerly
known as China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group
Limited) held by the Vendor as at the date of the Sale
and Purchase Agreements (“Sale Shares”) for a total
consideration of HK$169,272,000.

As the relevant percentage ratio(s) exceed 25% but
all relevant percentage ratios are below 75%, the
transactions contemplated thereunder in aggregation
with the previous disposals constitute a major
transaction on the part of the Company under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules and are subject to
the announcement and the shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.
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18. ZBHMEEWRZE L FES
BzBRAKRE @)
WZZE-_—F+-_A=Z+—H £A&£H
BRI (E#18,234,0008 L (& = —F:
40,399,00078 7T ) BB E b 2 E W miE A F
BHRZBARECIKIFIEAEEER Y
HMEEZER (HEE33(0) °

* RZE-_—_F+A=Z+WmA Lm&#E
ERmEEARENB AR ([BH])
BHM R AR ARG KDL
ZHE U RMBEER AT AXm A
1 5295,061,000R% T & FH A& 5 iR
BEIMER EBBRETRMKE
RARMEASZ AR EE HZ
DEERE EMESTES  AIER
TEFEERE ARG AR R &R RE
BERARMEREEKRFE ([E

R EEEFRESE-

R_ZTE-__F+—H=H"
29,705,000 EHH L THEHE @
ETMEBIYIF=H BREOE
45,746,000/ 70 MR EEHEER B
AR5 ZFIBNEE M EHRERNES3
WE-

RZEBE-_—_F+— WA (XG5
B BEHE="2BYFE=7 (B
) (BBEH)D R LB KM
EEmE B BEFRAEHERE
FTREKESETNESH:E A B
ElUeZEREEER AR (AIHEH
BllEResReMmERERAR) AL
65,356,000 % 7 ([SHERB]) 42
KRB A169,272,04058 I ©

RN IEE B 2t R HBiB25% B A A8
BE DR ENR75% HEFENL
HEETRETZR BN EEE
AHEAARRR ETEANEI451E
TZ—BEBERS AEBTEWHEA
FUAEBE TN Z2RAERBREIENIR
io
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Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (continued)

On 15 February 2023, ordinary resolutions passed in the
Special General Meeting to approve, confirm and ratify sales
of Sales Shares, to the Purchasers at a total consideration of
HK$169,272,000, which is expected to be completed within
twelve months. Details of the transaction were disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 4 November
2022, circular of the Company dated 20 January 2023 and
announcement of the Company dated 15 February 2023.

Loan receivables from money lending business

18.

19.

ZRHMEEKEEZELFES
B2BRAKRE @)
R-E-_ZF-_A+HB BRENRE
BBALTEREREUE BRLEREE
FHEHEHERD 2R EAE169,272,0007%
T EBRBRREARTR BB S 2
BRAATNABPAEZ - —F+—AMWAZ
NE ARAFRMAE_ZTE-_=F—F_+
BZBENMAARBSHA-ZE -_=ZF_"A4
THRHBZRAERE-

FE W& 3R
W EERBR R

Loan receivables
Less: credit loss allowances

B SEENERER

Less: non-current portion

Current portion BNERER

HEXKELEZEWRER
2022 2021
—E—-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
433,419 517,218
(60,590) (47,437)
372,829 469,781
(124,911) (353,930)
247,918 115,851

As at 31 December 2022, the gross amounts of
loan receivables represented loans of approximately
HK$433,419,000 (2021: HK$517,218,000) granted by
the Group to a number of independent third parties. The
loans bore interest at rates ranging from 5% to 7% (2021:
5% to 7%) per annum and were repayable within three
years from the date of drawdown (2021: three years from
the date of drawdown). The grants of these loans were
approved and monitored by the Group’s management.
The gross loan balances of approximately HK$45,278,000
(2021: HK$47,125,000) were past due and approximately
HK$388,141,000 (2021: HK$470,093,000) were not past
due at the end of the reporting period for which there was no
recent history of default.

The Group holds collaterals or other credit enhancements
over its loan receivables balance at market price of
approximately HK$330,988,000 (2021: HK$440,295,000),
including charge of properties located in Hong Kong and the
PRC, listed securities in Hong Kong and equity interest in the
unlisted PRC entities of the borrowers. The carrying amount of
the loan receivables approximates their fair values. As at 31
December 2022, no collaterals are held for credit-impaired
loan receivables (2021: Nil).

NRZZE-_—F+-_A=+—B ERE
PNBEBEAEERTFTZEZBILIE=2F 2
B3 #49433,419,0008 L (— T = —4F:
517,218,000/ 7T ) - E FIZFF E N F5%
7% (B - —F 5% %E7%)stBRA
RERDBHE=F (2 =-_—F: 81
NEMR=F)AEE - RHZEERAHAK
ESEEEEAAENER - ERLEHETELY
45,278,000 7T (=& = — 4 147,125,000
B IT) @ H - ™ #4388,141,0008 0 (=&
— — % :470,093,000/8 70 ) R ¥R & HI R W
M HR - T E T B R AR Bk o

AREBRERERKRERLEBRZT TS IR
8 #9330,988,0008 L (& - —F:
440,295,000 L) FEE BRI EMEE
RAER BEUAETERPEZDER
BB LEMELSRERSFELTRHAE
BEORE- - BUKER EHEEERAFE
HE - RZZEZ—_F+—A=+—H HE
REERERRKER (- —F &)
B
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19. Loan receivables from money lending business 19. HEXBEEZEKER (@)

(continued)
Analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount is as follows: FREEEZEHOTWT:
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
(Y B 82 LE® 2
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL TER TER TEL
At 1 January 2021 R-E-—%—H—H 474,640 66,464 545 541,649
Transfer to lifetime ECL EREEENEZEH
credit impaired (Stage 3) BHEEER (BR3) - (45,278) 45,278 -
New loans during the year KEEIHEER 125,500 - - 125,500
Settlements during the year TEEHE (149,746) - (185) (149,931)
At 31 December 2021 and RZZ-Z—%
1 January 2022 TZA=+—-Bk
“T--%-A—H 450,394 517,218
Transfer to lifetime ECL BREEENEZES
credit impaired (Stage 3) RHEEFR (BR3) (15,000)
Transfer to lifetime ECL not EREREEREZZH
credit impaired (Stage 2) RHEEBRE (KR2) - =
Settlements during the year KERRE (81,155) (83,799)
At 31 December 2022 i —
+-RA=1-H 354,239 433,419

HEEEBRBEBZESHOMMT

Analysis of changes in the corresponding credit loss allowance
is as follows:

2021
—E-—F

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

BT 2] PR3 Mar

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T THEL TEL FExT

At 1 January w—A—8 9,450 14,565 545 24,560
Transfer to lifetime ECL EEECEREZEH

credit impaired (Stage 3) BHEEERE (BE3) - (11,916) 11,916 -

New loans during the year ~ AFEFIEER 2,872 - - 2,872

Settlements during the year ~ AFE#EH (1,444) - (40) (1,484)

Change in risk parameters ~ ER2 & H 3,561 (1,000) 18,928 21,489

At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 14,439 1,649 31,349 47,437

ECL rates BHEEBEX 3.21% 7.78% 68.69% 9.17%
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19. Loan receivables from money lending business 19. HEXBEEZEKER (@)

(continued)

Stage 1 Total
2y R st
HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TER TET
At 1 January R—HA—H 14,439 1,649 31,349 47,437
Transfer to lifetime ECL BREECENEZRH
credit impaired (Stage 3) EHEEHE (BR3) (7,539) 7,539
Transfer to lifetime ECLnot ~ BEZREEREL2H
credit impaired (Stage 2) EHEEHE (BR2) (36) -
Settlements during the year ~ AFEHE ) - (1,160)

Change in risk parameters BER2EEE) , , 13,965 14,313

At 31 December R+-A=+—-H . 52,817 60,590
ECL rates BHEEHEX . ! 87.62% 13.98%

20. Trade receivables from securities and futures 20. B RHEEEEX£B2RBRIKE

dealing business Z R
2022 2021
—EZ—fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FAET
Trade receivables arising BELRRHEEEERELEL
from the securities and e E 5 BR K
futures dealing business
— Cash clients -BexF 14,872 14,267
— Margin clients —RBLEP 394,892 388,581
409,764 402,848
Less: credit loss allowances B EEEIBEE (262,068) (272,732)
147,696 130,116
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20. Trade receivables from securities and futures

dealing business (continued)

Trade receivables from cash clients and brokers arising from
the securities and futures dealing business are repayable
on demand subsequent to the settlement date. The normal
settlement terms of the said trade receivables are, in general,
within 2 days after the trade date. The Group allows a credit
period mutually agreed with the contracting parties for
receivables from margin clients.

Except for receivables from margin clients, the Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances. The Group is allowed to dispose of the securities or
futures deposited by the customers with the Group to settle
any overdue amount.

Trade receivables are unsecured, interest free and repayable
on the settlement date of the relevant trades, except for
the receivables from margin clients of approximately
HK$394,892,000 (2021: HK$388,581,000) which bears
interest at a range of 6% to 15.6% (2021: 6% to 12.25%) per
annum and are secured by investments held by margin clients
of approximately HK$1,472,346,000 as at 31 December 2022
(2021: HK$1,029,010,000). The carrying amount of the trade
receivables approximates their fair values.

Included in the trade receivables as at 31 December 2022 and
2021 are amounts due from certain executive directors, an
independent non-executive director and a related company,
arising from securities dealing transactions. Except for Mr. Lin
Guoyan and Senworth Limited, whose position was cut from
previous transactions, the amounts due from them have no
additional collaterals. For Mr. Chen Xiaodong, the amount
due bears interest at commercial rate and are secured by
respective underlying investments, listed as below:

2022 —EC-CE
Executive director HITES

Mr. Chen Xiaodong BREER KA
Independent non-executive director 8 FFHITEF

Mr. Lin Guoyan (Note (i)) MBI 58 & (HEEEG))
Related company BiE AR

Senworth Limited (Noted (i) BWBRAR (M)
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20.

Gross carrying

SREAE
HK$’000
TEx

%%KZE‘?E“E%&Z%H&E
EIEE'TA

%&H\H%ﬁ,\ EBELECEBCRERER
&@KEZJEHSZE%EEM ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁfﬁ?ﬁz%*
BE - LHBERESERCEEHEERY
BAXSHEPEMAN- EMEHM BeE
PHRIEME AEEZA E‘FE@J%’JHE*HT&
EEEH-

R E IR E & B P RSN A S B & B
ZERBBAEMNERBLEMEERA

B ARBERNHETFPFERAKEEZ
&5 E UME M AR KA -

R-E-_—_F+_-_A=+—HB EBKE
SERAEEER THERERERE
SEEREE KHERKRFEEFZR
JH #394,892,0008 T (T = — & :

388,581, 000/%75)&¢%IJ1)| T6% &
15.6% _2:—¢ 6% £12.25%) 5t 2.
W AR B € B P PTiF 1% & 491,472,346,000
BT (ZZT = —%:1,029,010,0007 7T) 1E
KH-EWESERZEREREEAFAE
A

RZEZZFR_F=_—F+=ZA=*+—
B EURESERBERBEFEERXSHM
EEXZERETHTES  —BELIER
ﬁ%%&%%@ﬂZﬁEWﬁﬁ%mi%
BB EDR M B ARB K E R RN
RN B Z FRIBRR AN sZ SR B 48 5B SN o
JEURPRER LA 2 RIBIREEN KB
WS A ZABEREERR 20T :

Fair Value of
collaterals
I R 2
DEE
HK$’000
TER

Net carrying

amount amount

REFE
HK$’000

FTAERT
1,780

1,780 12,532

10,349 1,219

3,356 728



20. Trade receivables from securities and futures
dealing business (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —&F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

20 EFRHMEEERB 2RKE

Z BRI (#)

Gross carrying Net carrying Fair Value of
2021 —E=—F amount amount collaterals
EHmz
fRE#E REFE NYE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TET
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Chen Xiaodong REER KA 2,787 2,207 2,220
Mr. Yu Qingrui REHEE 2,987 895 907
5,774 3,102 3,127
Independent non-executive director B FEHITESR
Mr. Wu Ming Rkt 417 - -
Related companies BE RN
Dragon Regal Holdings Limited EREEARA R (M)
(Note (iii)) 57 _ _
Eternal Vantage Investment Limited ~ #7k & & BR 2 7] (FiEE(iv))
(Note (iv)) 79 - _
136 - -
Notes: Bt

The balance had been assigned to a director of an indirectly
held associate on 30 November 2022, and had been fully
settled on 23 March 2023. Subsequent to the reporting period,
Mr. Lin Guoyan resigned as independent non-executive director
on 8 March 2023.

On 27 October 2022, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company acquired 25% of issued share capital of Senworth
Limited, which is considered a material associate of the Group.

Mr. Xu Ke, a former executive director of the Company, is also
a director of Dragon Regal Holdings Limited.

Mr. Chen Xiaodong, an executive director of the Company, is
also a shareholder of Eternal Vantage Investment Limited.

The Group maintains accounts with the clearing houses
through which it conducts securities and futures trading
transactions and settlement on a net basis.

No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the
directors, the ageing analysis does not give additional value in
view of the business nature.

() BREHCN _E-_—_F+—A=1+Hi
ETHESEHREAR I —ZESE I
R-E-_=F=A-+=H&5 REH
BoMBEAEER _E-_=F=AN\B#&
EBILIEMITEE

iy RZZE_—F+A-+tH AQA2E
MiEARKEEMERARBEITRAN
25% R AR EENEBHE NG -

(i) HWELE ARAZ—BAATES T
REREBERARZ —REE-

(iv) FREERSEL ARBZ-BHITEE T
REKREGRAF 2 —HRER-

REBREEMRAERE UWERETES
CEEER S WRFHRELELE -

VERBEREDIT HEERAREREK
HE RE&EOM T 2RERIMEE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year endled 31 December 2022 {2 —F — —4F+ _H=1—HILFZ

20. Trade receivables from securities and futures 20. E5RHEE XK 2 EBKE

dealing business (continued) Z MR (#)
Analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount is as follows: FREAEZEHOTET:
2022
—E-=
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
R & &2 B&3 At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TR TET FET
At 1 January R—B—A 40,873 11,022 350,953 402,848
Transfer to 12-month BREEREEREZ12EA
expected credit loss not REEEER (BR1)
credit impaired (Stage 1) 10,581 (10,581)
Other changes (including HEtn B8 (REHEER
new assets and BRIRAREE)
derecognised assets) 63,361 (63,207) 6,916
At31 December R+=A=1+-A 114,815 277,165 409,764
Arising from: BTIIREEL:
Cash clients ReRP 2,379 12,493 14,872
Margin clients RELEF 112,436 264,672 394,892

114,815 277,165 409,764

178  Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited # & E1Z I H R 2 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F— — 4+ _H=—+—HILFZ

20 EXRBEEERB CEBNE

20. Trade receivables from securities and futures

dealing business (continued) Z R (&)
2021
—E-—F
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
PEERT PR Ez2 P2 ER3 @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx AT FET AL
At 1 January R—A—H 121,848 12,171 355,663 489,682
Transfer to lifetime ECL not ~ BB ZRKEERHEZLH
credit impaired (Stage 2) BHEERE () (9,002) 9,002 - -
Transfer to lifetime ECL EEFECEREZEH
credit impaired (Stage 3) BHEEHE (BR3) (17,151) (8,996) 26,147 -
Other changes (including Htn&8 (REHEER
new assets and BILEREE)
derecognised assets) (54,822) (1,155) (30,857) (86,834)
At 31 December R+-A=+—-H 40,873 11,022 350,953 402,848
Arising from: BTFFIBREEL:
Cash clients BeEF 736 - 13,530 14,266
Margin clients RELEP 40,137 11,022 337,423 388,582
40,873 11,022 350,953 402,848
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year endled 31 December 2022 {2 —F — —4F+ _H=1—HILFZ

20. Trade receivables from securities and futures 20. E5RHEE XK 2 EBKE

dealing business (continued) Z MR ()
Analysis of changes in the corresponding credit loss allowance HEEEBEREZEHONMT
is as follows:

2022
—E-=
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
B&1 R B2 &3 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THER THET FET
At 1 January w—A—H 218 272,454 272,732
Transfer to 12-month BREREERE12EA
expected credit loss not REEEER (BR1)
credit impaired (Stage 1) (7,499)
Other changes (including HEth28 (BRHEER
new assets and BIERREE)
derecognised assets) (14,347) (14,591)
Change in risk parameters RE28ED 11,434 3,927
At31 December “t-A=t—H 262,042 262,068
Arising from: BTIIREEL:
Cash clients ReRP 11,373 11,373
Margin clients RELEF 250,669 250,695
262,042 262,068
ECL rates BHEEHRX
Cash clients ReRP 91.03% 76.47%
Margin clients RELEP 94.71% 63.48%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F— — 4+ _H=—+—HILFZ

20. Trade receivables from securities and futures 20. E5RPAEEFEKR 2EWRE

dealing business (continued)
Analysis of changes in the corresponding credit loss allowance

is as follows:

Z R (&)
HEEEEREEEHHMMT:

2021
—E-—F
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
B B2 BE3 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TER TEL
At 1 January w—A—H - 165 182,732 182,897
Transfer to lifetime ECL BREEDEERECEH
credit impaired (Stage 3) BHEERR (BR3) - (180) 180 -
Other changes (including Etn 28 (REHEER
new assets and KIEREE)
derecognised assets) 60 107 (17,743) (17,576)
Change in risk parameters B[R 2 H &8 - 126 107,285 107,411
At 31 December Rt+=ZA=+—H 60 218 272,454 272,732
Arising from: BTFFIBEEL:
Cash clients BeRP - - 11,298 11,298
Margin clients RELEP 60 218 261,156 261,434
60 218 272,454 272,732
ECL rates BHEEHEX
Cash clients RegP - - 83.50% 79.20%
Margin clients RELEF 0.15% 1.98% 77.40% 67.28%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year endled 31 December 2022 {2 —F — —4F+ _H=1—HILFZ

21. BEREEEERBELEZRE
W E Z MR

21. Trade receivables from placing and asset
management business

2022 2021
—=-= —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables arising from the RENEEEEERELLZ
placing and asset management FEUE ZER K
business
— Corporate clients —RAIRP 30,863
— Individual clients — @R EF 241
— Investment funds —-KREES 32,789
63,893
Less: credit loss allowances B EEEERE (17,903)
45,990

Trade receivables from corporate clients, individual clients
and investment funds which are past due but not credit-
impaired represent receivables arising from placing and
asset management business which have not yet been settled
by clients after the Group’s normal credit period. Except for
the credit loss allowances provided, the outstanding trade
receivables from corporate clients, individual clients and
investment funds as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 were
considered not to be credit-impaired as the credit rating and
reputation of the trade counterparty are sound.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group’s trade receivables from corporate clients and
investment funds using a provision matrix:

Current

L

Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) FREA(E (T/5T) 34,226
ECL (HK$'000) BHEEBR(TAL) 747

ECL rates BHEEEER 2.18%
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TEEFP ANEPMEEES 2B B H
BREEREZERESEFTIERNAEE
FTHEEHE ERFAAEBREREE
ERERELEZEWRER -BRATEHIRZE
EEBEEIN RZE_2FRrR - = —
F+-_A=Z+—H8 tEERF -ANEF R
REESHWMABEZEKESRERERA
R EERE REARSHFHAZEEF
BRAEEHRIT -

ERARERARABEEGFTENRKRE AR
EPRREESNRBKEZRRNEER
REREIMT

2022
—E-C
Past due

il

Less than 1to3 Over
1 month months 3 months

YR-MEA

-2=f8f BB=fEA



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ﬁé%%ﬁ%%&

21. Trade receivables from placing and asset m%&ﬁ%‘“&%ﬁEEZE
management business (continued) WEZERNK (&
2021
—T-—F
Past due
Less than 1t03 Over
Current 1 month months 3 months Total
nE OR-fER  -Z=EA  RB=fA @t
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) FEEA(E (T/E7T) 43,296 - - 20,597 63,893
ECL (HK$'000) BHEEBR(TEL) 941 - - 16,962 17,903
ECL rates EHEEEREX 2.17% - - 82.35% 28.02%

22. Finance lease receivables

The Group entered into finance lease arrangements as a lessor
for premise. The term of finance leases entered into is 3 years.

Finance lease receivables are comprised of the followings:

22. MEHEREWFE
AEBMEAEEARYEITIVTREARE R
e THRARENRA=E -BAM
BREWHIBAENTEIE:

2022

—E_—
Present value of
Minimum lease minimum lease
payments payments
REHE
BREHENRK RRBRE
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHET

2,520 2,300
1,890 1,646

4,410 3,946
(464) =

3,946

Within one year —FNR

In the second year E_F

Undiscounted lease payments REERAE K

Less: unearned finance income B R BRER AL A WA

Present value of lease payments JEWARE T RIRE
receivable

Analysed as: DT

Current mE

Non-current FERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

22. Finance lease receivables (continued)

22. BEEEEKRRE @)

2021
—E %
Present value of
Minimum lease minimum lease
payments payments
HEREE
HRBE K NEIEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT
Within one year —FR 2,520 2,426
In the second year E_F 2,520 2,300
In the third year FE=F 1,890 1,646
Undiscounted lease payments AR EERK 6,930 6,372
Less: unearned finance income B RERELE B WA (558) -
Present value of lease payments JEMHH & FRIRE
receivable 6,372 6,372
Analysed as: ST
Current & 2,426
Non-current ERH 3,946
6,372

On 1 October 2021, the Group entered into 2 tenancy
agreements with 2 independent third party to sub-lease
certain properties located in Hong Kong at a lease term of
3 years, resulting in net loss from sub-leasing of right-of-use
assets of approximately HK$8,806,000 (Note 5) during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

Interest rate implicit in the above finance leases is 5.38% per
annum (2021: 5.38%).

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as all leases
are denominated in HK$.
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R-ZE-—F+A—H AEEEREB
VYE=ZAMOHEURESNE THWEST
YRHAH=FENHERE REE-Z
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& & 18 7% 5 #98,806,0007% 7T (M 5
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23.

24.

Inventories

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23. B8

Finished goods

LR

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

=
Are R

2022
—=E-=

HK$'000

FHET
1,796

Vs M et

2021
—E-—%F
HK$'000
FET

24, ANRE REREMWERRIER

Prepayments
Other receivables (Note (i)
Deposits paid

BN IR
Hofto R (MEEEG))
BEffEE

Less: credit loss allowances

W EE R

Less: Non-current portion (Note (ii))

B SRR EN R D (P EE (i)

Current portion

mENED D

2022
— S —
HK$'000
FHET
6,106
163,824
26,963

196,893
(9,837)

187,056
(23,705)

163,351
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2021
—E-—%F
HK$'000
FAT

656
110,974
18,298

129,928
(7,351)

122,577
(37,032)

85,545
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RE M ERR MR

24. Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

The other receivables mainly represent:

a)

Interest receivables arising from the money lending
business with gross amount of approximately
HK$67,295,000 (2021: HK$53,204,000), of which
the balance of approximately HK$5,983,000 (2021:
HK$6,088,000) was past due. The corresponding credit
loss allowance amount are approximately HK$9,837,000
(2021: HK$6,160,000).

A receivable from a third party arising from trading of
equity investments with gross amount of approximately
HK$35,628,000 (2021: HK$40,580,000) has not yet
been settled and no credit loss allowance has been
provided for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
HK$1,191,000). The Group holds collateral over the
amount of approximately HK$54,822,000 (2021:
HK$40,247,000) of property (2021: property) in Hong
Kong. Certain portion of this receivable of approximate
HK$13,641,000 (2021: HK$16,139,000) is classified
as current portion. Remaining balance of approximate
HK$21,987,000 (2021: HK$24,441,000) was classified
non-current portion.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, considering
the financial difficulty of the debtor, a new repayment
agreement has been entered with the debtor, to extend
repayment schedule until 2027 with interest of 15% per
annum. The modification of such financial asset resulted
in loss on modification in amount of approximately
HK$1,502,000 which is recognised to profit or loss, and
included in other income and losses, net.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
has fully redeemed its 55.45% interest of Fortune
China Bond SP I, which resulted a receivable from the
manager in amount of USD5,548,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$43,315,000), being recorded under
other receivables, which was subsequently received on 5
January 2023.

The remaining balance of other receivables of
approximately HK$7,749,000 as at 31 December
2022 (2021: HK$17,188,000) was neither past due nor
impaired and relates to a number of independent parties
for whom there was no recent history of default.

As at 31 December 2022, the balances were rental deposits
and operation deposits to statutory and clearing house and
other receivables of approximately HK$1,717,000 (2021:

HK$12,591,000) and HK$21,988,000 (2021:

HK$24,441,000)

respectively.
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24. A RIE

(%)

GEE

(i)

(ii)

H{th & WK

a)

B ER:

B 467,295,000 7T ( =
% :53,204,000/ 70) -
475,983, oooﬁérz(—f—*i
6,088,000,%75)5/@%@ HEEEE
BB & % 549,837,000/ 7T (=
T —% 16,160,000/ TT) °

MEEBEE 2 BEEH S i@%gﬁ

484 %8 A 4935,628,00008 T (=&
— — % :40,580,000/8 7T) 2 & A&
BRERGEEZERRE=FFEM
KEERBEE-_TE-__F+=A
=t+—BHLEFE UESEREES
BEB(ZZT=—%:1,191,0007%
J0) o ANEE B B & §4954,822,00008
L ( —Z = — 4 : 40,247,000/ 7T )
MEEME(ZTEZ—F YHE)F
BEB R -ZEWHRENE TIBH
#913,641,0008 L (=& = —F :
16139000/575)“*57%%@).:5
T4 %%@21,987,000/%75(f7
— —1%F:24,441,000/8 7T) D B A IE
mENEL S o

REBE_T-_—_F+=-_A=+—8H
IEFE ERXEFATBRE D8
BN YT ERDHE NERE
REBNEE-_ZT - LFE FRRA
15% Bk MEEBHIENEGIE
#91,502,000/ 7T ;2 BB R 1B 5 18
RATFT AE MU A K EIEFEE -

REBEE_T-_—_F+=_A=+—H
I E - AL BB B EE @ Fortune
China Bond SP Il 55.45% 2 ###s &
iﬂzﬁ%‘%ﬁz%ﬁ)\é?ﬁﬁ5,54&000£ﬁ
(HHE R #43,315,0008 7T) » Tyt
A E Ath FE IR SR TE - 32 FE UK SR IE BE 1R
ER-_E_=F— AR AWK

R-ZZE-_—_F+-A=+—8"
U IEZﬁ%Tiiﬁ%Z’Jﬂwooo
BT (ZZE=—%:17,188,000/87T)
I 4 8 B SR (B 0 B R % R B 4
BB BYE AR

)‘5’3:%?::¢+*H*+ A &AM
Bz%&ﬁ%}z HEETEE %?R?E&
,HJ‘ME%Z D RI#91,717,0008 7T (=&

——F: 12,591 ,0007% 7T ) %21,988,000/%
T (—Z = —% 124,441,000/ 7T) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

24. Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

(continued)
None of the prepayments and deposits is either past due or
impaired.

The carrying amounts of deposits and other receivables

iR e SRR MR

24, ANRE BEREMERKIEA
()
BTN RE RS D RSN D RE-

e REMEYHIEZ REELZE QA FE

approximate their fair values. EESE
Analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount of financial FREREERGEED M T ARER
instruments during the year contributed to changes in the loss BExEBHOMHMOT:
allowance is as follows:
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Y &2 BE3 At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR TER TET
At 1 January 2021 K-E-—%—F—A 29,603 47,955 - 77,558
Transfer to lifetime ECL BEZECERNBELEH
credit impaired (Stage 3) EHREEHE (BR3) - (3,430) 3,430 -
New assets during the year ~ AFEHEE 28,317 1,483 2,553 32,353
Settlements during the year ~ AFEHH (16,125) - - (16,125)
At31 December 2021 and ~ RZT=—%F
1 January 2022 +-A=+—8Bk
—F--%-f-H 93,786
Transfer to lifetime ECL BRFEDEERELREH
credit impaired (Stage 3) REEEER (BR3) =
New assets during the year ~ AFEFEHEE 22,112
Settlements during the year ~ AFEHE (12,976)
At 31 December 2022 RZZ__%
+ZA=+-H 102,922
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A SRR

For the year endled 31 December 2022 {2 —F — —4F+ _H=1—HILFZ

24, AMNFRIE BEREMEKRRIA

24. Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

(continued)

Analysis of changes in the corresponding credit loss allowance

is as follows:

(%)

HEEEBRBREZESHOMMT

2022
—E-=

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Y - 12) B3 At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000

FET TET TET TR

At 1 January R—A—A 1,879 1,335 4,137 7351

Transfer to lifetime ECL credit BEZEEEREZ2H
impaired (Stage 3) REEEER (BR3) (26) 26 =
New assets during the year ~ AEEHEE 1,232 67 1,299
Settlements during the year ~ AFE#EE (379) - (579)
Change in risk parameters ER2EEE (1,160) 4,060 1,766
At31 December “t-A=t—H 1,546 8,290 9,837
ECL rates BREEBRE 2.63% 100.00% 9.56%
2021
—FTZ-F

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

(123 fE B2 RE3 Bt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THT TEL TET TR

At 1 January w—A—H 997 1,686 - 2,683

Transfer to lifetime ECL BREDEEREZEH

credit impaired (Stage 3) BHEEBE (BR3) - (456) 456 -
New assets during the year ~ AEFEHEE 985 117 1,765 2,867
Settlements during the year ~ AFEEEH (85) - - (85)
Change in risk parameters ER28E2E) (18) 12) 1,916 1,886

At 31 December R+=-A=+—H 1,879 1,335 4137 7,351
ECL rates EHEEREX 4.50% 2.90% 69.15% 7.84%
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25. Equity and fund investments at fair value

through profit or loss

iR e SRR MR

25. EBRERBAFEINNERZEAX

2022 2021
—E-— —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET AT

Listed securities, mandatorily
measured at fair value
— Equity securities listed
in Hong Kong (Note (i)
— Equity securities listed in United
States (Note (i)
Unlisted fund investments,
mandatorily measured at fair value &
— Investment fund in the
Cayman Islands (Note (ii))
— Investment funds in the PRC
(Note (iii))

(&L (i)

EHES RBIMERATEAE
— BB LTRARES (HEEG0)
—XB EmlRAES (M)

FEMESEE BHERATFE
—RRASHEZREES

—RPEZREES (M)

65,373

3,543

872

25,770

95,558

The Group invested in certain investment funds with primary
objectives for capital appreciation, investment income and
selling in the near future for profit as at 31 December 2022
and 2021. Pursuant to subscription agreements or equivalent
documents, the beneficial interests held by the Group in these
investments are in the form of participating shares or interests
which primarily provide the Group with the share of returns
from the investments but not any decision making power nor
any voting right to involve in and control the daily operation
of the investment funds.

These investments are set up and managed by respective
investment manager or general partner who are independent
third party of the Group, and has the power and authority to
manage and make decisions for the investments, or through
participations in decision making process of the underlying
investee companies.

RZEZZFR-FT_—F+=ZA=1+—
H AEBEEETREES TEEEA
EAREE - BERARRCHHEEREZE R
BERBEHEARAEH AEBRZER
BRAEZECRZRALEBRMNERE
N EERAAEEREZSEREZEGHD
W UESEREFREESATEED
EREP T PR EE =y X

ZEREHMBARELEL " REBAR
YRhER REARAKEBYE=TF
BANERERREB2EMHRKER
BUREBEIFHIRERK
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A SRR

For the year endled 31 December 2022 {2 —F — —4F+ _H=1—HILFZ

25. Equity and fund investments at fair value

through profit or loss (continued)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group
does not have control on these investment funds. Therefore,
the Group does not consolidate these investments to its
consolidated financial statements and classified such
investments as the fund investments at fair value through
profit or loss.

Notes:

(i) The above equity investments were classified as fair value
through profit or loss as they were held for trading. During
the year 2022, two listed shares were suspended from trading,
and transferred from level 1 to level 3. The fair values of listed
equity investments under Level 3 are based on valuation
techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is unobservable (2021: Level 1
are based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities).

As at 31 December 2022, no financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss have been pledged to secure the other
borrowings granted to the Group (2021: Nil) (Note 33(c)).

(i)  As at the reporting dates, the Group held participating shares
of a Cayman lIslands fund, an exempted company with limited
liability registered under the laws of the Cayman Islands. The
directors of the Company considered that the Group does not
have the controlling power nor voting rights over the fund
and the Group has the right to require the fund to redeem the
participating shares at any time. The Group therefore classified
the investment in the Cayman Islands fund as fund investment
at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition.

As at the reporting date, the breakdown of unlisted investment
funds in the Cayman Islands as follow:

25.

EBESBEAFEINRZEAX
FEERE @)
ADNREER A AEELBIZHZER
BES EY AEETEEZZRERS
HAHGAHBERE THEREREHE
ABEBBRRATENESESRE -

P &L -

() FMBEAREREEE HBEABBIBSE
WAFEINE R-_BE-_—_FFE WE
TTRGOEEEE THE—EBREES
FEIEBR-BZEBAE TN LTREREN
AFEFEFRHHERN HATE
HAEBEANREEBRHAREATAH
R(ZEZ—F: F—EBRERREEE
LABENETRTHEORE CREFHE) ) -

RZEBE-_—F+-_A=+—H BMEFEB
BREAFTEIEZzEMEEDKEER
EEERZEMEEZER(ZE=—F:
) (MI7E33(c)) °

(i) RMESEHM AEEFA-ARSHEEE
SZ2HEEN ZEEH - RRERSE
SEPBRZERREREEAA AR
AEERR AEBEYES W EESER
RER BASEARENERESED
S E T o B 7N S B 0 A TR SR R A
RAESHEESZRENEREBERR
AVFEIEZESKRE -

RMEBH RASHBEZREMERER
SZRANT

2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHBTT

Unlisted Cayman fund A AETHEHEERA

917 872

Unlisted Cayman fund A

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the fair value
gain of approximately HK$45,000 (2021: HK$18,000) was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. As
at 31 December 2022, the Group holds 0.38% (2021: 0.38%)
participating shares of unlisted Cayman fund A.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —&F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

25. Equity and fund investments at fair value

through profit or loss (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(iii)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
subscribed RMB25,342,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$28,053,000) participating shares in a PRC fund A (the
“PRC Fund A”). During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group has redeemed in full for the PRC fund A, amounted to
approximately RMB21,780,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$24,110,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
subscribed RMB8,541,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$9,455,000) participating shares in a PRC fund B (the
“PRC Fund B”). As at 31 December 2022, the Group holds
7.18% of participating shares of the PRC fund B. The directors
of the Company considered that the Group does not have
the controlling power nor voting rights over the fund and
the Group has the right to require the fund to redeem the
participating shares at any time. The Group therefore classified
the investment in the PRC Fund B as fund investment at fair
value through profit or loss on the initial recognition.

During the year, the Group received the amount of
approximately RMB2,245,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,485,000) dividend from the PRC Funds and recognised
in the Revenue in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The directors of the Company estimated the fair value of
the PRC Funds at each of the reporting date by considering
the fair values of the underlying assets of the funds (i.e.
trade debt securities) of which the quoted prices could be
observed in dealing markets. The fair values of the PRC Funds
under Level 2 is estimated by aggregating the fair values of
all underlying assets comprising the funds as at year end
dates. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the fair
value loss of approximately HK$664,000 (2021: fair value
loss of approximately HK$4,935,000) was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

25. ERBHRLAFEYERZEAK
&Eﬁ)&‘ﬁ(g)

B (&

(iii)

BE-_Z-_—4F+-A=+—RHIt&EE"
AEERBETFHRESCA ([FEESAHN
AR#25,342,0007T (FHE 7 4928,053,000
B)2ERp -BHE-_ZT - —_F+ A
Tt BLFE AEECEHEDFE
HEEA HARE21,780,0007T (HHE KL
24,110,000/ 7T) °

BE-_ZEZ-_—_F+-_A=+—RHI=FE"
REAREFHESB ([FEESEB)H
AR #8,541,0007T (48 E 7 #99,455,000
BT)2EBD - BE-_ZT-—F+_-A
“t+—HLEFE AEEFAFHEES
B7.18% M2 EE (R - ARREERE K
SEHESWEITHIEREERE BEAE
E5EpER ERE S B2 EEG o Ftt -
REERVBERNENPEESB 2%
ENEAFBBEIRAFEINRZESE
iéo

RAFE AEEETFEESWHKRELN
AR #2,245,0007T (HE 7 492,485,000/
T WREREEEERZ TIRA] REER -

AAFEENEREDHBEBEEREA
REXSMBEERNESHHABEE (IR
PEHER) ATE GFFRESZAF
B F_ERETHFHRESZATFTEEB
EHTEEARNESNMBHBEERFE
BZAFYERE-BHE2-_TE-_—_F+—-A
= +—HIFE  RFEEIEL664,000/%8
T (ZE=—%F: R FEEEH4,935000
BIL)RIRABRRARER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year endled 31 December 2022 {2 —F — —4F+ _H=1—HILFZ

26. Debt investments at fair value through profit
or loss

26. ERBHEBRATEIRZER
rE&

Listed debt securities (Note (a))

— listed in Hong Kong

— listed outside Hong Kong and PRC
Traded over-the-counter (Note (b))

—-R&EBLE™

BINEE (MEEb)

tmEHKESR (HEaQ)

—REERPEAI LT

Notes:

The listed debt securities as at 31 December 2022 were interest
bearing and were classified as fair value through profit or loss
as they were held for trading. The coupon interest rates of
listed debts securities are ranged from 4.45% to 10.25% (2021:
4.50% to 10.25%) per annum with the maturity dates ranged
from 2020 to 2025 (2021: 2020 to 2022).

As at 31 December 2020, certain bond issuers listed in Hong
Kong were required to redeem the bonds which were subject
to redemption notices at the aggregate principal amount of
approximately HK$11,082,000 on the bonds’ maturity dates.
The bond issuers had not been able to fulfill their redemption
and payment obligations on the maturity dates, which
constituted an event of default.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, none of these
bonds were disposed. The Group assessed the fair value of the
default bonds by making referencing the fair value of these
bonds and recognised the fair value loss of approximately
HK$600 in the consolidated statement of profit or loss during
the year ended 31 December 2022. (2021: these bonds with
the carrying amount of approximately HK$3,292,000 were
disposed in the market at a consideration of HK$3,941,000
resulting in the net gain of approximately HK$649,000 as
revenue in the consolidated statement of profit or loss).

The debt securities which are traded over-the-counter as at 31
December 2022 were interest bearing and were classified as
fair value through profit or loss as they were held for trading.
The coupon interest rates of the debts securities are ranged
from 6.0% to 7.80% (2021: 6.0% to 7.80%) per annum with
the maturity dates ranged from 2022 to 2023 (2021: from 2022
to 2023).
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GEE

(a)

2022 2021
—E=-— —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
7,537 7,789
4,424 26,262
17,716 138,984
29,677 173,035

RZEZ_ZF+ZA=+—HzZ ELWE
BESAE ABEEEMSELAERIE
HIEAFEIE FTEHESFZEEX
N FEF4.45%21025% (T - —4F:
4.50%£10.25%) ' EIBENF = =F
FEZT-_AF(ZEZ—F: ZT=F
FEZZTZF)o

R-Z-_TFE+-_A=+—8 REBL
Mz BETFEHFETAARNESFBHBEER
FE 01 38 A1 P05 78 & A BB 49 211,082,000/
T2 EH - EEETARENREBHARBT
HEDMNRET BRENSEMG-

HE_ZT-_ZF+ZA=+—AHL*F
E HEeEleEzSEsF - A5E2EZS
BEEZAFTEFHENESFZAFE"
REBEEZZT_Z_F+=ZA=+—HILF
B RFEFBELD00E TREAEBRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —&F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

Cash and bank balances

As at 31 December 2022, cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
approximately HK$25,345,000 (2021: HK$5,576,000). The
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland Chinas Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. The
carrying amounts of the cash and bank balances approximate
their fair values.

Bank balances held on behalf of clients

As at 31 December 2022, the Group maintained client
trust monies via Central Wealth Securities Investment
Limited (“CWSI”) (2021: CWSI and Central Wealth Futures
Limited (“CWF")), which were not held for settlement of
approximately HK$691,356,000 (2021: HK$159,683,000) in
segregated bank accounts in accordance with the provision of
Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Client Money) Rules.

The Group has classified the client trust monies as cash
held on behalf of clients in current assets section of the
consolidated statement of financial position and recognised
the corresponding trade payables to the respective clients in
current liabilities section of the consolidated statement of
financial position. The Group is allowed to retain some or all
of the interest derived from the clients’” monies as collaterals.
The Group is not allowed to use the clients’ monies to
settle its own obligations. The carrying amounts of the bank
balances held on behalf of clients approximate their fair
values.

27.

28.

RERBITERT
RZE-_=—F+=-—A=+—H £A%£H
DARB(TAR®DFEZE S RRT
17 B #)25,345,0008 0 (Z & = —F:
5,576,000 L) c AR ERALBRA
HAanEH - A1 BRIk B i 2 HNEE 12
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AR S i A H At G -

FRIRITZRERES BRITF R HER
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EzREERL QA HERES-

REREFEEZEBTERE
R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H K&EEF
BREZEREERAR ([FERH])
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AI([FEHE]) ) BEESEELFLPE (B
FRBE)BAIEXRBYIETEREPFEY
FEFEEE 2 B P (ErEFIE49691,356,000
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For the year endled 31 December 2022 {2 —F — —4F+ _H=1—HILFZ

29. Trade payables

29. ENE SR

Trade payables arising from the &5 M fTEE%ﬁ%EEZ
securities and futures dealing e E
business
— Clearing houses —HEET
— Cash clients —-HeERP
— Margin clients —RBELEP

Trade payables arising from
sales of goods

HERMEEZENE SRR

2022 2021
—=E_—— T —%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
3,351 16,842
636,245 50,323
55,924 100,937

303 -
695,823 168,102

Trade payables arising from securities dealing business bear
interest at 0.01% (2021: 0.01%) per annum and repayable on
the settlement day of the relevant trades.

Trade payables arising from futures dealing business are non-
interest bearing and repayable on the settlement day of the
relevant trades.

Included in the trade payables as at 31 December 2022 are
amounts due to Mr. Yu Qingrui, being the director of the
Company, of approximately HK$500 (2021: Mr. Yu Qungrui
and Mr. Chen Xiaodong, being the directors of approximately
HK$193,000 and HK$35,000, respectively) arising from
securities dealing are unsecured, bears interest at 0.01%
(2021: 0.01%) per annum and repayable on the settlement
day of the relevant trade transactions.

No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the
directors, the ageing analysis does not give additional value
in view of the business nature. The carrying amounts of trade
payables approximates their fair values.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F— — 4+ _H=—+—HILFZ

30. Third party interests in consolidated

investment fund

30. RiREREEESCE=Z TR

2022 2021
—E—— —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET

Payables to third party interest
holder of consolidated
investment fund

BB AR

RNGAREEEZE=T

52,662

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has
redeemed all interest of Fortune China Bond SP Il (2021:
held of 55.45%), which is a segregated portfolio of Central
Wealth Investment Fund SPC (“SPC-SPII”) and held 100%
(2021: 100%) interest of Greater China Income Fund which is
a segregated portfolio of Central Wealth Investment Fund SPC
(“SPC-GCIF”). Pursuant to the management and investment
management agreement with SPC-SPIl and SPC-GCIF, the
Group is the manager and investment manager of the SPC-
SPII and SPC-GCIF.

The Group has consolidated SPC-SPIl and SPC-GCIF to its
consolidated financial statements as the directors of the
Company believed that the Group has control over SPC-SPII
and SPC-GCIF (see Note 3).

As at 31 December 2021, third party interests in consolidated
investment fund represented the share of net asset value of
the investment fund held by third parties (i.e. the remaining
44.55% interest of SPC-SPIl) which was recorded as a
liability since these third parties can, on their discretion at
any time, required the fund to redeem their participating
shares for cash based on the net asset value of the investment
fund at the date of redemption. Accordingly, the third party
interests in consolidated investment fund of approximately
HK$52,662,000 were classified as liabilities as at 31
December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, Mr. Wang Jun, subscribed 14.77%
participating shares of SPC-SPIl and the corresponding
amount of approximately HK$17,501,000 was included in
this balance. Mr. Wang Jun was not an agent of the Group
and he does not have any voting power over the fund.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the loss generated
from SPC-SPII attributable to the third parties amounted to
approximately HK$3,744,000 (2021: HK$3,435,000) was
recognised as a change in third party interests in consolidated
investment fund included in other income and losses, net in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss (Note 5).

HE—_E-_—_F#+-_A=+—8I1FEE"
7N & B #& [5 Fortune China Bond SP 11 Z2&
(T —F:#HB55.45% )= 1M
Fortune China Bond SP Il A iEEEKE
BRAFISPCZ B &S ([SPC-SPI )
K3 A Greater China Income Fund 2 &
WD (ZEZ—F:100%) ' M Greater
China Income Fund & EEEERAER A
AISPC 2B I E A ([SPC-GCIF]) - 1R
¥ B2 SPC-SPIl &2 SPC-GCIF 1) & 12 R IR & 1
= N5 B A SPC-SPIl )2 SPC-GCIF 1) & 12
NS S E S

REE D # SPC-SPIl K& SPC-GCIF f#f A & 47
AUBRE RRALARAEERAELE
B % SPC-SPII &2 SPC-GCIF A =4I # (R
BFE3) ©

RZEBE-_—F+_A=+—8B RE4s
RERGE-FTREEEF-TFEER
BEe cEEFEMDE (BISPC-SPI& T
4455% ) B ARAEE KRR
ABEZHAENHNEERESKER A H
ZREESEEFEELDHESER MDA
BIRE Bt WEEEREESCE=T#
= #952,662,0008 TN —_E - —F += A
—t+—BoBEAREE-

R-_ZE-_—F+_A=1+—H ARQRFE
EFTF AR SPC-SPI 214.77% 2 5§
7 HEES 58 A %)17,501,00008 7T 5F A%
Hh-TEEEWIAEEZNRE - BER
ZESWET(IEERE-

BE—_E-—F+-_A=+—HI1LtFE"
% = 75 B {5 SPC-SPII EE 4 7 493,744,000
7T (ZZF Z—4%:3,435,000/ 7T ) E I8 R
BEZANGEAEBRREEMK A KE
B RHFEBBTINAGAREES 2E=
R EE) (FisEs) o

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F£#& 195



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year endled 31 December 2022 {2 —F — —4F+ _H=1—HILFZ

31. Other payables and accruals 31.

Hitb B RERETEA

2022 2021
—E=-= —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Accruals EEtER 10,109 52,262
Note interest payables (Note 34) & SRR A B (P EE34) 411 1,430
Loan interest payables* FET B RF B 1,024 7,420
Other payables H At &5 5RIE 6,478 21,257
Contract liabilities ARaE 204 2,324
18,226 84,693

* The loan interest payables are derived from the secured/ * RENERNERBGAMBRRMEIZZ

unsecured other borrowings in Note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group’s payables and accruals are non-interest-bearing
and are normally settled within three months. The carrying
amount of financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals approximates their fair values.

Changes in contract liabilities under the management fee
services income during the year are as follows:

BEM /M BEREBES-

AEEZENFBEREHBERBSTER
—RAR =B ARER - E b ENRER
BAEAES eMARZERERAER
FEHEE-

RER BEEEBRFVRABETANAESE
BT

2022 2021
—=E-— —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET AT

Carrying amount at beginning of RENZ REE
the year

Increase due to receipts in advance KRB E P 2 FEMER M IE N
from customers

Revenue recognised for the year RERNHERZ WS

2,324 6,354

2,389 3,104
(4,509) (7,134)

Carrying amount at end of the year ~ RERZREE

204 2,324

The performance obligation of the management services is
satisfied when the services are rendered and advances are
required before rendering the services.

The Group selected to choose a practical expedient and no
disclosure of remaining performance obligation of those
unsatisfied contracts with customers was made as all related
contracts have a duration of one year or less.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 {2 =F = —4F + = H=—+—HIFFZ

32. Lease liabilities 32. HEAERE

2022 2021

ol Sl —E-—%F

HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERx TAT

3,415 4,018

2,989 6,599

Within one year R—FR

Over one year but not more than BA—FETHBEARF
five years

Less: portion classified WD BERRBAEBNHD

as current liabilities

6,404 10,617

(3,415) (4,018)

Non-current liabilities EREBAE

2,989 6,599

As at 31 December 2021, lease obligations of approximately
HK$477,000 that were denominated in RMB other than the
functional currencies of the relevant group entities, which was
fully expired during the year 2022.

As at the end of the reporting period, the future minimum
lease payments of the net minimum lease payments are as
follows:

R-ZE-_—F+_-_A=+—8 HEKE
43477,0008 LIRS E BRI EEE K A
INOANRBFE ZHERER T -=
FREEm-e

REEF RERENHFEZ R RS
KRB RBFIT

2022 2021
—E-—fF —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT

3,676 4,449

3,064 6,938

6,740 11,387
(336) (770)

Within one year R—FA

Over one year but not more than BE—FETBERLF
five years

Total lease payments HEMNRERE

Less: Finance charge R E R

Total lease obligations HEAERRE

6,404 10,617
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For the year endled 31 December 2022 {2 —F — —4F+ _H=1—HILFZ

33. Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
and bank overdrafts

Effective
interest
rate per
annum (%) Maturity
BRERZ
(%) )
Current Ik
Bank overdrafts - secured RITEY -HHEA 525  Ondemand
REX
Bank borrowings - secured  HITEE-FHER 2.4106.2 2023
—E-=
Other borrowings EiEE-AER/ 70 On demand
- secured/unsecured EEA RER
Other borrowings - secured ~ EffEE-HH A 9.6t012.6 2023
—E-=E
Total @it
Notes:

@) The Group’s overdraft facilities amounting to HK$230,000,000
(2021: HK$230,000,000), of which approximately
HK$21,638,000 had been utilised as at the end of the reporting
period (2021: Nil).

(b)  Certain of the Group’s bank borrowings included above
are secured by listed equity and debt investments securities
pledged to the Group held by certain margin clients with an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$159,565,360 (2021:
HK$143,364,295).
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33.

S ERAT R EA B SR R 4T

2021
—E--F
Effective
interest
rate per
HK$'000 annum (%) Maturity HK$'000
EREE
TR () B FER
21,638 525  Ondemand -
KEX
39,500 30049 2022 71,664
30849 —ET-CF
89,032 7.0 On demand 236,000
BER
34,043 9.0t0 12.0 2022 32,109
9.0£12.0 —E-CF
123,075 268,109
184,213 339,773
B 5T
(@) AEEZFELZHEB230,000,000%8 7T (=
T =~ — 4 :230,000,00078 7T ) + B W E
KRB 2 3008 B 4921,638,0008 L (=&
Z—F )
(b)

FERFBEAEEETRITERE N
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F— — 4+ _H=—+—HILFZ

33. Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings

and bank overdrafts (continued)
Notes: (continued)

()

(8)

Certain of the Group’s other borrowings are secured by listed
securities held by the Group with market values as below:

33.

FTERITREMEEURET
EX #m)

B (&)

()

Equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive
income

BAKE

BEREMEEKGERATFEIIERZ

Other borrowings — secured/unsecured are repayable on
demand to Globally Finance Limited, a subsidiary of Future
World Holdings Limited of which, 65,356,000 shares of
Shandong Hi-Speed Holdings Group Limited (formerly known
as China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited)
recorded under equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (note 18), were pledged to secure the
borrowings as share charge since 24 October 2022 and as at
31 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, bank borrowings and other
borrowings are maturing within one year. The carrying amounts
of these loans approximate to their fair values.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, secured bank borrowings
bear floating rates with reference to HIBOR and Prime Rate.
The carrying amounts of these loans approximate their fair
values.

On 24 October 2022, Central Wealth Infrastructure Investment
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, as the
“Chargor” and Globally Finance Limited (as “Lender/Trustee”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of a company with its ordinary
shares listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, namely
Future World Holdings Limited, entered into a Share Charge
arrangement, pursuant to which the Chargor has charged
95,061,000 shares of a company listed in Hong Kong owned by
the Chargor (the “Charged Securities”) in favour of the Lender.
The fair value of the Charged Securities was HK$308,948,250
on 24 October 2022. In consideration of the Chargor agreeing
to enter into the Share Charge, the Lender has agreed to
execute the Declaration of Trust at the same time, pursuant
to which the Lender shall declare to act as the trustee of the
Charged Securities in favour of the Chargor.

FEBBOEMEEARERFEN LD
BHEEM mENAT:

2022 2021
—E—-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHBT
40,399

HMiEE-GHE B RAREZREE
FARRERZHB AR R BEERAT]
EhrE T —F+AZ-Z+HEREKER
—TE-—H#+ - A=+—B REBEM
PEBBZRAFENEZBRALEETA
ML=k EmA R AR (AfEH B WL
HaRermEEAFRAF)M65,356,000
A (MsF18) BEHIEARNDEL A
BERERA-

RZEZZFR=_FE=_—F+=A=+—
A RTEEREMEER—FRNEH-
ZEERCEMEEEQNFEMRS -

RN &R -—F+=-A=+—
A BHRFRTIEELBEBRITEER
BERBEBRNRFEFE -ZEERZE

EEEENTEES -

R-ZE-_—F+A=-+MHA -AQEE2E
MEBARREERREBRAR (EAE
BABEERGEERAG (FAETER
ASZREAN]) (—HEBENE T ER
EHZRARRKRERIEBBERAF ZE
BB AR VTN — RN ER L 1B
o ERADKBEEEN—MEBELTA
A]#995,061,0000& 817 ([EEMEH )&
WMYEFA - R-_ZE-_—_F+A=-+mAE "
B IR 5 KA F{E5308,948,25078 7T ©
EEEHRARB LBRMHERONRE &
KACRERBEYELEH B B
AANEHEBAEIRA AT ANEIKAE
BENIZEAITE
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33. Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings

and bank overdrafts (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(8)

(continued)

On 3 November 2022, the Chargor issued two letters of
instruction to the Lender, which intended the Lender, as the
trustee, to enter into share sale and purchase agreements to
transfer totaling 29,705,000 shares of the Charged Securities
to two independent third parties (the “Purchasers”) at
the considerations of approximately HK$45,746,000 (the
“Considerations”) in total (the “Transactions”). The net proceeds
from the Transactions shall be in or towards the payment to
settle the loan and interest receivable owed by the Company
to the Lender (the “Loans”) until the Loans are discharged.
On the same date, Globally Finance Limited entered into the
share sale and purchase agreements with the Purchasers in
relation to the Transactions and the corresponding amount of
the Loans amounted to approximately HK$45,746,000 in total
was deemed to be set-off against the Considerations at the date
of entering into of the relevant sale and purchase agreements of
the Transactions on 3 November 2022.

On 4 November 2022, the Chargor entered into conditional
sale and purchase agreements with three independent third
parties in relation to the transfer of the remaining 65,356,000
shares of the Charged Securities at a total consideration of
approximately HK$169,272,000. On 15 February 2023, the
transactions were approved at the special general meeting, the
corresponding amount of the Loans was deemed to be set-off
against the Considerations.

34. Note payable

33.

34.

S ERTREMEEURETT
EX (@)

B (&)
g (&)

R-_E-_—_F#+—A=H EHARE
HRABLERMDIERH BEERAEAR
SHEAIBRDEEDRH UAEY
45,746,000/ TR (E ([RE]) B E KR
BH A $£29,705,0000% 10 3% T WA B
VE=ZF(BAR]) ([RE])-ZXZHE
FEFEBEARINARRERERAZ
FUWEZEFE (ER]) EEERRR
BlE-RA HAMBEERARRR FHH
BERFIUBRNEEHZ HEEFTAELD
45,746,000 TR —_E_-_—_F+—A=H
FURSHEEEEHE 2 ABEEARRE
biskiiwicR

R-ZE-—F+—ANH BRAE=ZFH
LB = AR AR (E49169,272,00078
JCEE R B R 55 R £465,356,000% I% 17
AVEBERHEEER R - R=Z2TE==F=A
THA ZRSPREERIAS EERA
HEERSERG AEA G-

ENRE

Senior note payable

ENELTRE

2022 2021
—g== B4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
50,000

On 7 September 2021, the Group issued a senior note with
principal amount of HK$50,000,000, before the related
expenses of HK$61,400, to an independent third party. The
senior note bear interest at a rate of 9% per annum and
mature in September 2022. The interest will be repayable by
the Group within one year after 31 December 2021.
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R-E-—FAALH AEER—2B
MEZFETELER  MBR61,4008 T
FERAF = AT 2 A& 4885 550,000,000 7T ©
ZEEEERFNERI%FE TER T
ZZFNAR-AEEAN T = —
+ZA=+—HEM—FREEFS-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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34. Note payable (continued) 34. B EE (@)
On 6 September 2022, the Group has repaid the senior note RZEBEZZFAARA AEEEEERE
in amount of HK$6,000,000. On 7 September 2022, the 7 ZE 156,000,000 LN T _F N A
repayment term for the outstanding balance of note payable + B BN RIE 2 K E & 4 #44,000,000
amount to HK$44,000,000 was extended with an extension BTHERBHEEHRRER -FENEE
agreement. The note payable bears interest at a revised RGBT FR EI15% 51 8 WG REL
interest rate of 15% per annum and will mature in February BITBETIR T _=F_A3H-R_F
2023 under the revised terms. On 5 October 2022, the Group TZFTHAB AEEEEERELERR
has repaid the senior note in amount of HK$4,000,000. 4,000,000/ 7T °
As at 31 December 2022, the Group has calculated the RZZB__F+_R=+—H Xr5EEK
interest of note payable by the effective interest rate ranging BEBRFNEI% E15% T HENEEFNE
from 9% to 15% per annum and the amount of note payable JE T R HE F B.49411,00008 7T aT A bR & B 1%
interest of approximately HK$411,000 included in the other R M3 1EY Ho A JE A FRIE - IS EHRIE - 5%
payables in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements. SEOMERI% EFE15% WREE—
The interest rate of the note increased from 9% to 15% upon T+ A=+ -BILFENEEE
extension and recognised a loss on modification of liability T & AR B BB R] 18 492,422,000 7T
amounted to approximately HK$2,422,000 (note 5) in the (KizEs5) (ZTZ—F:M|) -
consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year ended
31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).
Share capital 35. lRA
2022 2021
—E-C= —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHER FAET
Authorised: ETE
80,000,000,000 (2021: 80,000,000,000% (=ZF = —
80,000,000,000) ordinary 80,000,000,000% )
shares of HK$0.01 each FARE(E0.018 T 2 B 800,000 800,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRERE:
16,293,850,461 (2021: 16,293,850,461/% (=T = —4F :
15,969,650,461) ordinary 15,969,650,4610% )
shares of HK$0.01 each FREE0.01E T2 EBK 162,939 159,697
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35. Share capital (continued)
A summary of movements of the Company’s issued shares
capital and share premium account is as follows:

35. BRZA (@)
BEARFDBITRARBRMREE S &
S 0T :

Number of Issued share  Share premium
shares in issue capital account Total
BRTRAEE BRTRA B A5 E R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2021, R_ZE_—%-A—-8"
31 December 2021 and S -HF+ZA=+—H
1 January 2022 k-Z-—F—-f—H 15,969,650,461 159,697 4,764,124 4,923,821
Exercise of share options (Note) 17 & %1% (fi3E) 324,200,000 3,242 8,214 11,456
At 31 December 2022 RZBEZZF+ZA=1+—H 16,293,850,461 162,939 4,772,338 4,935,277

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2022, 324,200,000 share
options were exercised which results in 324,200,000 shares being
issued at a price of HK$0.024 per share.

36. Reserves
The contributed surplus of the Group arose as a result of the
Group reorganisation upon listing of the Company’s shares in
1994, and represented the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of the former holding company of the
Group prior to the Group reorganisation and the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor.

In addition, pursuant to special and ordinary resolutions
passed at the special general meeting held on 22 September
2000, the issued and fully paid share capital of the Company
was reduced by HK$448,992,000 through a reduction in the
nominal value of the share capital of the Company. The credit
so arising was transferred to the contributed surplus.

On 28 July 2005, a capital reorganisation scheme was
approved by the shareholders under a special resolution,
pursuant to which, every 10 shares of HK$0.01 each in
the issued share capital of the Company were consolidated
into one consolidated share of HK$0.10 and every issued
consolidated share was reduced in nominal amount by
cancelling HK$0.09 of the capital paid up for each issued
consolidated share so as to form (after the share consolidation)
one reorganised share of HK$0.01. The credit so arising was
transferred to the contributed surplus.
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GEE

REBEE-_ZT-_—_F+-_A=1+—BLFE"
324,200,000 BE R IED EITFE BHZEER
0.0247% T K B 15 8£17324,200,000% A% 17 °

36. S
AEBMEMABEALARDTRMR
—ANE FREBRET Y EEEE
EEBMAAEE Y AIZRARRGEE
BARD T BRI R T BT 2
BFT% 7 858 -

AN BER -_ZTTTFAA -+ B
TZBREEAE ERBBZENRER
REBE OADBZEHITRMBBRAE G
IR AN~ B B A 2 T {E T H JR448,992,000
BT ANELZEREREEHAG

R-ZEERFE+A=-+FN\H BAEHE
BIRIE — IR R R ZEREA R HLE - IRt
AR BBETRASRF10 SR EEO.01
B zBRHOEHAE—KREELIOETLZA
HBRD MBREBHTEHBRO ZEES
BIEESTERITEFRMD0.098 T 2 H R
REARFLABIR B EAE (R DE H1E)
—BREEOTVE T ZEEAR D Rt ELE
ZEREREEHAG-
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —&F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

Reserves (continued)

On 26 March 2013, a capital reorganisation scheme was
approved by the shareholders under a special resolution,
pursuant to which, every 5 shares of HK$0.01 each in the
issued share capital of the Company were consolidated
into one consolidated share of HK$0.05 and every issued
consolidated share was reduced in nominal amount by
cancelling HK$0.04 of the capital paid up for each issued
consolidated share so as to form (after the share consolidation)
one reorganised share of HK$0.01. The credit so arising was
transferred to the contributed surplus.

On 27 February 2015, a capital reorganisation was approved
by the shareholders under a special resolution, pursuant
to which, every 10 shares of HK$0.01 each in the issued
share capital of the Company were consolidated into one
consolidated share of HK$0.10 and every issued consolidated
share was reduced in nominal amount by cancelling HK$0.09
of the capital paid up for each issued consolidated share so
as to form (after the share consolidation) one reorganised
share of HK$0.01. The credit so arising was transferred to the
contributed surplus.

The equity component of convertible bonds arose from the
convertible bonds with the maturity date of 15 November
2010 issued by the Company in 2007, which had been fully
redeemed by the Company upon maturity.

Notes to the consolidated statement of cash

flows

(@) Major non-cash transaction
On 27 October 2022, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group acquired 25% of issued share capital of Senworth
Limited, which was engaged in investment holding and
provision of property management services. Senworth
Limited, which is considered a material associate of the
Group, is a strategic partner for the Group, providing
access to new business of property investment in the
PRC.

The total consideration payable by the Group under
the sale and purchase agreement is HK$84,000,000,
of which HK$30,000,000 was settled in cash and
the remaining balance of HK$54,000,000 would be
satisfied by issuing promissory notes to the vendor upon
completion of the acquisition, and which was then fully
offset against vendor amount owed to a wholly owned
subsidiary, which was originally recorded under loan
receivables from money lending business.

36.

37.

& (|

W_ZT—=F=F=—+,H BAEH:
BRI — TE R Bk s SRR R L - R
KRB EITRA R F5FAREE.0NE
T2 B E A —REE.OE L2 A B
D MEREEITAHRND 2 EESB
S E BT MRRD0.048 T 2 BRI
KT ABR B ELS (RRDEHE)—
R EEC.01EB T2 & BBAEAR D - B EE 2
HEEESEHAG-

R-ZE—FRF_A-_++tHB BEAEHAR
B—BEERRBREREIE Bt AR
AlEETRATEFI0REREE.O1E T
2B A A —BREE0.108 T 24 B
B MEREETAEFBROZEES A
M5 2 EITA FKRH0.09%8 T 2 BB IR A
FULABIR B EAE (RBRHAHE) K
EEO.0TB T2 KBRS - At EA 2 #
FEREZEHES-

AHREF 2 EEHBNRE — ST LFH
RRARBETZIHBER T —ZTF+—A
THENAREKES AATRDREHR
THELEHEABRRES -

RERERERHE

@ EXAFBREXRZF
RZEZZF+HA=Z++tRH Xr&HE
2EMBARIKBERMARARIEE
TTIRAR 225% &% A el it B EZEIK
RIBHMEEERSE BB BERAF
WERAEREEEEZHE LR BEASE
B EEAY AAREEREN PR
FRMYEREEBHKS -

BEEERE ASEENERER
84,000,000 7T - E #130,000,0007%
JLAER & X # 54,000,000 7T
UL EE EIH A & AR B 7 BT
HEERZAAIN  ERNEHIKEER
AERREEBERERETNE A
HEREENB AR ZAE-
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37. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash 37. MEBRERERHFT @

flows (continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b)
activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash
flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statements of cash flow as cash flows from financing

activities.
Other borrowing
interest included
in other
Lease liabilities payables
SARM
ENREZ
HEEE HUFEERNS
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER
At1 January 2022 W=B==f-5-H 10,617 7,420
Changes from financing cash flows: RERLREZY:

Proceeds from new secured other borrowings ~ ¥TiEBEAL MG EMERE
Proceeds from new secured bank borrowings  ¥TiE A ERBTEEMEHE

Repayment of note payable BEENRE
Repayment of secured bank borrowings BERERRTEE
Repayment of unsecured other borrowings ~ EEEEAL ML E
Repayment of lease liabilities BERERRE
Payment for interest portion of other XNEMEENEHS
borrowings
Payment for interest portion of bank borrowings % i /75 &85 -
Payment for interest portion of lease liabilities % 78 & & (&7 & T‘B (426)
Total changes from financing cash flows RETSMEZYLE (4,333)
Other changes: Edu 3]
Termination of lease KIEE
Interest charges on other borrowings - EtEEZ RIS ER-EHR
unsecured
Interest charges on bank borrowings ROBEZFISER
Interest charges on lease liabilities RERBZHEER
Dividend Income from fund investment BEEREZREMA
Loss on modification of note payable CHIES vl
Exchange realignment EXHE
Total other changes EEHER
As at 31 December 2022 R-BZZE+ZA=1-A
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METBRELERGEZHER

TRFANAEEREETDHAEFLAE
2B BEESKIFREH -/
BEHMELZBENRERELHK
ARBEEREF TR AEELRE iﬁéﬁ
//|bi%=277 iﬁ%ﬂﬂﬁ/ﬁ@]?ﬁiziﬁ sz //IL.
EZ8E-

Total liabilities
Other from financing
borrowings  Bank borrowings  Note payable activities

REED

& BITER EfRE ARAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TiEn TiExn
268,109 71,664 50,000 407,810

- 3,459
10,456 - 10456

= (10,000) (10,000)

- (42,670) - (42,670)
(148,178) S - (148,178)
- - - (3,907)

- (24,236)
(1,367) (1,367)
- (426)

(144,719 (33,581) (10,000) (216,869)

(265)

17,840
1,367
426
(315)
2422
9

21,484

212,425
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37. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash 37. MEBRERERHF @)
flows (continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b)) BMEITBFECEBEZYHIR(HE)

activities (continued)

Other borrowing Total liabilities
Lease interest included Other Bank Notes  from financing
liabilities ~ in other payables borrowings borrowings payable activities
FARA
ERFIELZ REEDZ
HERE HBEEHS L RITEE ENRE hfEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEL TR TR TEL TEL
At 1 January 2021 WZ%--%¥-f—-8 30,666 6,017 364,972 102,716 86,574 590,945
Changes from financing cash flows: BERSHEED:
Proceeds from new secured other borrowings  FTEBEEL M EEHEHE - - 2,582 - - 2,582
Proceeds from new secured bank borrowings  ¥TEBEEETEEMEHE - - - 50,632 - 50,632
Proceeds from new note payable MERNREMENE - - - - 50,000 50,000
Repayment of secured hank borrowings BEEERRTEE - - - (115,432) - (115,432)
Repayment of unsecured other borrowings BREEAEMBEE - - (9,200 - - (9,200)
Repayment of secured other borrowings BERERAMEE - - (56,497) - - (56,497)
Repayment of lease liabilities EERERR (11,202) - - - - (11,202)
Payment for interest portion of other XNEMEENEHS
borrowings - (6,017) (9,100) - - (15,117)
Payment for interest portion of bank borrowings %3 F4THEF S H 5 - - - (2,072) - (2,072)
Payment for interest portion of lease liabilities ~ % {37 & & EF| S 55 (593) - - - - (593)
Total changes from financing cash flows RERSMBEDER (11,795) (6,017) (72,215) 66,872) 50,000 (106,899)
Other changes: EfEE:
Transfer to accrual ERTENER (17,850) - - - - (17,850)
Reclassify to bank borrowing BRARERITREE - - (33,748) 33,748 - -
Interest charges on other borrowings - EEEZ N ER-EER
unsecured - 7,420 9,100 - - 16,520
Interest charges on bank borrowings BEEZFISER - - - 2,072 - 2,072
Interest charges on lease liabilities BEABZFISER 593 - - - - 593
New lease liabilities HEREaR 8,978 - - - - 8,978
Net off by loan receivables WSS - - - - (86,574) (86,574)
Exchange realignment ERBE 25 - - - - 25
Total other changes EtEEeE (8,254) 7,420 (24,648) 35,820 (86,574) (76,236)
As at 31 December 2021 RZB-—£+-A=+-A 10,617 7,420 268,109 71,664 50,000 407,810
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38. Share option schemes

The Company operates share option schemes for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Eligible participants of the share option schemes include the
Company’s directors, including independent non-executive
directors, other employees of the Group or any invested
entity, suppliers of goods or services to the Group or any
invested entity, customers of the Group or any invested entity,
shareholders of the Group or any invested entity, holders of
securities of the Group or any invested entity and persons
or entities that provide research, development or other
technological support to the Group or any invested entity. A
share option scheme became effective on 27 August 2003
and expired on 26 August 2013 (the “2003 Scheme”). A new
share option scheme was adopted and became effective on
27 September 2013 (the “2013 Scheme”). Unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, the 2013 Scheme will remain in force
for 10 years from the effective date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options granted and to be granted under the
2003 Scheme and the 2013 Scheme (collectively, the “Share
Option Schemes”) is an amount equivalent to 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at the dates of approval
of the Share Option Schemes unless approval for refreshing
the 10% limit from the Company’s shareholders has been
obtained. The maximum number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the share options granted to each
eligible participant in the Share Option Schemes (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue. Any further grant of share options in excess
of this limit is subject to shareholders” approval in a general
meeting.

Under the Share Option Schemes, share options granted to
a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or to any of their associates are subject to approval
in advance by the independent non-executive directors.
In addition, any grant of share options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, which would result
in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue
and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price
of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of
HK$5,000,000 is subject to shareholders approval in advance
in a general meeting.
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38. Share option schemes (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options under the Share Option
Schemes may be accepted within 28 days from the date of
offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in
total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determined by the directors, save that such period
shall not be more than 10 years from the dates of adoption
of the Share Option Schemes subject to the provisions for
early termination set out in the Share Option Schemes. Unless
otherwise determined by the directors at their sole discretion,
there is no requirement of a minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of share options granted under the Share
Option Schemes is determined by the directors, but shall
not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of offer of the
share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price
of the Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share of the Company on the date of offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders” meetings.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, 1,596,960,000
share options (2021: 1,596,490,000) were granted to a total
of 11 grantees (including 4 directors, 6 employees and 1
consultant of the Group under the 2013 Scheme to eligible
participants, no (2021: 1,649,620,000) share options were
lapsed, 324,200,000 (2021: no) share options were exercised
and 155,560,000 share options granted to a consultant were
cancelled. The outstanding options granted under the 2013
Scheme shall continue to be valid and are subject to the
provisions of the 2003 Scheme and Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules.

38. IBRHEFTE (@)

RIEZSBRE S BREZARAR
RBRERDBHEF TN NARRER
CEMER  BERE YAREMAKEHR
BB T ZRBARE -BIREZITER
HEFRRE HERTEHISBAZEE
PRt Bl R B MG T+ UXZER
P #E 5 &1 BT LAY 2 B AR LE IR ST IR © BR 9F
EENREBERBERSITRE SAX
A RN B RE AT 1T E AT B R B % BB E
RAHIR 2 RE °

REZEFBREIRL ZBREZTE
BEHEZEET ETGLIRUAT=ZEZ&
BEHARABRMREEBERERRAE
AP 2 W B () AR R R R B
H R B IR R A 5 B B P2 F
BULTHE R (i) AN 2 B B0 70 15 o s RS
B mEE -

BREHAAERERRESINBIRA

& L EE
2 FRE-

BE—_Z-_—_F#+-_A=+—RHB1EE"
1,596,960,0000 g Ix & (=T = — F:
1,596,490,00017 ) & T #1182 5E KA (B1F
AEE4IZESZ 6BREEBMEBEB(ZZE
—=FHEBTHAERSEE)) HE
— T~ —14F:1,649,620,0000 ) BRED
L~ 324,200,00010 (— T = —F )
fe B 1T IR FEEMIAY155,560,00010
BRECWHEHE - RE S —=ZF:tEIAT
BHZzEATEBRESEEFSR X
IR CFHER EMBRANFIIEZEX
FIT R AR ©
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38. IBREFTE (@)

38. Share option schemes (continued)

The following share options were outstanding as at the
reporting date:

AT BB s B B R 1T

2013 Scheme
weighted average

exercise price Number of
per share options

—E—-=F5t8

Z R0
FHITEE BREHE
HK$’000 ‘000
TET T
At 1 January 2021 RZZE-_—F—H—H 0.545 1,490,020
Granted during the year FAKH 0.017 1,596,490
Lapsed during the year FARRK 0.494 (1,649,620)

At 31 December 2021 and RZEZ—F+ZA=+—H8xK

1 January 2022 - —H—H 1,436,890
Granted during the year FRFE M 1,596,960
Cancellation of share option Gk -1E (155,560)
Exercised during the year FRITHE (324,200)
At 31 December 2022 RZEZ=—F+=ZA=+—H 2,554,090

The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other
similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

The exercise period of the share options that were outstanding
as at 31 December 2022 are from 5 May 2021 to 19 June
2024 (2021: 5 May 2021 to 4 May 2023).

The fair value of the equity-settled share options granted
during the year ended 31 December 2022 was estimated by
Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited, an independent
firm of professionally qualified valuer, using the binomial
option pricing model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. The fair
value of the equity-settled share options granted during the
year ended 31 December 2022 was HK$18,024,000 and has
been recognised as a share option expense during the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: HK$11,880,000).
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B ITEES SRR BITARK
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——FOARARE-T-_=FAAMNA)-
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38. Share option schemes (continued)

The following table lists the inputs to the model used.

Share options granted

38. BREFTE ()
TR 8 A SR BT 2 B -

20 June 2022

—EZCH
ERHBRE AAZ=tH
Dividend yield (%) P& B A 2 (%) N/A 7T~ i A
Expected volatility (%) T8 5T 18 (%) 99.25
Historical volatility (%) JEE S % 18 (%) 99.25
Risk-free interest rate (%) A | B M) 2 (%) 2.77
Expected life of options (year) TEAEREFH (F) 2
Share price at grant date (HK$ per share) RS RERE (BRAET) 0.024

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may
also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
2,554,090,000 (2021: 1,436,890,000) share options
outstanding under the Share Option Schemes, which
represented approximately 15.68% (2021: 9.00%) of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date. The exercise in full
of the share options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 2,554,090,000 (2021:
1,436,890,000) additional ordinary shares of the Company
and additional share capital of approximately HK$25,541,000
(2021: HK$14,369,000) and share premium of approximately
HK$25,986,000 (2021: HK$10,346,000) (before issue
expenses).

No vesting period of the share options granted during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

TERT IR IR [RBR I 2R IE AR KB 2 R
BZRRBET T —ERBERER

811 2 B RO S R A BT A A T8 2
S

RMEBKR ADQ AR %S E
21 N F2,554,090,000f0 (=& = — 4
1,436,890,00017 ) & K 17 {F B& f% # - 40
ERARNBEBE BTHRMHDL15.68%
(ZEZ—%:9.00%) 1B ARAH
MZERNERB BHROTEBEREBE
B % 22 554,090,0000% (Z T = —4F:
1,436,890,000/% ) 2~ A &) 3@ f - I S AR A
BB mE (FBEITH SR 2 Bl 4
25,541,000/ 70 ( —Z — — 4 : 14,369,000
77T ) K #925,986,00008 T (ZE = —
10,346,000 7T ) ©

BE-_T-__F+-_A=F+—HLEFE"
EEEZERESERBS-
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39.

40.

41.

210

Lease arrangements 39. HEZRH
As lessor EHHBEA
The Group sub-leases the certain properties under operating AEERBLEEHELHERE TWE
lease arrangements with leases negotiated for 3 years (2021: 3 BEMNR=ZF(ZZE=_—F =F) -
years).
At 31 December 2022, the Group had total future minimum RZE-_—_F+_A=+—H XEER
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with BAATRELCEHER —FA BN EK
its tenants falling within one year in amount of approximately P 2z AR ETE G 5B 454 /3508,000
HK$508,000 (2021: approximately HK$1,112,000) and in the B (ZEZ—F:41,112,00087T) ' 1
second to fifth years, inclusive, in amount of HK$Nil (2021: FCEFRAFAN(RSEHEMT)IHHE
approximately 558,000). WHPZARKEEEREAERTET
(ZF = —%:#)558,000/8 L) °
Commitments 40. E¥E
No capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2022 RZB__F+_A=+—BHESKE
(2021: Nil). THEREAE(ZT—F &)
Related party transactions 41. BEALR S
(@ In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in (@ BZEUBRREMBHAFLZR
these financial statements, the Group had the following G AEBRAFERATHRET
transactions with certain related parties during the year. BEALT RS-
2022 2021
—E_— —E-—%F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B & FTER TET
Interest income on margin KEEFETEREER
financing from directors RHZRECTHMELZ
arising from securities dealing MEHA
transactions (i) 2,431
Commission income received ~ WHEFETEREE
from directors arising from RHZBEHA
securities dealing transactions (i) 239

Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited FiZ&BZRBR A =




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2 —F = —F+_-H=+—HI - F/F

41. Related party transactions (continued)
(continued)

(a)

Note:

(i)

Commission income and interest income on margin
financing received from directors of the Company which
arose from securities dealing transactions were charged
based on mutually agreed terms with reference to the
prices and conditions similar to those offered to other
customers of the Group.

Commission income and interest income on margin
financing received from directors of the Company
of approximately Nil (2021: HK$1,446,000) also
constituted connected transaction as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

The Group considers the directors of the Company to be
the key management personnel, whose compensation
has been disclosed in Note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Outstanding balances with related parties:

Details of the balances with the Company’s directors as
at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are included in Notes
20 and 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

41. BEAETR S (#)

(a)

(%)
B i :

i) WREARREFELETEFEERS
ZREBARRESRBE NS WA
BB EGREE LE2Z M
FEEAEMEPREZBEERK
fiF o

WEARREREZAS WA RRE
TRIEFERANE (ZE=—F:
1,446,000/ 7T ) IR Ak £ T AR BII &8
T4AZBB T RAEZHER S

AEETEEBAEZME:

REBREANRBEEHATEEE
AE BEALZHMERES %ﬁﬁ
R T8 EE -

HEE AT RKEELS:
AR _ZE_—_FR-_ZF-_—F+=
H

—Hﬁ$ GE A= VA
BB mRENE20%29 -
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42. Financial instruments by category
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

Financial assets
Financial asset
at fair value
through profit
or loss

BEBRD
BOVENERZ

—g-= TREE
31 December 2022 +=A=+-H HK$000
THT

Debt investments at fair value #EB#ERE AT BT
through profit or loss ZEBRE 29,677
Equity investments at fair BBEMEERER
value through other RNFEYIRZ B A

comprehensive income RE
Equity and fund investments &R iERE D FETE

at fair value through ZBRAREERE
profit or loss

Loan receivables from MEEBEE Y
money lending business B

Trade receivables from BHRBEREER
securities and futures EEZEBE SRS
dealing business

Trade receivables from RERBEERER
placing and asset EEZRBEFHER
management business

Trade receivables from HEMMEELER
sales of goods EHEN

Financial assets included FARS REMER
in deposits and TEZGREE
other receivables

Finance lease receivables BEHERRGR

Cash and bank balances RERBRTER

Bank balances held on REZPEERTHER

behalf of clients

212  Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited = & £ @1 i 5 IR 2 7

42. ZERE 2SR THE

SRR TARRERRZKEEENT

Financial assets
at amortised
cost

BREEAAT R
LEMEE
HK$'000

TR

372,829

147,696

33,479
865
180,950
3,946

62,388

691,356

1,493,509

Financial asset
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income
ERHMZE
WEEATE
IR EMEE
HK$'000

TET

392,073

392,073

At
HK$'000
TR

29,677

392,073

35,508

372,829

147,696

33,479
865
180,950
3,946

62,388

691,356

1,950,767
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42. #ERE Sz TR (®)

42. Financial instruments by category (continued)

Financial assets

Financial asset

Financial asset Financial at fair value
at fair value assets at through other
through profit amortised comprehensive
or loss cost income Total
BBER BREMZE
BRATEINE . REEKATIE Wi ATE
SREE JEREE IR eREE @Et
31 December 2021 ZEC-E+ZA=1-H HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAET FAEL
Debt investments EBRERELTETIE
at fair value through ZBBRE
profit or loss 173,035 - - 173,035
Equity investments at fair BREMPENGE
value through other AFEFIRZ RA
comprehensive income "E - - 493,258 493,258
Equity and fund investments & BBz R A T E5IK
at fair value through ZBRARESRE
profit or loss 95,558 - - 95,558
Loan receivables from money HE¥HEE 2 B
lending business BER - 469,781 - 469,781
Trade receivables from BHRBEREER
securities and futures EEZEKE SRR
dealing business - 130,116 - 130,116
Trade receivables from HERBEERER
placing and asset EEZERE HER
management business - 45,990 - 45,990
Financial assets included FARS REMER
in deposits and REZEREE
other receivables - 121,921 - 121,921
Finance lease receivables MEREEWFE - 6,372 - 6,372
Cash and bank balances BeMFTER - 116,364 - 116,364
Bank balances held on REBEPHERTHER
behalf of clients - 159,683 - 159,683
268,593 1,050,227 493,258 1,812,078
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RENE S 2RI A (#)
A=K

42. Financial instruments by category (continued) 42.

Financial liabilities

2022 2021
—E—_= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
Financial liabilities at amortised cost IR ARz &R B &
Trade payables e E H R 695,823 168,102
Financial liabilities included in other &FT AEAMEN FIBERETER 2
payables and accruals TRIBE 18,022 82,369
Third party interests in consolidated RéFEREE S 2 E=FTEH
investment fund - 52,662
Note payable AN 42,422 50,000
Lease liabilities HEARE 6,404 10,617
Other borrowings Hibfg g 123,075 268,109
Bank borrowings wITEE 39,500 71,664
Bank overdrafts RITEX 21,638 -
946,884 703,523

43. Offsetting of financial instruments 43. EEEMIA
The Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off REBBRKAAERITRENEHEEK L
receivable and payable with Hong Kong Securities Clearing ENBEEPREEARAF ([BEEEE])
Company Limited (“HKSCC”) and Hong Kong Futures LREBHEHEMERAR ((HMEEKERQ
Exchange Clearing Corporation Limited (“HKCC”); and the Bz HE: MAKEBIRFREERK
Group intends to settle on a net basis as trade receivables SENBEEERPELERRIZE SR
from or trade payables to HKSCC and HKCC. e
In presenting the amounts due from/to the clearing houses, REF R TENEERMRIER  AEE
the Group has offset the gross amount of the trade receivables ERRKEEMZESRFEREIHEERN
from and the gross amount of the trade payables to the HERZESRRRE -EEEERF
clearing houses. The amounts offset and the net balances are PRETIRIAT
shown as follows:
Gross amount Amount offset Net amount
k] BHEHFEHE FE
31 December 2022 —E-_-H+=-HA=+—H HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET THERT
Amount of trade receivables  EWAEE P2 & 5HRK
from the clearing houses 4,115 4,115)
Amount of trade payables EREEMZE SRR
from the clearing houses (7,466) 4,115 (3,351)
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Offsetting of financial instruments (continued)

43.

KM I E @)

Gross amount Amount offset Net amount
B BERIEER R
31 December 2021 B —%+-A=+—H HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
Amount of trade receivables [EW4EEFT 2 E 5
from the clearing houses 9,902 (9,902) -
Amount of trade payables e B2 B SRR
from the clearing houses (26,744) 9,902 (16,842)

Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments
Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
bank balances, loan receivables from money lending business,
trade receivables from securities and futures dealing business,
trade receivables from placing and asset management
business, finance lease receivables, trade payables,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, financial liabilities included in other payables
and accruals, bank overdrafts, bank and other borrowings,
and third party interests in consolidated investment fund
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short
term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department is responsible for determining
the policies and procedures for the fair value measurement
of financial instruments. The finance manager reports
directly to the financial controller and the audit committee.
At each reporting date, the finance department analyses
the movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation.

The valuation is reviewed and approved by the financial
controller. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the audit committee twice a year for interim and annual
financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

44.

TRIAERAFEER
HRRERRITEF REXBELZE
WER EBHRMBEEBEXEREE 2B
BN BEREEEEREBELZE
WESER BEBRERURE BNES
BREK REATEN R - 2 E M HE b R YRR
ZEMEE FHAHMENKEARENE
RzemBE RITEX RITLEMEER
UERGAREREGZE=ZTHEAZN
AN MEEERRZETARYF
EEEMRAEEMES -

AEEMBGHFEERESR T ARTE
AEBRREERF - MBEEERRAMNBA
ENBERZEQER -NERSEH UK
MPASMEMTAEBEZES NEEMRE
FRTERMEZE AR

EEEAEBEEN R BREAR
B 16 LB T2 A SR 10 o 8 % 4F A 9
FEHBAR -

SRMEERAMNATENRTAR GE
255 (MHFRERBEREE)ENRST
MAR 5 S BAR- T 55 ERBRT A
M EATE:
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4. ERITERAFEEHK @)

44. Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments

(continued)

The fair value of the note payable and lease liabilities has
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instruments with
similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities, which
approximate to their carrying amounts.

The fair values of listed equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income and equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss are based on quoted market
prices.

The fair values of debt investments at fair value through profit
or loss and fund investments at fair value through profit or
loss are based on quoted market price in inactive markets.

Fair value hierarchy
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

Quoted prices

in active markets

(Level 1)

NER

T B HE

(5—ER)

At 31 December 2022 R®
.I_

-2
=A A HK$'000
TR

BERRERATE
JifRz BB A

Debt investments
at fair value through
profit or loss

Equity investments at fair FREMEEYNE
value through other BRTFESIEZ
comprehensive income BRARE 392,073

Equity and fund investments & BB R A T @I
at fair value through ZRERESRE
profit or loss 17,363

409,436
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ENEELEEAENAFERBERA
18 UG R 15 B R B K /U8R 2 HR A IR 19
TRAZEHMABHNEFTRBERRAKEERE
matE BEKEERS-

FREMEARRERAFEINKRZ ETR
RIRE NGB BBERR A FEIKRZRAER
B2V EEMSHREMEE -

BBBRE A FEIENEBTREZRF
EBEREEBBSEAFEIKZESRET
ERIW )R BT 5 W E M EE

NEEEBR
TRITAGEEeRIANATEFEE
A

BRAFEFENEE:

Significant

Significant unobservable

observable input inputs

(Level 2) (Level 3)
BEAUEE EARUERE
BAE BAE
(E=ER) (B=EBR)

HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER

29,677

392,073

35,508

457,258




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2 —F = —F+_-H=+—HI - F/F

4. ERMITERAFEEBHK @)

44. Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments
(continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) NP EER (&)
Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets  observable input unobservable

(Level 1) (Level 2) inputs (Level 3) Total
REE BAUEE BEATNAEE
TS HE BAHE AR
(E—EH) (5=BHR) (B5=E#H) Bat
At 31 December 2021 RZE=—F
+=ZA=+—H HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEL THET TAEL THEL
Debt investments at fair ERERELTE
value through profitor loss  FIiE 2 B4R E - 173,035 - 173,035
Equity investments at fair FEREMEEMRE
value through other BATEFIR
comprehensive income AR E 493,258 - - 493,258
Equity and fund investments & BB &R A T E5IK
at fair value through ZBRARESRE
profit or loss 68,916 26,642 - 95,558
562,174 199,677 - 761,851

During the year ended 31 December 2022, two listed equities
were transferred from level 1 to level 3, due to suspension
of trading. The Group has recognised an impairment loss of
approximately HK$6,096,000 for one of the listed securities,
the Group based on management’s assessment using the
unobservable input (level 3), i.e. the lack of marketability
discount related to the suspension period of trading for
almost one year and with no updated resumption plan
had been announced by the listed issuer, the Group has
made full provision for that listed securities; for another
listed securities, the Group also recognised an impairment
loss of HK$3,337,000 which is approximately 28.35% to
the market price at the last trading day, determined with
reference to unobservable input (level 3), i.e. an independent
valuation performed by an independent valuer using index-
return method with combination of the lack of marketability
discount.

The carrying amounts of these two listed securities, after
the above impairment losses recognised, were become Nil
and HK$8,437,000 as at 31 December 2022 respectively.
Management does not foresee any significant change in fair
value of these investments.

BHE_ZE-_—_F+_-_A=+—H1IEE"
WMELTMRERAFEEBRE—EBERELE=
BHR -AEBEHRHE - L TESFBRRE
&5 18 496,096,0008 70 AEEIRIEEEE
FRATAERGAE(F=BR)NTHE
BUEi(= i — F MM RS TS RE I
FEOERLEMBEITALEQMEHANIEE
HECAEECHZ ETESEL B
B B LETESEMS  AEEINERRE
{E/E5183,337,0008 0 Y AZERSHHM
B Hy28. 35%%%%TT§RW$@ME(%
—E&)  BmB A EMETNBGE
METFEREERZLIESM2TERD
|Eﬁu§°

E/\f/?::i‘f'iﬂz‘l'—ﬁu@ﬁ@%t
MR ERBER ZME LT EANKREE

%E\J%Z@&Mwooo;aﬁ EIEEIE T

ZRENARBETIEEIMEREL-
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44.

45.

Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments
(continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The determination of the fair value requires significant
judgement by management with respect to the assumptions
and estimates for the lack of marketability discounts and index
return rates. The significant unobservable inputs adopted in
the valuation as of 31 December 2022 are as follows:

Unobservable Inputs:

Lack of marketability discount 15% to 100%

Index return rate -6.45% to 23.15%

If the lack of marketability discount ratio is higher/lower,
while all other variables were held constant, the carrying
amount would decrease/increase. If the index return rate is
higher/lower, while all other variables were held constant, the
carrying amount would increase/decrease.

Except for the mentioned equities, there were no transfers of
fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 3 (2021:
Nil).

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at
fair value as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise equity,
debt and fund investments and cash and bank balances. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables from
securities and futures dealing business, trade receivables from
placing and asset management business, loan receivables
from money lending business, trade payables, note payable,
other borrowings, bank borrowings, third party interests in
consolidated investment fund and lease liabilities. Details of
the major financial instruments and the Group’s accounting
policies in relation to them are disclosed in Note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk and equity price risk. The board of directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.
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45. Financial risk management objectives and

pOliCieS (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from dealings in securities which are
settled in currencies other than the Company’s functional
currency and holding of bank balances in foreign currency.
As at 31 December 2022, cash and bank balances of
RMB12,879,000 (2021: RMB6,086,000) and US$80,241,000
(2021: US$21,274,000) were held by the Group. As the
HK$ is pegged to the US$, the Group considers the risk of
movements in exchange rates between the HK$ and the US$
to be insignificant.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to reasonably possible changes in the
RMB exchange rates, with all other variables held constant,
of the Company’s profit before income tax and the Company’s

45.

iR e SRR MR

BERREEAEREE @

IS | By
AEFEAZIRZGEERKR EERKKE
AARRREEE AN B & E 7 E 5
RGUBENINERF ZRTEGF - R
T+ -A=+—H AEEEEES
NER1THEF ARYE12,879,000T (— & = —
F: AR ™6,086,0007T) 580,241,000% 7T
—E T —4F:21,274,000%7T) c ARBTT
HETHN AEBRAEBTHETLZIE
REEEREM -

TRHEREMBEEMEBRETTE N R
THRARBEX 2 GBAEEHH AR
BRI MRANEN R ARG s EZ

equity.
(Decrease)/
increase in (Decrease)/ (Decrease)/
exchange rate  increase in loss increase in
(%) before tax equity
E = BRBiAI & 18 i
(T¥) /E£# (B &M (D) /Em
(%) HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR

31 December 2022 —E_f%+ZH=+—H

If the Hong Kong dollar weakens fii & 7T 5 A R B
against the RMB

If the Hong Kong dollar AT AREE
strengthens against the RMB

31 December 2021 B -f+ZA=+—H

If the Hong Kong dollar weakens {7t % A R &
against the RMB

If the Hong Kong dollar WAL AREE

strengthens against the RMB

(5) (369)

(309)

5 369 309
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year endled 31 December 2022 {2 —F — —4F+ _H=1—HILFZ

45. Financial risk management objectives and 45.

pOliCieS (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s borrowings
with a floating interest rate.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant and before any impact on tax, of the
Company’s profit before income tax (through the impact on
floating rate borrowings) and the Company’s equity.

2022
—E-CF
Increase/
Increase/  (decrease) in

basis points  income tax

BEEREEEEREE @)

A = [ By
ARBRTIENEREHMAT 2 ARER
HARNAIRZBHERGF R ZIEEER-

TR A E A M B N2 R
EARBEZEN MEXAEAEEHHAN
RAEIGMEHRAEN CRAHFEEEZ
FE)RARARE I EZHRE -

2021
—E-—F
Increase/
Increase/ Increase/  (decrease) in Increase/
(decrease) in  loss before  (decrease) in RGN loss before  (decrease) in
basis points  income tax equity
BRETETIAT B

BRET S BLA

2/ BEEN/
(H) (B2)
HK$'000

TER

Hong Kong dollar BT 397
Hong Kong dollar BT (397)

The Company’s policy to manage its cash flow interest rate
risk is to minimise the Company’s interest-bearing borrowings
which bear interest at floating rates.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Company’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored
by the risk management department on an ongoing basis
and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant. The
Company has no significant concentration risk in view of the
fact that the Company’s trade receivables from securities and
futures dealing business and trade receivables from placing
and asset management business relates to a large number of
diversified customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

45. Financial risk management objectives and

pOliCieS (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables from securities and
futures dealing business and trade receivables from placing
and asset management business are disclosed in Notes 20 and
21 to the consolidated financial statements.

The credit risk of the Company’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and bank balances, finance lease receivables
and other receivables, arises from default of the counterparty,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of
these instruments.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 December
2022 and 2021

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and
year-end staging classification as at 31 December 2022. The
amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial
assets.

ﬂﬁ%%ﬁ%%&

45. B ERESEREREE @

FERE (&)

ERARASERIER MNBEEEXBKESL
ZRKESESREENREEEERBE
EZRWESERRMAEEERR 2 E—
FECBBERGRA PR RAM E205R21H
B

AREEMEREE (AT ERERE MR
T8 17 B A T B e WA o H At 8 K
R)ZEERBRBRZ TR RAEL
Rk LRBERZEFTAZKRE:.

RIFEZZFR-_F-—Ff+-H=4+—
H 875 2 B B & FF 4% H AR 5
TRIWIRZEZ_ZF+_A=+—HE
RAEBEERRZEEEZREAZ 2 &
SEERR EXZREAHER (BRIER
BANHTIBBERASIANATEZEME
B O URFEBRBIDE -T2y 2%
ATREEZREARE-

12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 A R
FEER rHRAEEEE
ZB-CE Simplified
31 December 2022 +ZR=t-AH Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total

F-E& F-B& F=R& & @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TiEx TER TiEx TER

Cash and margin client receivables % RRE &% P EYFIE

— LTV at 100% or above ~BFYBELER100%
KAk 277,165 277,165
— LTV between 80% and 100% _gtﬂgﬂg (L& 780%
Z100% . 17,784
— LTV less than 80% EHHEELEIR
80% 114,815 . 114,815

114,815 ; 277,165 409,764
Loan receivables, trade receivables EWEF BEREEEE
from the placing and asset FBEEZRRESER
management business and REMEIHE
other receivables
~ Not yet past due ~HRE 419,522 S ; 453,748
~ Less than 90 days past due —@ P H90A - ; - 56,303
~ More than 90 days past due - BHER0A - 68,568 68,568

419,522 b 68,568 ; 578,619

534,337 ) 345,733 ’ 988,383
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T A R R

For the year endled 31 December 2022 {2 —F — —4F+ _H=1—HILFZ

45. Financial risk management objectives and 45. B ERERE B FEREX (@)
pOliCieS (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EERR (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 December RIEZZFR - F_—F+_HA=+—
2022 and 2021 (continued) H 495 & LB X F A AR B (48D
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{AREH
[FEEE THEHEERE
Simplified
31 December 2021 “E-%+-A=t-H Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
FRR ol El Bl @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL
Cash and margin client receivables % R{x#E 2 & PR
- LTV at 100% or above —ERHEELER100%
FALE - - 350,953 - 350,953
- LTV between 80% and 100%  —EHHEBELEH80%
£100% - 11,022 - - 11,022
~ LTV less than 80% -ERHEEREIR
80% 40,873 - - - 40,873
40,873 11,022 350,953 - 402,848
Loan receivables, trade receivables EWEF BEREEEE
from the placing and asset EBEL I RUESHER
management business and REMERTR
other receivables
~ Not yet past due —HABH 509,377 - - 43,296 552,673
~ Less than 90 days past due —BH 190 - 67,194 - - 67,194
~ More than 90 days past due -BH#EB0A - - 51,621 20,597 72,218
509,377 67,194 51,621 63,893 692,085
550,250 78,216 402,574 63,893 1,094,933
Liquidity risk RENE < @ b

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial
assets (e.g., trade receivables from securities and futures
dealing business, trade receivables from placing and asset
management business and loan receivables from money
lending business) and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of the
Group’s available cash and its listed equity investments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F— — 4+ _H=—+—HILFZ

45. BERBREEEEREE (&)

REBEEEE (&)
AEBERBEITORTANRDOTERE
BERmERRZ BB T

45. Financial risk management objectives and
pOliCieS (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

On demand 1to5
or within 1 year years Total
R—FR —Z8E @zt
31 December 2022 —E-_-f+-A=t+-H HK$/000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TET FTHERT
Trade payables JE B SRR 695,823 695,823
Financial liabilities included in EHAE At PR SRR R
other payables and accruals EAEBRzoRAE 18,022 18,022
Note payable eSS 46,515 46,515
Lease liabilities HEAE 3,676 6,740
Other borrowings HipEE 129,307 129,307
Bank borrowings RITEE 39,500 39,500
Bank overdraft RITHEL 21,638 21,638
954,481 957,545
On demand 1to5
or within 1 year years Total
RER
R—%FR —EhfF st
31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-A=1+—H HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET TET TET
Trade payables ERE HHER 168,102 - 168,102
Financial liabilities included in S A E At JE T FRIE
other payables and accruals EAERZEBARE 82,369 - 82,369
Third party interests in EF=ETREEREESZ
consolidated investment fund s 52,662 - 52,662
Note payable BN R 53,070 - 53,070
Lease liabilities HEaf 4,449 6,938 11,387
Other borrowings HitfE & 48,629 252,520 301,149
Bank borrowings RITIEE 71,664 - 71,664
480,945 259,458 740,403
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year endled 31 December 2022 {2 —F — —4F+ _H=1—HILFZ

45. BERBREEEEREE (&)

45. Financial risk management objectives and

pOIiCieS (continued)

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity investments,
debt investments and fund investments decrease as a result
of changes in the levels of equity indexes and the values of
individual investment. The Group is exposed to price risk
mostly arising from equity investments, debt investments
and fund investments that are classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss or other comprehensive
income. Majority of the Group’s equity investments and debt
investments are listed on the Stock Exchange, respective
overseas stock exchanges and the over-the-counter markets,
while the unlisted investment fund are traded in the over-the-
counter markets.

Listed equity investments

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5%
change in the fair values of the equity investments, with all
other variables held constant and before any impact on tax,
based on their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting
period. For the purpose of this analysis, for the equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
the impact is deemed to be on the fair value reserve and no
account is given for factors such as impairment which might
impact on the statement of profit or loss.

Carrying amount
of equity Group's loss
investments before income tax

BAREREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FH FH

31 December 2022 —E-"Ff+-A=+—H

RTFIHE EH 2 RE
Hong Kong — Equity BB -FREMPERE
investments at fair value BRNFESRZ R

through other KE

comprehensive income
Hong Kong — Equity

investments at fair value

through profit or loss

Investments listed in:

FE-BEBRREAYE
SR 2 A B
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SEH AR BAKRE REKIRE DR
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ZHHEE-

L TRARE
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Aofms HEBEMEERESZRAF
BIRZBEARE 2 ERER/E R FE
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ERARZER-

Change in the

Change in the
Group's equity

AREEREH
AEREE FREEZEDH

392,073

25,800




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —&F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

45. Financial risk management objectives and 45. B RARERE B FEREE @)
policies (continued)

Price risk (continued) BERERE (E)
Listed equity investments (continued) FHRERE ()

Change in the

Carrying amount Group’s (loss)/

of equity profit before Change in the
investments income tax Group's equity
NS ]
BT HiA
(E#E) /
BAKEREE i ) & REEREREE)
31 December 2021 T —F+ZHA=+—H HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHAT FHAT FHAT
Investments listed in: RTHHE Eh2isE:
Hong Kong — Equity FE-EBEMeEmka
investments at fair value BNV ESER 2 R
through other BE
comprehensive income 493,258 - 24,663
Hong Kong — Equity BB -ERBERRATE
investments at fair value PR 2 A E
through profit or loss 65,373 3,269 2,729
United Stated — Equity XE-FBBRIRAFE
investments at fair value FIER 2 A E
through profit or loss 3,543 177 148
Unlisted fund investments HLEHEDKE

The fair value of unlisted fund investments of approximately
HK$9,708,000 (2021: HK$26,642,000) depend on the
valuation of the respective investments or underlying
investments. If the unit price increased/decreased by 5%,
loss before income tax for the year would have an estimated
approximately HK$485,000 (2021: HK$1,332,000) decrease/
increase.

Debt investments

For sensitivity analysis purpose of debt investments amounting
to approximately HK$29,677,000 (2021: HK$173,035,000),
if the prices of debt investments had been 5% higher/lower,
the loss before income tax for the year ended 31 December
2022 would have decreased/increased by approximately
HK$1,484,000 (2021: HK$8,652,000).

In opinion of the management, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the price risk as the year end exposure
does not reflect the exposure during the year.

#)9,708,000 B T LTMESKEN A
FE(ZT = —F 26,642,000/ 7T)E &
WENIEIREN A Z - HERER
B, WA 5% 0 B BT 1S B A & 1B A8 1 ET
S Y AN #9485,0008 0 (—ZF = —4F
1,332,000 7T ) °

EERE

FHA29,677,0008 L (& = —4F:
173,035,000/ ) M E K& E 2 BURE 5
MmE  MEFISENER LA TRE5%:
Az -+ -_A=1+—RHLFE
B BT 15 B4 B B 18 5 R 38 hn 491,484,000
Bt (ZZF - —4:8,652,00087T) °

EEERS BRESNMHERRRM S

WAERRE BFLRARY TRBRFRA
R o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year endled 31 December 2022 {2 —F — —4F+ _H=1—HILFZ

45. B EKREEBZEREE (&)

45. Financial risk management objectives and

pOliCieS (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity
ratio calculated as total debt, excluding lease liabilities,
divided by total equity. The debt-to-equity ratios as at the end
of the reporting periods were as follows:

EXREHE

AEEEAEER 2T ERRAREAEE
ENBEENMFRENERNL T UX
FREXBI RRRGEREAEE-

AEEEEREARE  WARELEMMR
MBI RBEEEZ B SEmEL AR -
AREBEAREFHERN TRRAOKE AR
RBREERRBITHE AERFIFEE
AERB RBE_T-__FR-FT=-—F
TZA=+T-BLEFE AEEERER

AKBNUEE SR (RERAE (T
BEREAERE)RIAERAENE) 2%
ERHAR NRERNRZERE AL
ET

2022 2021

S F —E-—%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTExT FHET

Note payable ENEE 42,422 50,000
Other borrowings HumgE 123,075 268,109
Bank borrowings RITIEE 39,500 71,664
Bank overdrafts RITEX 21,638 -
Total debt RS 226,635 389,773
Total equity M iaE 1,105,740 1,122,409
Debt-to-equity ratio [EESEL Fad s 20.5% 34.7%

The decrease in debt-to-equity ratio as at 31 December 2022
was mainly due to the decline in the other borrowing of
approximately HK$145,034,000.
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iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F— — 4+ _H=—+—HILFZ

6. N A Z B B AR &
RIBEBR KD AR R 2

46. Statement of financial position of the
Company
Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

- %

2022 2021
—=E—-= —F=—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Non-current assets FkRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB R&E 2,154 3,306
Rights-of-use assets EREEE 5,487 10,138
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AEZIE 259,880 309,575
Deposits biraca 1,082 7,436
Total non-current assets FMBEERE 268,603 330,455
Current assets REBEE
Due from subsidiaries & W Bt 8 A R 676,162 862,596
Prepayments, deposits and SCENE/SER ?E% &E’r@ﬁéﬂﬁlm
other receivables 2,816 354
Cash and bank balances Be MRITHET 1,869 3,422
Total current assets MBEERE 680,847 866,372
Current liabilities REBE
Other payables and accruals Huh e I RERTE R 2,243 9,376
Lease liabilities tﬁlaﬁff 3,415 3,563
Due to subsidiaries R NGIE: 228,048 207,772
Note payable e RIE 42,422 50,000
Other borrowings HmgE 89,032 236,000
Total current liabilities MBI B ERRE 365,160 506,711
Net current assets REBEEEE 315,687 359,661
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERRBAR 584,290 690,116
Non-current liability FREBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE 2,989 6,404
Total non-current liabilities IFRE B A 2,989 6,404
Net assets HEEE 581,301 683,712
Equity Rz
Share capital &N 162,939 159,697
Reserves ] 418,362 524,015
Total equity AT 581,301 683,712
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46. Statement of financial position of the

Company (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Vo¥N:

RE M ERR MR

For the year endled 31 December 2022 {2 —F — —4F+ _H=1—HILFZ

46. XA T ZHBMR AT (&)

Note: B &L -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RRATHFEREWT
Equity
component
Share premium  Contributed Share option  of convertible  Accumulated
account surplus ~ Capital reserve reserve bonds losses Total
CE:3S
B2
RiiEEER BaBH EXfgE  BRERG 350 ESi 3] ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL AR TATL TAL AT TATL TAL
At 1 January 2021 WZEZ-5-f-H 4,761,124 675,671 556 36,223 47,257 (5,149,950) 370,881
Profit and total comprehensive loss for the year ~ A E&T| k2 EFRAR - - - - - 144,785 144,785
Lapse of share option TR - - - - - 33,897 33,897
Equity-settled share option arrangements, net  FRE&EE 2 EREL H FE - - - (25,548) - - (25,548)

At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022

4,761,124

675,671

10,675

47,057

4,971,268)

524,015

Total comprehensive loss for the year FEEERR2AEREE - - - - (128,216) (128,216)
Exercise of share option s 8214 = (3,675) = = 4,539
Cancellation of share option BRES S = (1,792) 1,792 =

RSS2 BRER 58 -
KRZE-—f+-A=+-H

Equity-settled share option arrangements, net

At 31 December 2022 4,769,338

675,671

18,024

23,232

47,257

(5,097,692)

18,024

418,362

ARARZEHBHFIR AW E36PTEZE R
Bl DEMRBRBRARER ZEHE
EFEBARBRRBZEEEMEITR
M EEBE 8-

The contributed surplus of the Company arose as a result
of the capital reorganisation referred to in Note 36 and
represented the excess of the then combined net assets of
the subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —&F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

47. New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

HKFRS 17 (including the Insurance Contracts'
October 2020 and
February 2022
Amendments to HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and ~ Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback’

Amendments to HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5°
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies'
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 12

Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

? Effective for annual periods beginning on or 1 January 2024.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

47. DRTEMRENZ T RE

B EEMKREER
AREE Y mIT A A T BTE MK
B2 3R] AR BT B 1 A R

ERIBREENZR  RBAK
(AE-Z-TE+AR

ZECECRrEERE

R ERIE 1752 B3T)

BEUEREENZI0RE REEREBLNFHAL
RESHENENF 2B LAREENENTR

EEMBREENZ6He  ERANZEEAE

g

BEGEANFIRCET  AERDIRPRENE
RERZREESHRL
RBET

ERGRARRREANY CHHREE
HEEANEHREFIF L

g

BEGIEAFOR BT AR
BEGEANFN 2T EE-RSELNEER

AERRNETHE
' R-EZ=F—-A BRI ZRFARZIFE
¥E B AR

3 R-Z-_MF-A B2 RFAKRZFE
s BB A -

BRIt 2 5 R] R BT R A B RS
ERIN RABEREH R LARK &
REE R RGBT EBMBREE
AT e WG M BRREREATE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F— —F+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

47.

48.

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

The amendments define accounting estimates as “monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty”. An accounting policy may require
items in financial statements to be measured in a way that
involves measurement uncertainty — that is, the accounting
policy may require such items to be measured at monetary
amounts that cannot be observed directly and must instead be
estimated. In such a case, an entity develops an accounting
estimate to achieve the objective set out by the accounting
policy. Developing accounting estimates involves the use
of judgements or assumptions based on the latest available,
reliable information.

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting estimates in
HKAS 8 is retained with additional clarifications.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Events after the reporting period

(@ Investment in a joint venture company registered
in the PRC
On 28 December 2022, the Group entered into a
cooperation framework agreement with Ff BU{E Rl H
[ A "] (Zhongqgi Media Technology Co., Ltd*) (“Zhonggqi
Media Technology”), pursuant to which the joint venture
company named HiEH S E A F] (Central Wealth
Zhongqi Joint Venture Co., Ltd*) (the “JV") will be
established in Shenzhen City, the PRC. The JV will be
owned beneficially as to 60% by the Group and as to
the balance of 40% by Zhongqi Media Technology. The
JV will be engaged principally in the celebrity branding,
that is to help Chinese artists and Internet celebrities
to develop customised clothing brands, in order to
establish our position as a business benchmark in the
live streaming industry and develop online and offline
businesses.

In January 2023, the JV was incorporated in the PRC
and finally in name as & XX {t CRYI) BRAA].
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48. Events after the reporting period (continued)

(b)

(0

Establishment of a joint venture company
registered in the PRC

On 2 January 2023, the Group entered into a strategic
cooperation framework agreement (the “Cooperation
Framework Agreement”) with Guangzhou Jiafan
E-commerce Co., Ltd* (EMEZEAEFTEBER A
7)) (“Guangzhou Jiafan”) for the joint investment in
the establishment of a limited liability company (the
“Controlled Joint Venture Company”). Guangzhou
Jiafan, a company established in the PRC, is a member
of the GIALEN Business Group and has the ability to
rely on its parent company to carry out the research and
development, production, channel sales and other work
of beauty products under the joint venture company. On
16 January 2023, the Controlled Joint Venture Company
was incorporated in the PRC and will be engaged
principally in the celebrity branding, that is to customize
beauty and skin care brands for Internet celebrities and
artists, in order to establish the Group’s position as a
business benchmark in the live streaming industry and
develop online and offline businesses, and immediately
realize brand incubation from zero to one.

Acquisition of 51% equity interest in a PRC
company

On 19 December 2022, the Company (purchaser) and
AR Y E B % A B R 2 A (Shenzhen Central
Wealth Enterprises Consultancy Co., Ltd*), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with Z=28& (Li Minjun*)
and ZE %75 (Luo Yanfang*) (vendors). Pursuant to
which the purchaser agreed to purchase 51% of equity
interests in MM 5 E XL EEAFR QA (Hangzhou
Yiyou Culture Media Co., Ltd.*) (targeted company)
for a total consideration of RMB145,600,000, which
shall be settled by cash and/or allotment and issue of
the consideration shares. The targeted company is a
company established in the PRC with limited liability
and is principally engaged in internet live broadcasting,
key opinion leader (“KOL”) incubation and marketing
and sales business in the PRC. The targeted company
has exclusive e-commerce contract with Sister Sihuo
Y NEIESRM S, a reputable artiste, celebrity and
live broadcaster in the PRC. The details of which were
disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated
19 December 2022 and 20 December 2022.
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48. Events after the reporting period (continued)

(d) Additional acquisition of an associate
Subsequent to the Group acquisition of 25% equity
interests of Senworth Limited (the targeted company)
in October 2022, Morley Way Limited (the purchaser),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the conditional sales and purchase agreement
with Chen Yihao (the vendor) on 4 November 2022.
Pursuant to which the vendor agreed to sell and the
purchaser agreed to acquire 24% of the total issued
capital of the targeted company for a total consideration
of HK$80,600,000, of which HK$30,000,000 shall
be settled in cash and the remaining balance of
HK$50,600,000 by issuing promissory note. After the
completion of this transaction, the Group will hold 49%
of equity interests in aggregate in the targeted company
accordingly.

49. Approval of the consolidated financial
statements
The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 March
2023.
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